May 4, 2023

To,

The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Exchange Plaza, 5% Floor,
Plot No. C/1, G- Block,
Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai- 400051.

Scrip Symbol “MINDSPACE” (Units)

BUSINESS PARKS REIT

BSE Limited

25" Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,

Mumbai- 400001

Scrip Code “543217” (Units) and
Scrip Code “960327”, “973069”, “973070”,
“973754” “974668” and “974075” (Debentures)

Subject: Outcome of the Meeting of the Governing Board of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP,

Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT held on Thursday, May 4, 2023

Dear Sir / Madam,

We wish to inform you that the Governing Board (“Board”) of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
(“Manager”), Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“Mindspace REIT”) at its meeting held on Thursday,

May 4, 2023, has, inter-alia:

i. approved the Audited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements and Audited Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT for the quarter, half year and financial year ended
March 31, 2023 and took on record the Auditors Report of the Statutory Auditors;

ii. approved and adopted the Audited Standalone Financial Statements and Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT (which shall form part of the Annual Report) and along with
the report on performance of Mindspace REIT for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and took on
record the Auditors Report of the Statutory Auditors;

iii. Distribution is Rs. 4.81/- per unit aggregating to Rs. 2852 million, which comprises dividend of Rs.
4.37/- per unit aggregating to Rs. 2591 million, interest of Rs. 0.43 per unit aggregating to Rs. 255
million and other income of Rs.0.01/- per unit aggregating to Rs. 6 million.

iv. noted that proceeds raised through issue of following Debenture by Mindspace REIT have been
utilized in line with the objects/purposes as stated in the respective Information Memorandum
without any deviations or variations in the stated use of proceeds.

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
LLP Identification Number (LLPIN): AAM-1179
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, plot No. C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | mindspacereit.com



V.

BUSINESS PARKS REIT

Security Description ISIN No BSE Scrip Code
5500 (Five Thousand and Five Hundred) secured, listed, | INEOCCU07074 | 974668
senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-
convertible debentures of face value of Rs. 10,00,000/-
(Rupees Ten Lakh) each (“Non-Convertible Debentures”)

approved the appointment of M/s Aabid & Co. as the Secretarial Auditor of Mindspace Business Parks
REIT for the financial year 2023-24.

Further, we have enclosed: -

Audited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements and Audited Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements of Mindspace REIT for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2023 and the Auditor
Report thereon of the Statutory Auditors pursuant to Regulations 51, 52 and 54 read with Para A of
Part B of Schedule Il of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“Listing Regulations”) and other regulations, if applicable; as Annexure 1.

Details of extent and nature of security (ies) created and maintained with respect to each of the
Debentures are set out at Note No. 15 of the Audited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements and
at Note No. 21 of the Audited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Mindspace REIT,
(pursuant to Regulation 54(2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations),
2015 as Annexure 2.

Security Cover Certificate pursuant to Regulation 54(3) of the SEBI LODR Regulations, as Annexure 3.

Statement indicating the utilisation of the issue proceeds and the statement of Nil material deviation of
for the quarter ended March 31, 2023, as Annexure 4.

The details of related party transactions are set out at Note No. 29 of the Audited Condensed Standalone
Financial Statements and at Note No. 48 of the Audited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
of Mindspace REIT, which are enclosed herewith as Annexure 5.

The Computation of Net Asset Value is set out on Page no. 12 of the Audited Condensed Standalone
Financial Statements and at page no. 14 Audited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, which
is enclosed as Annexure 6.

You are requested to note that the financial statements of the Manager for the year ended March 31,
2023, have not been disclosed, since there is no material erosion in the Manager’s net worth as on
March 31, 2023, compared to March 31, 2023, as assessed by Axis Trustee Services Limited, Trustee of
Mindspace REIT.

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
LLP Identification Number (LLPIN): AAM-1179
Regd. Office: Raheja Tower, plot No. C-30, Block ‘G’, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051
Phone: +91 — 22- 2656 4000 | mindspacereit.com



BUSINESS PARKS REIT

In accordance with Regulation 52 of the SEBI LODR Regulations, the Company would be publishing the
Audited Consolidated Financial Results for the quarter, half year and Year ended March 31, 2023 in the
newspapers.

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 52(7) and 52(7A) of SEBI LODR Regulations read with Chapter
IV of SEBI Operational Circular dated July 29, 2022, as amended, for listing obligations and disclosure
requirements for non-convertible securities, securitized debt instruments and/ or commercial paper,
kindly note that the proceeds of non- convertible securities issued by the Company and listed on the
Stock Exchanges have been utilised for the purpose disclosed in the respective Offer
Document/Placement Memorandum of the issue and there is no deviation or variation in the use of
proceeds of issue of non-convertible securities as compared to the objects of the issue for the quarter
ended March 31, 2023.

We also wish to inform you that record date for the distribution to unitholders for the quarter ended March
31, 2023, will be Wednesday, May 10, 2023, and the payment of distribution will be made on or before
Wednesday, May 17, 2023.

The above information shall also be made available on Mindspace REIT's website Vviz;
https://www.mindspacereit.com/home under investor relations tab.

Please take the same on your record.

Thanking you,
For and on behalf of K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
(acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Chanda Nikhi] Pigitally signed by

Chanda Nikhil
Ma kh |Ja Makhija Thadani
. Date: 2023.05.04
Thadani 18:30:57 +05'30"

Name: Chanda Makhija Thadani
Designation: Compliance Officer
Place: Mumbai

Encl: as above

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
LLP Identification Number (LLPIN): AAM-1179
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Annexure-1 & 2

D l 'tt Chartered Accountants
e OI e Lotus Corporate Park
1st Floor, Wing A-G

HaSkinS & se“s LI_P CTS No. 185/A, Jay Coach

Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON AUDIT OF ANNUAL CONDENSED STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND REVIEW OF QUARTERLY AND HALF YEARLY CONDENSED STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

To

The Governing Board

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (the “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Opinion and Conclusion

We have :
(a) audited the Condensed Standalone Financial statements of Mindspace Business Park REIT (“the REIT"/
“the Trust”) for the year ended March 31, 2023 which comprises of the following:

e the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023;

» the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for
the year ended 31 March 2023;

* the Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023;

the Condensed Standalone Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the year ended 31 March

2023;

the Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at 31 March 2023;

the Statement of Total Return at fair value for the year ended 31 March 2023;

the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2023; and

summary of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes

(b) reviewed the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements of the REIT which comprise of the (refer ‘Other
Matters’ section below):

e the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income) for
the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2023;

the Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2023;
the Statement of Total Return at fair value for the half year ended 31 March 2023;

the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2023; and
summary of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes.

These statements are included in the accompanying “Condensed Standalone Financial Statements” of the REIT, (“the
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements”), being submitted by the REIT pursuant to the requirements of
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time
to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016
dated December 29, 2016 (the “REIT regulations”) and Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

(a) Opinion on Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023:

i. is presented in accordance with the requirements the REIT regulations and Regulation 52 and Regulation 54
of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing
Regulations”); and

ii. gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 34 “Interim Financial
Reporting” (“Ind AS 34”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India to the extent not
inconsistent with the REIT Regulations, of the state of affairs of the REIT as at 31 March 2023 its profit

ncluding other comprehensive income, its cash flows, its changes in Unitholder’s equity, its net assets at

fainvvalue, total returns at fair value and net distributable cash flows and other financial information of the

REIT\for the year then ended,

¢ International Center, Tower 3, 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Eiphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India.

n No. AAB-8737)
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(b) Conclusion on Unaudited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and half year
ended March 31, 2023

With respect to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and half year ended March 31,
2023, based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph (b) of Auditor’s
Responsibilities section below, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and half year ended March 31, 2023, prepared in accordance
with the REIT Regulations, the Ind AS 34 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the
extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations, and has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed
in terms of the REIT Regulations and Listing Regulations, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or
that it contains any material misstatement.

Basis for Opinion on the Audited Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March
31, 2023

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing ("SAs”) issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (the “ICAI"). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in paragraph (a)
of Auditor’s Responsibilities section below. We are independent of the REIT in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAI together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Condensed Standalone
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2 which describes the Basis of preparation of condensed standalone financial statements
and Note 13(a)(i) which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound financial
instrument to comply with the REIT Regulations. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements is the responsibility of the Investment Manager (the
“"Management”) and has been approved by them for the issuance. The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been compiled from the related audited standalone financial statements.
This responsibility includes the preparation and presentation of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for
the quarter and year ended March 31, 2023 that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at 31 March 2023,
its profit/(loss)including other comprehensive income/(loss) and cash flows for the quarter, half year and year ended
31 March 2023, its changes in Unitholder’s equity for the year ended 31 March 2023, its net assets at fair value as
at 31 March 2023, its total return at fair value for the half year and year ended 31 March 2023, its net distributable
cash flows for the quarter, half year and year ended 31 March 2023 and other financial information of the REIT in
conformity with the REIT Regulations, Ind AS 34 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the
extent not inconsistent with REIT Regulations and in compliance with the REIT Regulations and Listing Regulations.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the
REIT and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Condensed Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements, the Investment Manager's is responsible for assessing
the REIT’s ability, to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate the REIT or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Investment Manager’s is also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the REIT.
Auditor’s Responsibilities
m of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
& £\

-".' Ou kij jectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Condensed Standalone Financial
(| :k nts for the year ended March 31, 2023 as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
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(b)

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Investment Manager.

» Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Investment Manager in terms
of the requirements specified under the REIT Regulations and Listing Regulations.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Investment Manager's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the REIT to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the REIT to cease to continue
as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial
Statements of the REIT to express an opinion on the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial Statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable
user of the Annual Condensed Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of
our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Annual Condensed Standalone
Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Review of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and half year ended
March 31, 2023

We conducted our review of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements for the quarter and half year
ended March 31, 2023 in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (“SRE”) 2410 ‘Review of
Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’, issued by the ICAI. A
review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of the Investment Manager's
personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters and applying analytical and other review
rocedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with SAs Act and

g
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Other Matter

e As stated in Note 35(a) of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements, the financial information for the
quarter and half year ended 31 March 2023 are the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of
the full financial year and the published year to date figures up to the third quarter and second quarter of the
current financial year which were subject to limited review by us. Our report on the Condensed Standalone
Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this matter.

e As stated in Note 35(b) of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements, the financial information for the
Quarter and Half Year ended March 31, 2022 are the balancing figures between the annual audited figures in
respect of the full financial year and the published year to date figures up to the third quarter and first half of
the previous financial year which were subject to limited review by us. Our report on the Statement is not
modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

e

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No. 49660

Date: May 04, 2023 UDIN: 230496t0B4Y EEE123]




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:INREIT/19-20/003

Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet

(all amounts in Rs, million unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Audited) (Audited)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Financial assets
- Investments 4 1,53,103 1,53,103
- Loans 5 29,879 21,268
- Other financial assets 6 564 263
Other non-current assets 7 2 4
Total non-current assets 1,83,548 1,74,638
Current assets
Financial assets
- Loans 8 1,980 5,000
- Cash and cash equivalents 9 2,984 2,814
- Other financial assets 10 4 559
Other current assets 11 8 9
Total current assets 4,976 8,382
Total assets 1,88,524 1,83,020
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Corpus 12 0 0
Unit capital 13 1,62,839 1,62,839
Other equity 14 3,202 2919
Total equity 1,66,041 1,65.758
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 15 19,892 11,422
- Other financial liabilities 16 540 271
Total non-current liabilities 20,432 11,692
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 17 1,996 4,997
- Trade payables 18
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and I 1
- total outstanding dues of Creditors other than micro and small
enterprises. 16 9
- Other financial liabilities 19 29 560
Other current liabilities 20 7 1
Current tax liabilities (net) 21 2 1
Total current liabilities 2,051 5,569
Total liabilities 22.483 17.262
Total equity and liabilities 1,88.,524 1,83.020
Significant accounting policies 3
See the accompanying notes to the condensed standalone financial statements 4-38
As per our report of even date attached.
For Deloittc Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Governing Board of
Chartered Accountants K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
Firm’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018 acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

/ux/xt&"’ “{/;\

S LTS NS

Yinod N. Rohira Preeti N. Chheda
Partner Mem Chief Executive Qfficer Chief Financial Officer
Membership number: 49660 DIN: DIN: 00460667 DIN: 08066703
Place: Mumbai Place: Munibai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : 04 May 2023 Date : 04 May 2023 Date : 04 May 2023 Date : 04 May 2023
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Standalone Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

A. Corpus
Balance as on 1 April 2021
Changes during the year
Balance as on 31 March 2022
Balance as on 1 April 2022
Changes during the year

Ameount

Closing balance as at 31 March 2023

B. Unit Capital
Balance as on 1 April 2021
Add : Changes during the year
Balance as on 31 March 2022
Balance as on 1 April 2022
Changes during the year

Amount
1,62,839

1,62,839

1,62,839

Closing balance as at 31 March 2023

1,62,839

C. Other equity

Particulars

Retained Earnings

Bulance as on 1 April 2021

Profit for the year ended 31 March 2022

Other comprehensive income for the year

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2021*
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2021*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2021*
Less: Distribution to Linitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2021 *

2.950
11,030

(2,853)
(2,728)
(2,728)
(2.752)

Balance at 31 March 2022

2,919

Balance as at 1 April 2022

Profit for the year ended 31 March 2023

Other comprehensive income for the year

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022*
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022*

Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2022*
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2022*

2,919
11,491
(2,734)
(2,811)
(2.817)
(2,.846)

Balance at 31 March 2023

3,202

*The distributions made by Mindspace REIT to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of

Mindspace REIT under the REIT Regulations.

As per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Goveming Board of
Chartered Accountants K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP

Firm’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018 (acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

e

Nilesh Shah

Partner
Membership number: 49660

ja

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai
Date : 04 May 2023 Date : 04 May 2023

N)E/ / /Luvi/(i' e e

Vinod N. Rohira Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00460667 DIN: 08066703

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : 04 May 2023 Date : 04 May 2023
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Statement of Net Assets at fair value

(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016

A) Statement of Net Assets at fair value

S.No Particulars Unit of As at 31 March 2023 (Audited) As at 31 March 2022 (Audited)
measurement Book Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
A Assets Rs in million 1,88,524 2,38,629 1,83,020 2,28,928
B Liabilities Rs in million 22,483 22483 17,262 17.262
C Net Assets (A-B) Rs in million 1,66,041 2,16,146 1,65,758 2,11,666
D No. of units Numbers 59,30.18.182 59.30.18.182 59.30,18.182 59.30.18,182
E NAV (C/D) Rs 280 364 280 357
Notes

1) Measurement of fair values:

The fair values of Investments in SPV are computed basis the fair value of Investment property, Property, plant and equipment, Investment property under
construction and Capital work-in-progress which are solely based on an independent valuation performed by an external property valuer ("independent
valuer"), having appropriately recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and category of the properties being valued.

Other assets include cash and cash equivalents and other working capital balances which are not factored in the discounted cashflow method used in
determining the fair value of investment property, investment property under development, property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and

intangibles

Valuation Technique

The fair value measurement for all of the Investment property, Property, plant and equipment, Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-
progress has been categorized as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used, The valuer has followed a Discounted Cash Flow
method, except for valuation of land for future development where the valuer has adopted Market Approach. The Discounted Cash Flow valuation model
considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated from the respective properties, taking into account the expected rental growth rate, vacancy
period, occupancy rate, and lease incentive costs. The expected net cash flows are discounted using the risk adjusted discount rates. Among other factors,
the discount rate estimation considers the quality of a building and its location (prime vs secondary), tenant credit quality, lease terms and investor return

expectations from such properties

2) Break up of Net asset value as at 31 March 2023

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Audited) (Audited)
Fair Value of Investments in SPVs 2,33,648 225278
Add: Other assets* 4,981 3,650
Less: Liabilities (22.,483) (17.262)
Net Assets 2,16,146 2,11.666

*Other assets includes cash and cash equivalents and other working capital balances which are not factored in the discounted cashflow method used in
determining the fair value of investment property, investment property under development, property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and

intangibles.

3) The Trust holds investment in SPVs which in turn hold the properties. Hence, the breakup of property wise fair values has been disclosed in the Condensed

Consolidated financial statements

B) Statement of Total Returns at fair value

S.No Particulars For the half year For the half year  For the half year For the year For the year
ended ended ended ended ended
31 March 2023 30 September 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Unaudited)* (Unaudited) (Unaudited)* (Audited) (Audited)
A Total comprehensive income 5,860 5,631 5,508 11,491 11,030
B Add : Changes in fair value not 2,907 3,439 2,851 6,346 10,020
recognised in the other comprehensive
income and other adjustments
C=(A+B) Total Return 8.767 9.069 8.359 17,837 21,050

Note: Total Return for the purpose of Standalone financials has been considered based on the total return of Mindspace REIT on a consolidated basis

adjusted for consolidation adjustments.
*refer note 35
As per our report of even date attached,

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018

pt

Nilesh Shah
Pariner
Membership number: 49660

Place: Mumbai
Date : 04 May 2023

Place: Mumbai
May 2023

For and on behalf of the Governing Board of
_ K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
“(actipg as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

Vinod N. Rohira
Chief Executive O
DIN: 00460667

Place: Mumbai
Date : 04 May 202

Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 08066703

Place: Mumbai
Date : 04 May 2023



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

1

Mindspace REIT Information

Mindspace Business Parks REIT (‘Mindspace REIT’) was set up on 18 November 2019 at Mumbai, Maharashtra, India as a contributory, determinate and
irevocable trust under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882, pursuant to a trust deed dated 18 November 2019 Mindspace REIT was registered with SEBI
on 10 December 2019, at Mumbai as a REIT pursuant to the REIT Regulations having registration number IN/REIT/19-20/0003. The Trust's principal place of
business address is at Raheja Tower, Level 8, Block ‘G’, C-30, Bandra Kurla Complex, Mumbai - 400 051
Anbee Constructions LLP (ACL) and Cape Trading LLP (*CTL’) are the sponsors of Mindspace REIT. The Trustee to Mindspace REIT is Axis Trustee Services
Limited (the “Trustee’) and the Manager for Mindspace REIT is K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (the ‘Manager’)

The objectives and principal activity of Mindspace REIT is to carry on the activity of a real estate investment trust, as permissible under the REIT Regulations, to
raise funds through the REIT, to make investments in accordance with the REIT Regulations and the investment strategy and to carry on the activities as may be
required for operating the REIT, including incidental and ancillary matters thereto.

The units of the Trust were listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) on 7 August 2020.
The brief activities and shareholding pattem of the SPVs are provided below:

Name of the SPV

Activities

Equity Shareholding (in percentage)
as at 31 March 2023

Equity Shareholding (in percentage)
as at 31 March 2022

Mindspace Business Parks
Private Limited

The SPV is engaged in real estate
development projects such as Special
Economic  Zone (SEZ), Information
Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli
(Navi Mumbai), Pune and Pocharam
(Hyderabad). The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park. It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi
Mumbai from 9 April 2013

Mindspace
REIT : 100%

Mindspace
REIT : 100%

Gigaplex Estate Private
Limited

The SPV is engaged in real estate
development projects such as Special
Economic  Zone (SEZ), Information
Technology Parks and other commercial
assets. The SPV has its projects in Airoli
(Navi Mumbai) The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park, It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi
Mumbai from 19 April 2016

Mindspace
REIT : 100%

Mindspace
REIT : 100%




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Name of the SPV

Activities

Equity Shareholding (in percentage)
as at 31 March 2023

Equity Shareholding (in percentage)
as at 31 March 2022

Sundew Properties Limited

The SPV is engaged in development and
leasing/licensing of IT park, SEZ to
different customers in Hyderabad.

Mindspace

REIT : 89%

Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation Limited (11%)

Mindspace

REIT : 89%

Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation Limited (11%)*

Intime Properties Limited

The SPV is engaged in development and
leasing/licensing of IT park to different
customers in Hyderabad.

Mindspace

REIT : 89%

Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation Limited (11%)

Mindspace

REIT : 89%

Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation Limited (11%)*

K. Raheja IT Park
(Hyderabad) Limited

The SPV is engaged in development and
leasing/licensing of IT park to different
customers in Hyderabad.

Mindspace

REIT : 89%

Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation Limited (11%)

Mindspace

REIT : 89%

Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation Limited (11%)*

KRC Infrastructure And
Projects Private Limited

The SPV is engaged in real estate
development projects such as Special
Economic Zone (SEZ) and Information
Technology Parks. The SPV has its project
in Kharadi Pune.The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Kharadi,
Pune from 1 June 2019.

The SPV is also engaged in Facility
Management services.

Mindspace
REIT : 100%

Mindspace
REIT : 100%

Avacado Properties and
Trading Private Limited

customers in Paradigm building at Malad-
Mumbai and is being maintained and
operated by the SPV. The SPV also has a
commercial  project
Complex. Mumbai

in Bandra Kurla

The SPV is engaged in development and|Mindspace Mindspace
Horizonview Properties leasing/licensing of IT park to different| REIT - 100% REIT : 100%
Private Limited customers in Chennai.
The SPV has developed an Industrial park|Mindspace Mindspace
for the purpose of letting out to different| REIT : 100% REIT : 100%

* Pursuant to transmission of shares from Andhra Pradesh Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited (APIIC) to Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure
Corporation Limited (TSIIC) effective December 30, 2021




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalene Financial Statements
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

2

a)

b)

c)

d)

Basis of Preparation

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks REIT comprises the Condensed Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023,
the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the
quarter, half year and year ended 31 March 2023, the Condensed Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023, the Statement of
Net Distributable Cashflows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT for the quarter, half year and year ended 31 March 2023, the Statement of Net Assets at Fair
Value as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value for the half year and year ended 31 March 2023 and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and select explanatory information and other additional financial disclosures

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular No.
CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 (“the REIT regulations"); Regulation 52 and Regulation 54 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 ("Listing Regulations"); Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting”, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent
with REIT regulations. (refer note 13 on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 — Financial Instruments:
Presentation)

The accounting policies adopted and methods of computation followed are consistent with those of the previous financial year

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Governing Board of the Manager on 04
May 2023.

Statement of compliance to Ind-AS

These Condensed Standalone financial statements for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) to
the extent not inconsistent with the REIT regulations as more fully described above and Note 13 to the condensed standalone financial statements.

Significant accounting policies

Functional and Presentation Currency
The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is also Mindspace REIT functional currency in which Mindspace
REIT operates. All financial information presented in Indian Rupees has been rounded off to the nearest million except otherwise stated

Basis of measurement
These Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting
policy regarding financial instcument) measured at fair values.

Use of judgments and estimates

The preparation of the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS) requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from
those eslimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates
are revised and in any future periods affected

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Condensed
Standalone Financial Statements is included in the following notes:

(i) Presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” in accordance with the SEBI REIT Regulations instead of compound instrument (Note no 13)

(ii)mpairment and Fair valuation of Investments in SPVs and impairment of loans to SPVs.
(11i) recognition and measurement of provisions for contingencies and disclosure of contingent liabilities (Note 30 (a))

Current versus non-current classification

Mindspace REIT presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification:

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
Mindspace REIT classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Mindspace REIT has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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€)

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Measurement of fair values

Mindspace REIT accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
Mindspace REIT has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.

Mindspace REIT regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is used to measure fair values then the
finance team assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including
the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace REIT uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement date

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e
derived from prices)

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is
categorised In its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement

Impairment of assets

Mindspace REIT assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the trust estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount of the assets (or where applicable that of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs) is estimated
as the higher of its net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use
of the assets and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the camying amount of an asset or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount, Impairment loss is recognised in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Asset Acquisition

If the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets does not constitute a business, Mindspace REIT identifies and recognises the individual identifiable assets
acquired (including those assets that meet the definition of, and recognition criteria for, intangible assets in Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets) and liabilities assumed
The cost of the group is allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase and no goodwill
is recognised

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions Exchange differences arising on foreign
exchange transactions settled during the period/ year are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the period/ year

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the end of the period and not covered by forward contracts, are
translated at the end of the period at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Condensed Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss. Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost

Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by Mindspace REIT are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument A conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Trust's own equity instruments is an equity instrument

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This
amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity
date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of the
gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability component and are amortised over the lives of the convertible instrument using the effective interest method

Embedded derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if:
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.
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3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

a)

Tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. It is recognised in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss except to
the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in equity and other comprehensive income respectively

a) Current tax
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the period and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in
respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid after considering the uncertainty, if any,
related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by end of reporting period

b) Deferred tax
Deferred tax asset/ liability is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Condensed Standalone
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which Mindspace REIT expects, at
the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable thal
sufticient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities, and they relate to income taxes
levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously,

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when Mindspace REIT has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Trust will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration net of recoveries if any, required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resources

When there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made

A contingent asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspace REIT.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates

Investment in SPVs

The Company has elected to recognize its investments in SPVs at cost in accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’. The
details of such investments are given in Note 4.

Assets representing investments in SPVs are reviewed for impairment.whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amount may not be
recoverable, Such circumstances include, though are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the
economic environment.

Financial instruments

1 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when Mindspace REIT becomes party to a contract embodying the related financial instruments, All
financial assets, financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from as the case may be,
the fair value of such assets or liabilities, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

2 Financial assets:

Classification of financial assets:

(1) Mindspace REIT classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Statement of Profit and Loss), and
- those measured at amortised cost

(i) The classification is done depending upon Mindspace REIT business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows

(iii)  For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held.

(iv)  Mindspace REIT reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business mode! for managing those assets changes
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b)

)

d)

3.10

3.11

3.12

Subsequent Measurement

(i) Investment in Debt instruments:
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on Mindspace REIT business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Trust classifies its debt instruments:

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Impairment of financial assets:
The Mindspace REIT applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, lease receivables,
trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset. For trade receivables, the Mindspace Group measures the loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the
Mindspace Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109, This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix
which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information
Derecognition of financial assets:
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
(i) theright to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or
(1) Mindspace REIT has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; and
Mindspace REIT has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
Mindspace REIT has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (other than investments in equity instruments at FVOCI), the differences between the carrying
amounts measured at the date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. Any interest in transferred
financial assets that is created or retained by Mindspace REIT is recognised as a separate asset or liability

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(a) Classification as debt or equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by Mindspace REIT are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial Liabilities

Recognition, measurement and classification
Financial liabilities are classified as either held at a) fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss, or b) at amortised cost. Management determines the
classification of its financial liabilities at the time of initial recognition or, where applicable, at the time of reclassification

Mindspace REIT financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments. Subsequent measurement of
financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Statement of Profit and Loss or at amortised cost. All changes in fair value of
financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, Amortised cost category is applicable to loans and borrowings,
trade and other payables. After initial recognition the financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate method,

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires, Gains and losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract are measured initially at the fair value and in accordance with Ind AS 109 unless on a case to case basis Mindspace REIT elects to
account for financial guarantee as Insurance Contracts as specified under Ind AS 104,

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. This inter alia involves discounting of the consideration due to the present value
if payment extends beyond normal credit terms

Revenue is recognised when recovery of the consideration is probable and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably
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3.13

3.14

3.15

3.17

3.19

3.20

3.21

Recognition of dividend income, interest income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT s right to receive payment is established

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset

In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired). However, for
financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the eftective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset
which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial instrument to the amortised cost of the financial liability. In calculating interest expense, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost of the liability.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits, other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

Cash distribution to unit holders

Mindspace REIT recognises a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has been created. As per
the REIT Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Governing Board of the Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in
equity

Condensed Standalone Statement of Cash flows
Cash flow 1s reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities ot Mindspace REIT are segregated

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Mindspace REIT's cash management,

Subsequent events

The Condensed Standalone Financial Statements are adjusted (o reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the Financial Statements are issued
The Financial Statements have their own date of authorisation. Therefore. when preparing the Financial Statements, management considers events up to the date of
authorisation of these financial statements

Earnings per unit

The basic earnings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to the unit holders of the REIT by the weighted average number of units
outstanding during the reporting period. The number of units used in computing diluted eamings/ (loss) per unit comprises the weighted average units considered
for deriving basic earnings/ (loss) per unit and also the weighted average number of units which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential
units

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing diluted eamnings
per unit, only potential equity units that are dilutive and which either reduces eamnings per share or increase loss per units are included.

Earnings before finance costs and tax

Mindspace REIT has elected to present eamings before finance cosl and tax as a separate line item on the face of the Condensed Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss. Mindspace REIT measures earnings before finance cost and tax on the basis of profit/ (Joss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, Mindspace
REIT does not include finance costs and tax expense

Errors and estimates

Mindspace REIT revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and reliable
information to the users of the Financial Statement. Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively,

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in
the period(s) of change

Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity of the earliest prior period in which the
error is discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period presented are also restated

Distributions

The Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT are based on the cash flows generated from Mindspace REIT’s assets and investments.

In terms of the Distribution Policy and the REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs is required to be distributed to Mindspace
REIT, in proportion of their shareholding in the Asset SPV, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act. Presently, NDCF to be received by Mindspace
REIT from the Asset SPVs may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback from the
Asset SPVs, sale proceeds out of disposal of investments if any or assets directly held by Mindspace REIT or as specifically permitted under the Trust Deed or in
such other form as may be permissible under the applicable law.

The Manager is required to and shall declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Mindspace REIT as distributions (“REIT Distributions™) to the
Unitholders. Such REIT Distributions shall be declared and made for every quarter of a Financial Year
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3.22 New and amended standards
(a) The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022 to amend the

(b

~

following Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2022, Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to Ind AS 103

- The amendments replaced the reference to the ICAI’s “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Stalements under Indian Accounting
Standards™ with the reference to the “Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard” without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business Combinations to avoid the issue of potential ‘day
2” gains or losses arising for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind AS 37, if incurred separately. It has also been clarified that the existing guidance in Ind AS 103 for contingent assets
would not be affected by replacing the reference to the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements under Indian Accounting
Standards.

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use ~ Amendments to Ind AS 16

The amendments modified paragraph 17(e) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale procceds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not
be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment

- Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to Ind AS 37

The amendments to Ind AS 37 specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making. The amendments
apply a “directly related cost approach” The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs for example
direct labour and materials and an allocation of other costs directly related to contract activities for example an allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling that contract. General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded
unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.

There were certain amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first time for the year ended 31 March 2023, but either the same
are not relevant or do not have an impact on the standalone financial statements of the REIT

On March 31, 2023, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”) amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose
financial statements. Mindspace REIT does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in ils financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed
the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies (o transactions that, on
initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. Mindspace REIT does not expect this amendment to have any significant
impact in its financial statements

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates
has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured
in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. Mindspace REIT does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.
Mindspace REIT has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.
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4 Non-current investments
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Unquoted Investments in SPVs (at cost)
(refer note below)

- 39,75,000 (31 March 2022: 39,75,000) equity shares of Avacado Properties 9,482 9,482
and Trading Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

- 11,765 (31 March 2022: 11,765) equity shares of Horizonview Properties 0 0
Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

- 5,88,235 (31 March 2022: 5,88,235) equity shares of KRC Infrastructure 6,868 6,868
And Projects Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

- 1,96,01,403 (31 March 2022: 1,96,01,403) equity shares of Gigaplex Estate 13,121 13,121
Private Limited of Rs.1 each, fully paid up

- 2,50,71,875 (31 March 2022: 2,50,71,875) equity shares of Sundew 33,722 33,722
Properties Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

- 12,03,033 (31 March 2022: 12,03,033) equity shares of Intime Properties 15,478 15,478
Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

-1,78,00,000 (31 March 2022: 1,78,00,000) equity shares of K. Raheja IT 25,618 25,618
Park (Hyderabad) Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

- 81,513 (31 March 2022: 81,513) equity shares of Mindspace Business Parks 48814 48,814

Private Limited of Rs.10 each, fully paid up

Total 1,53,103 1,53,103

Note: The Trust had issued units as consideration to acquire these investments wherein the tradable REIT Unit has been
issued at Rs 275 each.
Refer Note 1 for details of % shareholding in the SPVs held by Mindspace REIT.
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Loans (Non current)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to SPVs (Refer Note 29) 29,879 21,268
29,879 21.268

Note : Mindspace REIT has given loan amounting Rs. 50,615 million and repayment done by SPVs amounting Rs,
45,025 million during the year ended 31 March 2023 to Gigaplex, Avacado , Horizonview, Sundew, KRC Infra,
MBPPL and KRIT and the outstanding balance as at end of 31 March 2023 is Rs. 31,859 million (including Loans to
SPVs of current nature amounting to Rs. 1,980 million) (31 March 2022 Rs. 26,268 million, including Loans to SPVs
of current nature amounting to Rs. 5,000 million) ( refer note 8).

Security: Unsecured

Interest : 7.22% - 8.40% per annum for the year ended 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022 - 7.10% - 7.50% per annum) in
accordance with interest rate policy adopted by Mindspace REIT.

Terms of repayment:

a) Bullet repayment of Rs. 9,969 million on date falling 15 years from the first disbursement date or such other date as
may be mutually agreed between the Lender and the Borrower in writing. (31 March 2022 - 9,853 million)

b) Bullet repayment of Rs.5,000 million was made on 29 April 2022 during the year ended 31 March, 2023. The same
was classified as current loans as on 31 March 2022 (refer note 8) (31 March 2022 - 5,000 million)

¢) Bullet repayment of Rs.4.470 million is due on 17 May 2024. (31 March 2022 - 4,470 million)

d) Bullet repayment of Rs.1,980 million is due on 16 December 2023 and accordingly the same has been classified as
current as on 31 March 2023. (31 March 2022 - 1,980 million) (refer note 8)

e) Bullet repayment of Rs.4,965 million is due on 31 December 2024, (31 March 2022 - 4965 million)

f) Bullet repayment of Rs.4.975 million is due on 27 July 2027, (31 March 2022 - NIL)

g) Bullet repayment of Rs.983 million was made on 20 March 2023 during the year ended 31 March, 2023. (31 March
2022 - NIL) ( refer nole 8)

h) Bullet repayment of Rs.5,500 million is due on 13 April 2026. (31 March 2022 - NIL)

Note: There are no Loans or Advances to Promoters, KMPs or related parties repayable on demand or having no terms
or period of repayment.

Other financial assets (Non-current)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable on loan to SPVs 530 243
Other Receivables from related parties (refer Note 29) 31 18
Deposits 3 2
564 263

Other Non-current assets

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prepaid Expenses 2 4
2 4




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

8 Loans (Current)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to SPVs- refer Note 5 and 29 1,980 5,000
1,980 5,000
9 Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash on hand - -
Balances with banks
- in current accounts* 2.984 2.814
2,984 2,814

*Includes balance with banks of Rs. 0 million (31 March 2022 Rs. 1 million ) for unpaid distributions.

10 Other current financial assets

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable on loan to SPVs - 559

Other Receivables from related parties (refer Note 29) 4 -
4 559
11 Other current assets
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good

Advance for supply of goods and rendering of services
Prepaid Expenses

Balances with government authorities

OO O\ =
O|— W
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Corpus

Corpus Amount
As at 1 April 2021 0
Additions during the year -
As at 31 March 2022 0
As at 1 April 2022 0
Additions during the year -
Closing Balance as at 31 March 2023 0
Unit Capital

Unit Capital No. Amount
As at 1 April 2021 59,30,18,182 1,62,839
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2022 59.30,18.182 1,62,839
As at 1 April 2022 59,30,18,182 1,62,839
Movement during the year - -
Closing Balance as at 31 March 2023 59.30.18,182 1,62.839

Terms/rights attached to units and other disclosures

Mindspace REIT has only one class of Units. Each Unit represents an undivided beneficial interest in Mindspace REIT. Each holder of Units
is entitled to one vote per unit. The Unitholders have the right to receive at least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least
once in every six months in each financial year in accordance with the REIT Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Manager approves
distributions. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of Units held by the Unitholders. Mindspace REIT declares and pays
distributions in Indian Rupees.

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations, Mindspace REIT is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than 90% of the net
distributable cash flows of Mindspace REIT for each financial year. Accordingly, a portion of the Unit Capital contains a contractual
obligation of the Mindspace REIT to pay to its Unitholders cash distributions. Hence, the Unit Capital is a compound financial instrument
which contains equity and liability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation. However, in accordance
with SEBI Circulars (No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 and No. CIR/IMD/DF/141/2016 dated 26 December 2016) issued
under the REIT Regulations, the Unitholders’ funds have been presented as “Equity” in order to comply with the requirements of Section H of
Annexure A to the SEBI Circular dated 26 December 2016 dealing with the minimum presentation and disclosure requirements for key
financial statements. Consistent with Unit Capital being classified as equity, the distributions to Unitholders is also presented in Statement of
Changes in Unitholders’ Equity when the distributions are approved by the Governing Board of the Investment Manager.

Unitholders holding more than 5 percent Units in Mindspace REIT

Name of the unitholder As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No of Units % holding No of Units % holding

Platinum Illumination A 2018 Trust 5,43,75,000 9.17% 5,43,75,000 9.17%
Anbee Constructions LLP 3,54,04,890 5.97% 3,54,04,890 5.97%
Cape Trading LLP 3,54,04,890 5.97% 3,54,04,890 5.97%
Chandru Lachmandas Raheja 3,26.34,433 5.50% 3,26,34,433 5.50%
Capstan Trading LLP 4,10,95,719 6.93% 4,10,95,719 6.93%
Casa Maria Properties LLP 4,68,20,719 7.90% 4,10,95,719 6.93%
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 4,10,95,719 6.93% 4,10,95,719 6.93%
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 4,19,37,069 7.07% 3,62,12,069 6.11%
K Raheja Corp Private Limited 3,65,96,296 6.17% 3,65,96,296 6.17%

The Trust has not allotted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus units nor has it bought back any class of units from the date of registration
till the balance sheet date. Further, the Trust had issued an aggregate of 36,363,600 Units for cash at Rs. 275 per unit and 556,654,582 Units
at a price of Rs. 275 per unit for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date.

Other Equity
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Reserves and Surplus
Retained earnings* 3,202 2919
3,202 2919

*Refer Condensed Standalone Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity for detailed movement in other equity balances.

Retained earnings

The cumulative gain or loss arising from the operations which is retained and is recognized and accumulated under the heading of retained
eamings. At the end of the period/ year, the profit after tax is transferred from the condened standalone statement of profit and loss to the
retained eamings account,
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Note 1:

Borrowings

Particulars
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected

— market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures ("Market Linked Debentures / MLD

Series 27) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2022 : 3,730 million) (refer

Note 1) 3,741 3,730
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures

(NCD Series 1) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2022 : 1,988 million)

(refer Note 2) - 1,988
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures

(NCD Series 2) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2022 : 750 million) (refer

Note 3) 750 750
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures

(NCD Series 3) (net of issue expenses, al amortised cost) (31 March 2022 : 4,954 million)

(refer Note 4) 4,971 4,954
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures

(NCD Series 4) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2022 : Nil) (refer Note 5)

4,969 -
Secured, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non-
convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1) (net of issue expenses, al amortised
cost) (31 March 2022 : Nil) (refer Note 6) 5,461 :
19,892 11,422

In March 2021, Mindspace REIT issued 3,750 10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, principal protected
— market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 27) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000
(Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 3,750,000,000 (Indian Rupees three thousand seven hundred fifty millions only). The tenure of
the said MLD Series 2 is 38 months from 18 March 2021, being date of allotment of the MLD Series 2 and coupon, if any shall be payable on
the Scheduled Redemption Date i.e. on maturity on 17 May 2024. The coupon payoff structure is linked to condition where the payoff will be
fixed on the final fixing date i.e. 16 April 2024. If identified 10 year G-Sec's last traded price as on final fixing date is greater than 25% of its
last traded price as on initial fixing date i.e. 18 March 2021, the coupon rate will be 6.65% p.a. If identified 10 year G-Sec’s last traded price
as on final fixing date is less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date, the coupon rate will be zero percent. As per
the valuers report in respect of valuation of these MLD Series 2, the probability of occurrence of such an event (last traded price of identified
10 year G-Sec on final fixing date being less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price on initial fixing date) is remote and hence the value of
the option considered as zero.

This MLD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.

Security terms

MLD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the Debenture
Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being created by way of equitable mortgage on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 13,71,442 Sq. Ft. or
thereabouts in buildings no. 12A and Units of Building 12B of Madhapur, Hyderabad (approx. 12,69,140 sq. ft. in building no.12A and
approx. 1,02,302 sq. ft in building no. 12B) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated
land admeasuring approximately 29,842 sq. mtrs on which the said two building no.12A and 12B, out of all those picces and parcels of larger
land that are situated, lying and being in Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad (“Mortgaged
Properties™), for MLD Series 2.

b) First ranking exclusive charge created by way of a hypothecation over the Hypothecated Properties of MLD Series 2.

¢) A charge on the escrow account created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties of Sundew shall be received, save and except
any common area maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

d) Corporate guarantee excoutcd by Sundew.
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Note 2 :

Note 3 :

Redemption terms:
a) MLD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet payment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024.

b) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded
after any rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 23 bps for each upgrade. The Investors shall have the right to accelerate the
MLD Series 2 if the rating is downgraded to A+.

¢) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days notice to
the Issuer require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory
redemption amount in respect of each Debenture

In December 2020, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-
convertible debentures (“NCD Series 17) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 2,000,000,000
(Indian Rupees two thousand millions only) with a coupon rate of 6.45% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full quarter
from the date of allotment i.e. 31 March 2021, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 16 December 2023. The tenure
of the said NCD Series | is 36 months from 17 December 2020, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 1 was listed on BSE Limited on 21 December 2020,

Security terms
NCD Series 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of
approximately 414,599 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no. 1 and 5 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 43,200 sq. ft. in building no. 1 and
approx. 371,399 in building no. 5) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land
admeasuring approximately 18,264 sq. mtrs on which the said two building no. 1 and 5, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that
are situated, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune ("Mortgaged Properties™) of NCD Series 1.

b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received save and except any common area
maintenance charges payable to MBBPL with respect to the maintenance of the morigaged properties.
¢) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 1 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 36 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 16 December 2023 and
accordingly the same has been classified as current maturities of long term borrowings as on 31 March 2023 (refer note 17)

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢} The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded
after any rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to
the Issuer require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption
amount in respect of each debenture.

In March 2021, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 750 secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable, non-
convertible debentures (“NCD Series 2”) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 750,000,000
(Indian Rupees seven hundred fifty millions only) with a coupon rate of 6.6861% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first full
quarter from the date of allotment i.e. 30 June 2021, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 17 May 2024, The tenure
of the said NCD Series 2 is 38 months from 18 March 2021, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 2 was listed on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021.
Security terms
NCD Series 2 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable
area of approximately 151,460 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in building no. 4 of Commerzone Yerawada together with the proportionate undivided
right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 9,561 sq. mtrs on which the said building, out of all
those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated. lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (*“Mortgaged
Properties”) of NCD Series 2

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any
common area maintenance charges payable to MBPPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties,

c) Corporate guarantee executed by MBPPL.
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Note 4 :

Note 5 :

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 2 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 17 May 2024.

b} Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 June, 2021) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded
after any rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to
the Issuer require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption
amount in respect of each debenture.

In February 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 35,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferable,
redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“NCD Series 37) having face value of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs.
5,000,000,000 (Indian Rupees five thousand millions only) with a coupon rate of 6.35% p-a, Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of
cach debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day ,be prorated on an actual/ actuat basis for the actual number of days in the
Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the
Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The Issuer hereby aknowledges and agrees that there shall be no moratorium period for
the payment of Coupon.The first Coupon payment Date is 31 March 2022, with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 31
December 2024. The tenure of the said NCD Series 3 is 35 months from 1 February 2022, being date of allotment.

This NCD Series 3 was listed on BSE Limited on February 04, 2022,
Security terms

NCD Series 3 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage on the carpet area of approximately 5,52,974 Sq. Ft. ( save and
except entire 2nd floor admeasuring 11,883 Sq. Ft. carpet area in building no. 2) (the building no. 2 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with
proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 2 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of Airoli (West) in
appurtenant to Building 2 and all erections. The Building 2 is situated on a portion of the Mortgage Land admeasuring 8.04 Hectares, which
portion is notified as a Special Economic Zone & first and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage on the identified units
with aggregating to carpet area of approximately 4.61,527 Sq. Ft. (identified units of building no. 3 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with
proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 3 together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in
appurtenant to Building 3 and all erections (“Mortgaged Properties™) of NCD Series 3 as turther detailed in transaction documents.

A first ranking pari passu charge by way of a simple mortgage over the Mortgaged Land as further detailed in transaction documents.

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any
common area maintenance charges payable to Gigaplex with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Gigaplex Estate Private Limited,

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 3 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 35 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 31 December, 2024.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2022) until the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded
after any rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days notice to
the Issuer require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption
amount in respect of each debenture,

In July 2022, Mindspace Business Park REIT issued 5,000 senior, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable, transferrable, redeemable,
non-convertible debentures of face value of INR 1,000,000 (Indian Rupees One Million) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto
INR 5,000,000,000/- (Indian Rupees five thousand millions only) with a coupon rate of 7.95% p.a. Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value
of each debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day, be prorated on an actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the
Coupon Period and be payable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name is appearing on the
Register of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date. The first Coupon payment Date is 30 Sept 2022, with last coupon payment on the
scheduled redemption date i.e. 27 July 2027. The tenure of the said NCD Series 4 is 60 months.

This NCD Series 4 was listed on BSE Limited on July 29, 2022
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Note 6 :

Security terms
NCD Series 4 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of an equitable mortgage on carpet area of approximately 779,466 sq ft in Building
12 D (identified units in building) of Madhapur Hyderabad, along with the common areas, usage and access rights appurtenant to the units
mortgaged in Building 12D as mentioned in the trust deet, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 17414.77
square metres (equivalent to 4.30 acres). forming part of a portion of land admeasuring 14.02 hectares equivalent to 34.64 acres or thereabout
declared as “Special Economic Zone® land from and out of the larger piece of land bearing Survey no. 64(part), lying, being and situated at
Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad.

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created, in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be received, save and except any
common area maintenance charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Sundew.

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series 4 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 60 months from the date of allotment, i.e. 27 July, 2027.

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 30 September, 2022) until the scheduled redemption
date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded
after any rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade,

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to
the Issuer require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption
amount in respect of each debenture.

On 15 March 2023. Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 55000 Green Debt Securities in the form of listed, rated, secured, non-
cumulative, taxable, transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures (“Mindspace REIT Green Bond [”) having nominal value of Rs.
1,00,000 (Rupees One lakh only) each, amounting to Rs. 5,500,000,000 (Rupees Five thousand five hundred millions only) with a coupon rate
of 8.02% p.a. payable quarterly beginning from the end of first quarter from the date of allotment ie. 15 March 2023, with last coupon
payment on the scheduled redemption date i.e. 13 April 2026. The tenure of the said Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 is 3 year and 30 days
from 15 March 2023, being date of allotment. The date of payment of first coupon is 31 March 23.

Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 was listed on BSE Limited on March 16, 2023,

Security terms

Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the
NCD Holders) as more particularly described in the transaction documents, summarized as follows:

a) First and exclusive charge registered by way of equitable mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area
of approximately 1.067 million square feet or thereabouts in buildings no, 5B and 9 of Madhapur Hyderabad (approx. 245,977 sq. ft. in
building no. 5B and approx. 821,717 building no. 9) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in (i) the notionally
demarcated land admeasuring approximately 7,169.90 square metres (equivalent to 1.7717 acres) on which Building 5B is situated, and (ii)
the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 16,871.82 square metres (equivalent to 4.17 acres) on which Building 9 is situated.

b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties shall be payable to Intime Properties Limited.

¢) Corporate guarantee executed by Intime Properties Limited.

Redemption terms:
a) Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 years and 30 days from the date of allotment
(date of allotment being 15 March 2023 and date of redemption being 13 April 2026).

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter in a year (starting from 31 March, 2023) until the scheduled redemption date and
on the scheduled redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating is upgraded
after any rating downgrade, the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days’ notice to
the Issuer require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption
amount in respect of each debenture.

Refer Note 38 for Ratio disclosure.




MINDSPPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

16 Other financial liabilities

Particulars
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest accrued but not due on debentures 522 258
Other pavables 18 13
540 271
17 Borrowings (current)
Particulars
As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Note 1 :

Note 2 :

Secured

Current maturities of long-term debt

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, guaranteed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated,

principal protected — market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked

Debentures / MLD Series 17) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2022 : 4,997

million) (refer Note 1 below) - 4.997
Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated, redeemable non-convertible debentures

(NCD Series 1) (net of issue expenses, at amortised cost) (31 March 2022 : 1,988 million)

(refer Note 15(2)) 1,996 -

Unsecured
Commercial Paper (31 March 2022 : Nil) (refer Note 2 below)

1,996 4,997

In September 2020. Mindspace REIT issued 3,000 10 vear G-Sec linked secured, listed, guaranteed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated,
principal protected — market linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 17) having face value
of Rs. 10,00,000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) each, amounting to Rs. 5,000,000,000 (Indian Rupees five thousand millions only). The tenure of the
said MLD Series 1 is 577 days from 29 September 2020, being date of allotment of the MLD Series 1 and coupon, if any shall be payable on
the Scheduled Redemption Date i.e. on maturity on 29 April 2022. The coupon payoff structure is linked to condition where the payoff will be
fixed on the final fixing date i.e. 30 March 2022. If identified 10 year G-Sec's last traded price as on final fixing date is greater than 25% of its
last traded price as on initial fixing date i.e. 29 September 2020, the coupon rate will be 6.80% p.a. If identified 10 year G-Sec’s last traded
price as on final fixing date is less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price as on initial fixing date, the coupon rate will be zero percent. As
per the valuers report in respect of valuation of MLD Series 1, the probability of occurrence of such an event (last traded price of identified 10
year G-Sec on final fixing date being less than or equal to 25% of its last traded price on initial fixing date) is remote and hence the value of
the option considered as zero.

This MLD Series 1 was listed on BSE Limited on 13 October 2020, During the period, principal and interest is paid on 29 April 2022.

Security terms
MLD Series 1 were secured by each of the following security in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the Debenture
Holders):

a) First and exclusive charge was registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable
area of approximately 974,500 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no. 6, 7 and 8 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 178,569 sq ft. in building
no. 6, approx. 371,799 sq. ft. in building no. 7 and approx. 424,132 in building no. 8) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and
interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 25,313 sq. mtrs on which the said three building no. 6, 7 and 8, out of
all those pieces and parcels of farger land are situate, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged
Properties™) of MLD Series 1.

b) A charge on the escrow account in which receivables of the Mortgaged Properties of MBPPL would have been received.

¢) Corporate guarantee was executed by MBPPL.

Redemption terms:

a) MLD Series | were redeemable by way of bullet payment at the end of 577 days from the date of allotment, i.e. 29 April 2022 and
accordingly the same has been redeemed,

b} The Coupon would have been increased by 25 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency. In case rating was
upgraded after any rating downgrade, the Coupon would have been decreased by 25 bps for each upgrade. The Investors were having the
right to accelerate the MLD Series 1 if the rating was downgraded to A+.

¢) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event, the Debenture Trustee may, by issuing not less than 30 (thirty) business days notice to
the Issuer require the Issuer to redeem in full, all the Debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory
redemption amount in respect of each Debenture.

On 20 December 2022, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issued 2,000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs. 5,00,000 (Rupees five
lakhs only) each, at a discount of 7.2% per arnum to the face value. The discounted amount raised by the REIT through MREIT CP/1 was
Rs. 982,556,000 (Rupees nine hundred eighty three millions only) and the value payable on maturity is Rs. 1000,000,000 (Rupees one
thousand millions only). Discount on Commercial papers is amortized over the tenor of the underlying instrument. The commercial P%;\\

were listed on BSE and matured and repaid on 20 March 2023. 7 SKi Ng X
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

18 Trade payables

Particulars

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payable
- Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 1 |
- Total outstanding dues other than micro and small enterprises 16 9
17 10
19 Other financial liabilities (current)
Particulars
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest accrued but not due on debentures 3 523
Interest Accrued and due on others 0 0
Unpaid Distributions 0 1
Other liabilities
- to related partv* 26 36
29 60
* Expense of Rs. 17 million (31 March 2022 Rs. 16 million) is payable to the Manager for Mindspace REIT Management Fees.
20 Other current liabilities
Particulars
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory dues 7/ [
i/ 1
21 Current tax liabilities
Particulars
As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax)

2

1

2

|
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statements
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

29 Related party disclosures
A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 31 March 2023

Sl No.|Particulars Name of Entities

Promoters/Partners*

Directors

1 Trustee Axis Trustee Services Limited - -
. Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
2 Manager K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP Mr. Neel C. Raheja A
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja
3 Anbee Constructions LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
Sponsors Ms. Sumati Raheja (w.e f. | October 2021) -
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
. Mr. Nee! C. Raheja
4 (e iaginz) i Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja
5 Mr. Chandru L. Raheja =
6 Mr. Ravi C. Raheja -
i Mr. Neel C. Raheja -
8 Mrs. Jval € Raheja B -
9 Ms. Sumati Raheja (w.e.f. 30 September 2021)
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
. Mr. Neel C. Raheja
10 Capstan Trading LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyati C. Raheja i
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
1 Sponsors Group Casa Maria Properties LLP Mr. Neel C. Raheja

Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja
Mr. Neel C. Raheja

12 Raghukool Estate Developement LLP Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja «
Mr. Ravi C. Raheja

13 Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP Mr, Neel C. Raheja

Mr. Chandru L. Raheja
Mrs. Jvoti C. Raheja

K. Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd,

14 Sponsors Group

Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Anbee Constructions LLP

Cape Trading LLP

Capstan Trading LLP

Casa Maria Properties LLP
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP
Mr. Neel C. Raheja Jointly with

Mr. Ramesh M, Valecha

Ravi C. Raheja
Neel C. Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh
Ranganthan(Appoin
ted w.e f. 7th July,
2021)

Sunil

Hingorani{ Appointe
d w.ef 7th July,
2021)

Vinod N. Rohira
(Cessation w.e.f 7th
July, 2021)
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Notes to the Condensed Standalone Financial Statenients
(all amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

—
th

16

Sponsors Group

Ivory Property Trust

Chandru L. Raheja

Jyoti C. Raheja

Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Ltd
Ravi C, Raheja

Neel C. Raheja

(all are trustees)

Genext Hardware & Parks Private Ltd

Mr, Ravi C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Mr Neel C. Raheja Jointly with

Mr. Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with

Mrs. Jyoli C. Raheja

Chandru L. Raheja jointly with Jyoti C. Raheja,
on behalf of the beneficiaries of lvory Property
Trust

Ravi C. Raheja
Neel C. Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh
Ranganthan(w e f.
20th April, 2021)

17

Names of SPVs / subsidiaries

- Avacado Properties and Trading (India)
Private Limited
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited
Horizonview Properties Private Limited
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private
Limited
. Intime Properties Limited
- Sundew Properties Limited
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited.

00~ N

18

Governing Board and Key
Managerial Personnel of the
Manager (K Raheja Corp
Investment Managers LLP )

Governing Board
Mr. Deepak Ghaisas (Independent Member)

Ms. Manisha Girotra (Independent Member)

Mr. Bobby Parikh (Independent Member)

Mr. Alan Miyasaki (Non Executive Non Independent
Member) (resigned w e.f. 27 December 2021)

Mr. Manish Kejriwal (Independent Member) (appointed
w.e.f. 2 February 2022)

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja (Non Executive Non Independent
Member)

Mr. Neel C. Raheja (Non Executive Non Independent
Member)

Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Vinod Rohira (Chief Executive Officer of K Raheja

Corp Investment Managers LLP)
Ms. Preeti Chheda (Chief Financial Officer of K Raheja
Corp Investment Managers LLP)

19

Entities controlled/jointly
controlled by members of
Governing Board/Key
Managerial Personnel of the
Manager

Brookfields Agro & Development Private Limited
Cavalcade Properties Private Limited (till 24 December
2021)

Grange Hotels And Properties Private Limited
Immense Properties Private Limited

Naovel Properties Private Limited

Pact Real Estate Private Limited

Paradigm Logistics & Distribution Private Limited

Sustain Properties Private Limited (till 30 March 2022)

Aqualine Real Estate Private Limited

K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private Limited (Formerly
known as "Feat Properties Private Limited")

Carin Properties Private Limited

Asterope Properties Private Limited

Content Properties Private Limited

Grandwel| Properties And Leasing Private Limited (till
12 November 2021)

Sundew Real Estate Private Limited

Gencoval Strategic Services Private Limited

Stemade Biotech Private Limited

Hariom Infrafacilities Services Private Limited

K. Raheja Corp Advisory Services (Cyprus) Private
Limited

Convex Properties Private Limited

M!s Bohby Parikh & Associates

* only when acting collectively
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Related party disclosures

Closing Balances

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2022

Unsecured loan receivable (non-current)

Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited
Sundew Properties Limited

Horizonview Properties Private Limited

K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

Unsecured loan receivable (current)

Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Horizonview Properties Private Limited

KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited
Sundew Properties Limited

Investment in equity shares of SPVs

Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Horizonview Properties Private Limited

KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited

Intime Properties Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited

Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

Interest receivable (non-current)*

Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited
K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
Horizonview Properties Private Limited

Interest receivable (current)

Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

Gigaplex Estate Private Limited

Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited

Guarantee commission fees receivable (non-current other receivables)

KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited
Horizonview Properties Private Limited
Sundew Properties Limited

Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

2,445
793
11,983
7,857
2,195
4,490
116

450
800
200
360
170

9,482
13,121
0
6,868
15,478
33,722
25,618
48,814

95
96
185
107
21
26

6,340
1,723
3,848
3,220

750
5,041

346

400
2,170
2,430

9,482
13,121

6,868
15,478
33,722
25,618
48,814

52
19
150
16

45
272
242

8
1
7
2
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29 Related party disclosures

C Closing Balances

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Guarantee commission fees receivabie (current other receivables)
Horizonview Propetties Private Limited 1 -
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 3 -
Other Financial Liabilities (non-current other payables)
Sundew Properties Limited 10 5
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 1 0
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 5 8
Other Financial Liabilities (current other liabilities)
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP 18 28
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 3 8
M/s Bobby Parikh & Associates - 0
Intime Properties Limited 5 -
Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus
Anbee Constructions LLP 0 0
Cape Trading LLP 0 0
Corporate guarantees outstanding
Horizonview Properties Private Limited 1,175 1,140
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 5,400 1,903
Sundew Properties Limited 4,000 7,315
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited 5,859 6,170
Security and Corporate guarantee extended by Sundew towards debentures
Sundew Properties Limited 8,750 3,750
Security and Corporate guarantee extended by MBPPL towards debentures
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited 2,750 7,750
Security and Corporate guarantee extended by GIGAPLEX towards debentures
Gigaplex Estate Private Limited 5,000 5,000
Security and Corporate guarantee extended by INTIME towards debentures
Intime Properties Limited 5,500 -

*after Ind AS Adjustments
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31

(b)

{4

(e)

Commitments and contingencies

a) Contingent Liabilities

Mindspace REIT has provided corporate guarantees for loans availed by Horizonview, KRC Infra, MBPPL and Sundew and the outstanding guarantee
is Rs. 16,434 million (31 March 2022 Rs. 16,528 million)

Financial instruments :
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categorics are as below:

Carrying Carrying
value value

Particulars

31 March 31 March

2023 2022

Financial assets
Fair value through profit and loss - -
Fair value through other comprehensive income - =
Amortised cost
Loans (Non current) 29,879 21,268
Loans (Current) 1,980 5,000
Cash and cash equivalents 2,984 2,814
Other financial assets 568 822
Total assets 35,411 29904
Financial liabilities
Fair value through profit and loss - -
Fair value through other comprehensive income - -
Amortised cost
Borrowings (Non current) 19,892 11.422
Borrowings (Current) 1,996 4,997
Other financial liabilities 569 831
Trade payables 17 10
Total liabilities 22,474 17,260

The management considers that the carrying amounts of above financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to their fair values.

Measurement of fair values
The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:

a) recognised and measured at fair value
b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the Condensed Standalone financial statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, Mindspace REIT has classified its financial instruments into
the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is mentioned below:

Fair value hierarchy
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Financial instruments
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2023:

Particulars Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets & liabilities measured at fair value - - - =

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2022:

Particulars Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets & liabilities measured at fair value = = s =

Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

Determination of fair values
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

i) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date. —
if) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are ggﬁ%ﬁi&gﬁi@ﬁ\\uguiralenl to their carrying values.

s

iii) The fair values of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be equ r\aﬁ@\ﬂ)m{\ﬁm& of the future contracted cashflows discounte
focr T

current market rate. /f o {’/ \&g'
|
{ b |_n
1=\ —_—
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Initial Disclosure to be made by an entity identified as a Large Corporate ( Annexure A)

Particulars

Details

Name of the entity

Mindspace Business Parks REIT (acting through its
Manager, K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

CIN / SEBI Registration No.

CIN - Not applicable
SEBI Registration No. - IN/REIT/19-20/0003

Outstanding borrowing of the entity as on 31st March, 2023

Rs. 21,888 million
(Rs. Twenty One thousand Eight Hundred and Eighty
Eight million only)

Highest Credit Rating During the previous FY along with name of the Credit
Rating Agency

For Issuer: CRISIL AAA/Stable,

[TICRA] AAA (Stable)
For Non-Convertible Debentures: CRISIL AAA/Stable
and [ICRA] AAA (Stable)

For Market Linked Debentures:
CRISIL PPMLD AAA/Stable

Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be paid, in case of shortfall
in the required borrowing under the framework

BSE Limited ("BSE™)

We confirm that the Mindspace Business Parks REIT is a ‘Large Corporate’ as per the applicability criteria given under the SEBI circular

SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2021/613 dated August 10, 2021

Annual Disclosure to be made by an entity identified as a Large Corporate ( Annexure B2)

Name of the Entity

Mindspace Business Parks REIT (acting through its
Manager, K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)

CIN / SEBI Registration No

CIN - Not applicable
SEBI Registration No, - IN/REIT/19-20/0003

Report filed for FY

2022-23

Details of the borrowings

Fing= 1,2% of {(d)-(e)!#

Particulars As on 31 March 2023
3-year block period (specify financial years) FY 2022-23
FY 2023-24
FY 2024-25
Incremental borrowing done in FY (T). (a) 10.500
Mandatory borrowing to be done through issuance of debt securities in FY 2,625
(M
(b)=(25% of a)
Actual borrowings done through debt securities in FY (T) 10,500
(c)
Shorttall in the borrowing through debt securities, if any, for FY (T-1) Nil
cartied forward to FY (T). (d)
Quantum of (d), which has been met from (c) Nil
(e)
Shortfall, if any, in the mandatory borrowing through debt securities for FY Nil
(M
{after adjusting for any shortfall in borrowing for FY (T-1) which was
carried forward to FY (T)} (f)= (b)-{(c)-(e)]
{If the calculated value is zero or negative, write "nil"}
Details of penalty to be paid, if any, in respect to previous block
Particulars As on 31 March 2023
3-year block period (specify financial years) FY 2021-22
FY 2022-23
N FY 2023-24
~&inount of fine to be paid for the block. if applicable Nil

b ox
.'I-"_' |
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34

36
37

Segment Reporting
Mindspace REIT does not have any reportable operating segments as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 and hence, disclosure under Ind AS 108,
Operating segments has not been provided in the Condensed Standalone financial statements.

Distributions

The Governing Board of the Manager to the Trust, in their meeting held on 04 May 2023, has declared distribution to unitholders of Rs 4.81 per unit
which aggregates to Rs. 2,852 million for the quarter ended 31 March 2023. The distributions of Rs 4.81 per unit comprises Rs. 4.37 per unit in the
form of dividend, Rs. 0.43 per unit in the form of interest payment and Rs. 0.01 per unit in the form of other income.

Along with distribution of Rs. 14.29 per unit for the period ended 31 December 2022, the cumulative distribution for the year ended 31 March 2023
aggregates to Rs. 19.10 per unit.

a) The figures for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2023 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year ended 31
March 2023 and the published year-to-date figures upto period ended 31 December 2022 and 30 September 2022, respectively which were subjected to
limited review.

b) The figures for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2022 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of the year ended 31
March 2022 and the published year-to-date figures upto period ended 31 December 2021 and 30 September 2021, respectively which were subjected
to limited review.

¢) The figures for the quarter ended 31 December 2022 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the nine months ended 31 December
2022 and the figures for the half year ended 30 September 2022, respectively which were subjected to limited review.

Previous period figures have been regrouped, as considered necessary, to conform with current period presentation.

"0" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million.
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38 In accordance with SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2021 and Other requirements as per
SEBI circular (No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated 13 April 2018) for issuance of debt securities by Real Estate Investment Trusts
(REITs) and Infrastructure Investment Trusts (InvITs)., Mindspace REIT has disclosed the following ratios:

Quarter ended Half Year ended Year ended
Ratios 31-Mar-23| 31-Dec-22( 31-Mar-22| 31-Mar-23| 30-Sep-22| 31-Mar-22| 31-Mar-23| 31-Mar-22
a |Security / Asset cover (MLD Series 1) NA NA 2.13 NA NA 213 NA 2.13
(refer note a(i))
b |Security / Asset cover (NCD Series 1) 2.56 2;52 2.49 2.56 2.51 249 2.56 249
(refer note a(ii))
¢ |Security / Asset cover (MLD Series 2) 2.28 2.30 236 228 234 236 228 236
(refer note a(iii))
d |Security / Asset cover (NCD Series 2) 241 241 245 241 241 245 241 245
(refer note a(iv))
e |Security / Asset cover (NCD Series 3) 2.16 217 2.16 2.16 218 216 216 2.16
(refer note a(v))
f  [Security / Asset cover (NCD Series 4) 250 2.37 NA 250 2.37 NA 2.50 NA
(refer note a(vi))**
2 |Security / Asset cover (Mindspace REIT 215 NA NA 215 NA NA 215 NA
Green Bond 1) (refer note a(vii))
h | Debt-equity ratio (in times) 013 0.11 0.10 0.13 0.10 0.10 0.13 0.10
(refer note b)
i |Debt service coverage ratio (in times) 9.80 10.52 11.68 10.15 12.33 12.87 11.10 13.72
(refer note c)
1 |Interest service coverage ratio (in times) 9.80 10.52 11.68 10.15 12.33 12 .87 11.10 13,72
(refer note d)
k(i) |Outstanding redeemable preference shares NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
(quantity and value)*
k(ii) |Capital redemption reserve* NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
I |Debenture redemption reserve NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
{Amount in Rs. millions)*
m  [Net worth (Amount in Rs. millions) 1,66,041 1,65,941 1,65,758| 1,66,041 1,65,844 1,65,758 1,66,041 1.65.758
(refer note e)
n(i) |Net profit after tax (Amount in Rs. millions) 2,947 2,914 2,752 5,860 5,631 5,508 11,491 11,030
n(ii) |Eamings per unit - Basic 4.97 491 4.64 9.88 9.49 9.29 1938 18.60
o__|Eamings per unit - Diluted 4.97 491 464 9.88 9.49 9.29 19.38 18.60
p__|Current Ratio (in times) (refer note f) 243 1.96 1.51 243 66.16 1.51 243 151
q |Long term debt (non current) to working 6.98 5.10 415 6.98 579 415 6.98 4.15
capital (in times) (refer note h)
r |Bad debts to account receivable ratio NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
(in times) (refer note |) *
s |Current liability ratio (in times) 0.09 0.17 032 0,09 0.00 0.32 0.09 0.32
(refer note i)
t | Total debt to total assets (in times) 0.12 010 0.09 0.12 0.09 0.09 0.12 0.09
(refer note |)
u |Debtors Turnover (in times) NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
(refer note k)*
v |Inventory Turmnover* NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
w__|Operating Margin (in %) (refer note m) 99% 99% 99% 99% 98% 99% 99% 99%
x__|Net Profit Margin (in %) (refer note n) 89% 89% 91% 89% 90% 91% 90% 92%
v |Sector Specific equivalent ratio* NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

*Not Applicable (NA)
**Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 4) has been calculated basis valuation report
Formulae for computation of ratios are as follows basis condensed standalone financial statements -
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38 In accordance with SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2021 and Other requirements as per
SEBI circular (No. SEB/HO/DDHS/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/71 dated 13 April 2018) for issuance of debt securities by Real Estate Investment Trusts
(REITs) and Infrastructure Investment Trusts (InvITs)., Mindspace REIT has disclosed the following ratios:

Security / Asset cover ratio (MLD Series 1) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (Outstanding principal amount of
a(i) MLD Series 1 + Interest accrued thereon)
Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 1) = Lower of Fair value of the secured assets as computed by two independent valuers / (Qutstanding principal
a(ii) amount of NCD Series 1 + Interest accrued thereon)
Security / Asset cover ratio (MLD Series 2) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuer / (Qutstanding principal amount of MLD
a(iii) Series 2 + Interest accrued thereon)
Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 2) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (Outstanding principal amount of
a(iv) NCD Series 2 + Interest accrued thereon)
Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 3) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (Outstanding principal amount of
a(v) NCD Series 3 + Interest accrued thereon)
Security / Asset cover ratio (NCD Series 4) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (Outstanding principal amount of
a(vi) NCD Series 4 + Interest accrued thereon)
a(vii) Security / Asset cover ratio (Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1) = Fair value of the secured assets as computed by independent valuers / (Outstanding
principal amount of Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 + Interest accrued thereon)
b(i) Total Debt = Long term borrowings + Short term borrowings + Interest accrued on debts (current and non-current)
b(ii) Debt Equity Ratio = Total Debt/Total Equity
c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before interest {net of capitalization}, exceptional items and tax / (Interest expenses {net of capitalization} +
Principal repayments made during the period which excludes bullet and full repayment of external borrowings)
d) Interest Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings before interest {net of capitalization}, exceptional items and tax / (Interest expense {net of capitalisation})
e) Net worth = Corpus + Unit capital + Other equity
f) Current ratio = Current assets/ Current liabilities
2) Long term Debt = Long term borrowings (excluding current maturities of long term debt) + Interest accrued on debts (Non-current)
h) Long term debt to working capital ratio = Long term debt/ working capital (i.e. Current assets less current liabilities)
i) Current liability ratio = Current liabilities/ Total liabilities
h)] Total debt to total assets = Total debt/ Total assets
k) Debtors Turnover = Revenue from operations/ Average trade receivable
1) Bad debts to account receivable ratio = Bad debts (including provision for doubtful debts) / Average trade receivable
m)  Operating margin = (Eamnings before interest {net of capitalization}, exceptional items and tax — Other income) / (Interest Income + Dividend Income)
n) Net profit margin = Profit after exceptional items and tax/ Total Income




Chartered Accountants
Lotus Corporate Park
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Goregaon (East)

Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: 491 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON AUDIT OF ANNUAL CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND REVIEW OF QUARTERLY AND HALF YEARLY CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TO
THE GOVERNING BOARD

K. RAHEJA CORP INVESTMENT MANAGERS LLP (THE “INVESTMENT MANAGER")

(ACTING IN CAPACITY AS THE INVESTMENT MANAGER OF MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS
REIT)

Opinion and Conclusion
We have

(a) audited the Condensed Consolidated Financial statements of Mindspace Business Park REIT
(“the REIT"/ “the Trust”) for the year ended March 31, 2023 which comprises of the following:

the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023;
the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income) for the year ended 31 March 2023;

e the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2023;

» the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the year ended
31 March 2023;

» the Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at 31 March 2023;
the Consolidated Statement of Total Return at fair value for the year ended 31 March 2023;
the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of the Mindspace Business Parks Real Estate
Trust and each of the subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2023; and

e summary of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes

(b) reviewed the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements which comprise of the following for
quarter and half year ended 31 March 2023 (refer ‘Other Matters’ section below):

the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income) for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2023;
the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the quarter and half year ended 31
March 2023;
the Consolidated Statement of Total Return at fair value for the half year ended 31 March
2023;

e the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flow of the Mindspace Business Parks Real Estate
Trust and each of the subsidiaries for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2023; and
summary of the significant accounting policies and select explanatory notes.

These statements are included in the accompanying “*Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements” of
the REIT and its Special Purpose Vehicles (“the SPVs”) (the REIT and its SPVs together referred to as
“the Mindspace Group”), (“the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements”) being submitted by the
REIT pursuant to the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued
thereunder read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 (the “REIT
regulations”) and Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended (“the Listing Regulations”).

=2

OffI’CEZ One Center, Tower 3, 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India.
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(a) Opinion on Annual Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023:

i. includes the financial information of the following entities:
S No. Name of the entities

A Parent En
1 Minds ace Business Parks REIT

B Subsidiaries

1 Avacado Pro and Tradin India Private Limited
2 Horizonview Pro rties Private Limited

3 KRC Infrastructure and P  ects Private Limited

4 G lex Estate Private Limited

5 Sundew Pro Limited

6 Intime Properties Limited

7 K. Ra IT Park H erabad Limited

8 Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

is presented in accordance with the requirements the REIT regulations and the Listing
Regulations; and

gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard 34 “Interim
Financial Reporting” ("Ind AS 34”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India
to the extent not inconsistent with the REIT Regulations of the state of affairs of the REIT as
at 31 March 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows, net assets
at fair value, total returns at fair value and net distributable cash flows and other financial
information of the Group for the year then ended.

(b) Conclusion on Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter
and half year ended March 31, 2023

With respect to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter ended March 31,
2023, based on our review conducted and procedures performed as stated in paragraph (b) of
Auditor’s Responsibilities section below, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter and half year ended March
31, 2023, prepared in accordance with the REIT Regulations, the Indian Accounting Standard 34
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with the
REIT Regulations, and has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms of the REIT
and Listing Regulations, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any
material misstatement.

Basis for Opinion on the Audited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended March 31, 2023

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (*SAs”) issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI”). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in paragraph (@) of Auditor’s Responsibilities section below. We are independent of the
Mindspace Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI together with the ethical
uirements that are relevant to our audit of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the
March 31, 2023 and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with

ments and the ICAI’'s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is

‘appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Emphasis of Matters

We draw attention to Note 42(5)(a) to the condensed Consolidated Financial Statements regarding
freehold land and building thereon (Paradigm, Malad) held by special purpose vehicle, Avacado Properties
and Trading (India) Private Limited which is presently under litigation. Pending the outcome of the
proceedings and a final closure of the matter, no adjustments have been made in the Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2023. Our opinion
is not modified in respect of this matter.

We draw attention to Note 2 which describes the Basis of presentation of Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements and Note 19(a) which describes the presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity”
instead of compound financial instrument to comply with the REIT Regulations. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements is the responsibility of the Investment Manager and
has been approved by them for the issuance. The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended March 31, 2023, has been compiled from the related audited consolidated financial
statements. This responsibility includes the preparation and presentation of the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2023 that give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs as at 31 March 2023, its consolidated net profit/(Loss) and consolidated other
comprehensive income/(loss) and consolidated cash flows for the quarter, half year and year ended 31
March 2023, its Consolidated Statement of changes in Unitholder’s Equity for the year ended 31 March
2023, its net assets at fair value as at 31 March 2023, its total return at fair value for the half year and
year ended 31 March 2023, its net distributable cash flows for the quarter, half year and year ended 31
March 2023 and other financial information of the Mindspace Group in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India to the extent not
inconsistent with REIT Regulations and in compliance with the REIT and Listing Regulations. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of
the REIT and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Investment Manager of the REIT and respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Mindspace Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding the
assets of the Mindspace Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the respective financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of this Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements by the of the
Investment Manager, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the Investment Manager’ and respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Mindspace Group are responsible for assessing the
ability of the respective entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Investment Manager and
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease operations,

listic alternative but to do so.

Manager and respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Mindspace
nsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Mindspace Group.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities

(a) Audit of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,
2023

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of this Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Annual Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Investment Manager.

* Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Investment
Manager in terms of the requirements specified under the REIT and Listing Regulations.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Investment Manager’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Mindspace
Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Mindspace Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Annual Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Annual Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information to express an
opinion on the Annual Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such entities
included in the Annual Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the
independent auditors.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Annual Condensed Consolidated Financial

Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a

reasonably knowledgeable user of the Annual Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements may

be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope

of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
entified misstatements in the Annual Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements.

mmunicate with those charged with governance of the REIT and such other entities included
Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors
ing, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
s including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

(b) Review of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter and half year
ended March 31, 2023

We conducted our review of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the quarter and
half year ended March 31, 2023 in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE)
2410 'Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity’,
issued by the ICAI. A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily
of the REIT's personnel responsible for financial and accounting matters and applying analytical
and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would
become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion.

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements includes the financial information of the entities
as listed under paragraph (a)(i) of Opinion and Conclusion section above.

Other Matters

* Asstated in Note 50(a) of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the financial information
for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2023 are the balancing figures between the audited
figures in respect of the full financial year and the published year to date figures up to the third
quarter and second quarter of the current financial year which were subject to limited review by us.
Our report on the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements is not modified in respect of this
matter.

* As stated in Note 50(b) of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, the financial information for
the Quarter and Half Year ended March 31, 2022 are the balancing figures between the audited figures in
respect of the full financial year and the published year to date figures up to the third quarter and first half
of the previous financial year which were subject to limited review by us. Our report on the Statement is
not modified in respect of this matter.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

e

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No. 49660
Date: May 04, 2023 UDIN: 23049660 B GYEEF998|




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Nouo-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Investment property under construction
Other Intangible assets
Financial assets

- Investments

- Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Non-current Tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
- Trade receivables
- Cash and cash equivalents
- Other bank balances
- Other financial assets
Current Tax assets (net)
Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets before regulatory deferral account

Regulatory deferral account - assets

Total assets

Note As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(Audited) (Audited)

4 1,296 1,539
5 205,144 197.194
6 7,867 13,496
7 1 |
8 29 23
9 2,526 2,474
10 473 1,051
1A 928 1,041
12 580 872
218,844 217,691
13 72 26
14 572 210
15A 4,062 3,478
15B 206 121
16 2,535 1,477
1B - 23
17 586 268
8.033 5.603
226,877 223204
354 241
227,231 223535




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

Note As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Audi )

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (Audited) (Audited)
EQUITY
Corpus 18 0 0
Unit Capital 19 162,839 162,839
Other equity 20 (15,012) (6.634)
Equity attributable to unit holders of the Mindspace REIT 147,827 156.205
Non-controlling interest 47 7955 8,507
Total equity 155,782 164,712
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 21 45,842 35,357

- Lease liabilities 114 114

- Other financial liabilities 22 4,153 4280
Provisions 23 67 30
Deferred tax habilities (net) 24 2,494 669
Other non-current liabilities 25 482 580
Total non-current liabilities 53,152 41,030
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

- Borrowings 26 8,693 9,123

- Lease liabilities 13 13

- Trade payables 27

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises 133 60
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 576 645

- Other financial liabilities 28 7,696 6,835
Provisions 29 34 35
Other current liabilities 30 1,127 1,052
Current Tax liabilities (net) 31 25 2
Total current liabilities 18,297 17,765
Total liabilities before regulatory deferral account 71,449 58,795
Total equity and liabilities before regulatory deferral account 227,231 223,507
Regulatory deferral account - liabilities " 28
Total Equity and Liabilities 227,231 223,535
Significant accounting policies 3
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated 4-34

Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number 117366W/W-100018

for and on behalf of the Governing Board of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP

i

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership number: 49660
Place: Mumbai

Date : 04 May 2023

Neé| C. Raheja

Place: Mumbai
Date : 04 May 2023

Vinod N. Rohira

Chief Executive Officer

DIN: 00460667
Place: Mumbai
Date : 04 May 2023

(ag{ing as the Managefth Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
\ \\/\Q‘\/ / el et

Preeti N. Chheda

Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 08066703
Place: Mumbai
Date : 04 May 2023
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's Equity
(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

A. Corpus Amount
Balance as on 1 April 2021 0
Changes during the year -
Balance as on 31 March 2022 0
Balance as on 1 April 2022 0
Changes during the period -
Closing balance as on 31 March 2023 0

B. Unit Capital Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 162,839
Changes during the year -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 162,839
Balance as at 1 April 2022 162,839
Changes during the period -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 162,839

C. Other equity

Retained Earnings Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 191
Add: Profit for the year attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 4,238
Add: Other comprehensive income/(expense) attributable to the unitholders of M indspace REIT 3)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2021* (2,853)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2021* (2,728)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2021* (2,728)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2021* (2.752)
Less: Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve** (109)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 (6,743)
Balance as at 1 April 2022 (6,743)
Add: Profit for the year attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT 2,836
Add: Other comprehensive income/(expense) attributable to the unitholders of Mindspace REIT (6)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 March 2022* (2,734)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 June 2022* (2,811)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 30 September 2022* (2,817)
Less: Distribution to Unitholders for the quarter ended 31 December 2022* (2,846)
Less: Transfer to/from Debenture Redemption Reserve** (425)

Balance as at 31 March 2023 (15,546)




Debenture Redemption Reserve** Amount

Balance as at 1 April 2021

Transfer from retained eamings 109
Balance as at 31 March 2022 109
Balance as at 1 April 2022 109
Transfer to retained earnings (5)
Transfer from retained eamings 430
Balance as at 31 March 2023 534

* The distributions made by Trust to its Unitholders are based on the Net Distributable Cash flows (NDCF) of Mindspace REIT under the REIT

Regulations.
** Refer Note 20

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3
See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements 4-54

As per our report of even date attached:

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP for and on behalf of the Governing Board of
Chartered Accountants * K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
Firm’s registration number: 117366W/W-100018 (acting as the Manager to Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

: @LL‘/ : . =
VP NRMT (O et o et

Neel C.Raheja Vinod N. Rohira Preeti N. Chheda
Partner Member Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Membership number: 49660 DIN: 00029010 DIN: 00460667 DIN: 08066703

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date : 04 May 2023 Date : 04 May 2023 Date : 04 May 2023 Date : 04 May 2023

Nilesh Shah \\




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/RETIT/19-20/003

Cond dC lidated Financial §

(All amounts are in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)
Disclosure pursuant to SEBI circular No. CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016

A) Assets
S.Nn Particulars
A Assets
B Liabilities**
C Net Assets (A-B)
D Less Non controlling interests
E Net Assets attributable to unit holders of Mindspace REIT (C-D)
F No of units
G Net Assets Value per unit (E/F)

* as reflected in the Balance Sheet

**“Refer Note-6 below

Measurement of fair values:

val Inve ent, In
pro aluer recogn
sels € cas ital bal

As at 31 March 2023 (Audited)

Book Value*
227,231
71,449
155,782
7955

147,827

593,018,182
249

truction and Capital work-
and recent experience in th
in the discounted cashflow method used in determining the fair value of i

property under development, property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and intangibles

Valuation techimgue

The fair value nt for all of the Investment property, Property, plant and
based on the in valuation technique used The valuer has followed a Disc
The Di the lue of net ca
occupa net s are discoun
and its ty, | and investor
Notes

Project wise break up of fair value of assets as at 31 March 2023 is as follows

Particulars

Intime

Sundew

MBPPL
MBPPL - Mindspace Airoli East
MBPPL - Mindspace Pocharam
MBPPL - Commerzone Yerwada
MBPPL - The Square, Nagar Road

Gigaplex

Avacado - Mindspace Malad
Avacado - The Square, BKC
KRC Infra
KRC Infra - Gera Commerzone Kharadi
KRC Infra - Camplus

Mindspace REIT
Less: Eliminations and Other Adjustments*

Less: interest

Total attributable to unitholders

Fair value
301,174
68,962
232,212
649

220,563

393,018,182

372

As at 31 March 2022 (Audited)

Book Value*
223,535
58,823
164,712
8,507

156,205

593,018,182

263

Fair value
284,145
56,456
227,690
11,274

216,416

593,018,182
365

s are solely based on an independent valuation performed by an
and category of the properties being valued

property, i it

nt, Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-progress has been categorized as a Level 3 fair value

ash Flow met
to be

the ri

pectat

Fair value of Investment
property, Property, plant and
equipment, Investment
property under construction
and Capital work-in-progress

18,911
34243

62,189

26,162
6,991
8,208

292,953
(12,688)
280,265

* Itincludes eliminations primarily pertaining to inter company lending / borrowing and consolidation adjustments

Other assets at book value

741

1,292

1,524

301
35,421
(40,251,
8,221
(321)
7,900

ntw
t the
rate

Total assets

20,809
34,868
62,587

82,424

45,606

16,527

34,677

8,506
35,421
(40,251)
301,174
(13,009)
288,165

tte

ed Market
rate, vacan
quality of

II')S

? SieS



2 Project wise break up of fair value of assets as at 31 March 2022 is as follows

w

Intime

MBPPL

Particulars

MBPPL - Mindspace Airoli East
MBPPL - Mindspace Pocharam
MBPPL - Commerzone Yerwada
MBPPL - The Square, Nagar Road

Avacado

Avacado - Mindspace Malad

Avacado - The
KRC Infra

BKC

KRC Infra - Gera Commerzone
KRC Infra - Camplus

KRC Infra - Gera Commerzone Kharadi

KRC Infra - Camplus

Horizonview

Mindspace REIT

Eliminations and Other Adjustments*

Non-controlling interest

Total attributable to unitholders
* It includes eliminations

5 at book value
property under

Fair value of Invesiment
property, Property, plant and
equipment, Investment
property under construction
and Capital work-in-progress

18,467
30,531
60,37

276,027
(12,031°
263,99¢

pertaining to inter company lending / borrowing and consolidation

ital advances, u
and Capital wo

Other assets at book value

3,887
1,284

6,504

406

2,162

885

259
29916
(39,365)
8,118
(809)
731(

Total assets*

20,648
34,418
61,663

82,219

41,540

16,867

28,419

7,821

29,916
(39,365)
284,145
(12,840
271,305

revenue, finance lease receivable and regulatory assets (which form part of fair valuation of the Investment property, Property, plant and equipment,

rogress)

4 Power Deemed Distribution License operations in Gigaplex, MBPPL and KRC Infra have been valued by the valuer separately using Discounted Cash Flow method

5 Liabilities at book value for calculation of fair value of NAV, excludes lease liability, capital creditors (other than related to initial direct cost) and retention payables (which form part of fair valuation of the
Investment property, Property, plant and equipment, Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-progress)

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3

See the accompanying notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

As per our report of even date attached

for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s registration number 117366W/W-100018

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Membership number 49660

Place Mumbai

Date 04 May 2023

for behalf of the Governing Board of

C.

DIN 000290
Place Mumbai
Date 04 May 2023

LLP
Business Parks REIT)

W

Chuef Executive Officer
DIN 00460667

Place Mumbai

Date 04 May 2023

Yy SSvry

Preeti N. Chheda
Chref Financial Officer
DIN 08066703

Place Mumbai
Date 04 May 2023



MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT

RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

C

dC 1 Fi

(All amounts are in Rs. millions unless otherwise stated)

B)

Statement of Total Return at Fair Value (Attributable to unit holders of Mindspace REIT)

Total Return - Attributable to unit holders of Mindspace REIT
S.No Particalars For the hall year ended | For the half year ended | For the half year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2023 30 September 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
{unaudited)* ( dited) { dited)* (audited) (audited)
A Total comprehensive Income 863 1,967 2,621 2,830 4235
B Add Changes in fair value not [ecogmsed in 8,083 6.764 5652 14.847 16,853
total eomprehensive income (refer Note below)
C (A+B) |Total Return 8,946 8,731 8,273 17,677 21,088
Note:

| Measurement of lair values:

The farr values of Invesiment property. Property. plant and equipment. Investment property under construction and Capital work-in-progress are solels based on an independent valuation performed by an extemnal
property valuer ("Independent valuer”). having appropriately recognised professional qualification and recent experience in the location and categon of the properties being yalued

2 fn the above statement, chanyes 1o fur value not regogmsed for the vaar ended 31 March 2023 hai & hden computad based on the change in fur s alues from 1 Apnal 2022 to 31 March 2023 adjusted for change n book
Vdlue of Ins estment Property, Investment propecy under construction and Property, Plant and Equipment and Capital work in prograss.
Capral eraditors (other than rebated to tmitial ditet cost). Retention pasables znd Lease Liabilites from | April 2022 10 31 March 20
have been computed based oh the change in fair values from | Ogtober 2022 to 31 March 2023 adjusted for change in book value
and Equipment and Capital work in progress. Capital advances, Unbilled renenus. Finance leise recais ablie,

Capital advances. Unbulled nesenue, Finance lesse tecen able. regulaton assels.
23 Changes int fair value not rdcogmsed for tha half vear ended 31 March 2023

of tnvestment Propemy. Insvestment proper under constraclion mmd Propert . Plant
regulitfon assets, Capital creditors (other than refuted 10 mimal direct cost), Retention pa bles and Lease

Linbiliies from | October 2022 10 31 March 2023 Chanyes in Tair v alue not recogmsed for the half vear snded 3 Sepember 2022 1 computed based on the change i far value (rom 1 Apnal 2022 10 30 September

2022 adusted for change i book value of Inyestment Propem . Investmént properts under construction and Properss. Plant and Equipntent and €.

lease receivable and Lease Lusbelities from | Apnl 2022 10 30 Seprember 2022

*Refer Nole 5t

Significant accounting policies - refer note 3

See the accompanying noles 1o the C
As per our repon of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration number: 117366W/W-100018

e

Nilesh Shah
Partner
Memberstup number: 49660

Place: Mumbai
Dale 04 Ma 2023

d C

q

d Financial S

4-54

Place Mumbai
Date : 04 May 2023

for and on behalf of the Gos eming Board of
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP

(acting as M

10 the Mind R

apital work in progress, Capital advances, Unbilled revenue. Finanee

Parks REIT)

\.')‘LV/ /{L,L O o el s~

Vinad N. Rohita
Chis Eroamne Gffecr
DIN: 00460667

Place Mumbai
Date (4 Ma 2023

Preeti N. Chheda
Chief Financial Officer
DIN 08066703

Place Mumbai
Dale 04 Mav 2023
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

The condensed consolidated financial statements (“Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements’) comprise financial statements of Mindspace Business Parks Real

1 Organisation Structure
nv ('
Lt le
ict ts

(‘Avacado’) (individually referred to as “Special Purpose Vehicle’ or -SPV” or "Asset SPV"

Group') The SPVs are companies domiciled in India

, its SPVs Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited (‘M
rties Limited ('Intime'), K. Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad)

Gigaplex Estate
(KRIT), KRC

ate Limited ('Horizonview"), Avacado Properties and Trading (India) Private Limited

and together referred to as “Mindspace Business Parks Group’/Mindspace

Anbee Constructions LLP (*ACL’) and Cape Trading LLP (*CTL’) collectively known as (the *Sponsors’ or the “Co-Sponsors’) have set up the 'Mindspace Business Parks
REIT as an irevocable trust, pursuant to the Trust Deed. under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 and the Trust has been registered with SEBI as a Real Estate

8t
N:
nt

The

fund

oper

9 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate Investment Trusts) 2014 having
0 e REIT is Axis Trustee Services Limited (the “Trustee’) and the Manager ce REIT is K
h
ce REIT is he of a real est ent trust, as permissible under the REIT Regulations, to raise
accordance IT ions and the Strategy and to carry on the activities as may be required for
llary matter

The units of the trust were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE Limited) and National Stock Exchange (NSE) on 7 August 2020

brief activities and

Name of the SPV

MBPPL

Gigaplex

Sundew

Intime

KRIT

of the SPVs are below:

Activities

[The SPV is engaged in real estate
development projects such as Special
Economic  Zone (SEZ), Information
Technology Parks and other commercial
assets The SPV has its projects in Airoli
(Navi  Mumbai), Pune and Pocharam
(Hyderabad) The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which it
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi
Mumbai from 9 Aprl 2015

The SPV is engaged in real estate
development projects such as Specia
Economic  Zone (SEZ), Information
Technology Parks and other commercial
assets The SPV has its projects in Airoli
(Navi Mumbai) The SPV is a deemed
distribution licensee pursuant to which il
can distribute power to the SEZ tenants
within the Park It commenced distribution
of electricity in its project at Airoli, Navi
Mumbai from 19 April 2016

The SPV is engaged in development ang
leasing/licensing of IT park, SEZ to differen
customers in Hyderabad

SPV is engaged in
of IT park to
in Hyderabad

SPVis and
of IT park to different
in Hyderabad

Shareholding

(in percentage) as at 31 March 23

Mindspace Business Parks
REIT : 100%

‘Mindspace Business Parks
REIT : 100%

REIT : 89%

State Industrial
Limited (11%)

89%

elangana State Industrial In
Limited (11%)

REIT : 89%

Telangana State Industrial
Limited (11%)

Shareholding
(in percentage) as at 31 March 2022

Mindspace Business Parks
REIT : 100%

Mindspace Business Parks
REIT : 100%

REIT

State Industnial
Limited (11%)

REIT : 89%

State Industrial Infrastructure
Limited (11%)

REIT

State Industrial
Limited (11%)

sKi

tta
Si1es



SPV is engaged in Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
projects such as REIT - 100% REIT 100%
Zone (SEZ) and
Parks The SPV has its
Kharadi Pune The SPV is a
licensee pursuant to which
KRC Infra distribute power to the SEZ
the Park 1t commenced
electricity in its project at Kharadi,

[ June 2019
SPV is also engaged in Facility
services
SPV is development Mindspace Parks Mindspace Business Parks
Horizonview of IT park to 100% REIT : 100%
in Chennai
an Industrial Mindspace Business Parks Mindspace Business Parks
the purpose of letting out to REIT : 100% REIT : 100%
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Basis of preparation

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks REIT comprise the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the quarter, half
year and year ended March 31, 2023, the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholders Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023, the Statement of Net
Assets at Fair Value as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Total Returns at Fair Value for the half year and year ended March 31, 2023, the Statement of Net
Distributable Cashflows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT and each of the SPVs for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2023, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and select explanatory information and other additional financial disclosures

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Real Estate
Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder read with SEBI Circular No
CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated December 29, 2016 (“the REIT regulations"); Regulation 52 and Regulation 54 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulations”); Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 34 ~Intenm Financial Reporting™, as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with REIT
regulations (refer note 19 on presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” instead of compound instruments under Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation)

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution passed by the Goveming Board of the Manager on May 04,
2023

Statement of compliance to ind AS:

These Condensed Consolidated financial statements for the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2023 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 34 “Intenm Financial Reporting™,as prescribed in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) to the extent
not inconsistent with the REIT regulations as more fully described above and Note 19 to the condensed consolidated financial statements

The accounting policies adopted and methods of computation followed are consistent with those of the previous financial year

Basis of Consolidation

Mindspace Business Parks Group consolidates entities which it owns or controls The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the financial statements of
Mindspace Business parks REIT and its subsidiary SPVs as disclosed in note 1 Control exists when the parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability 1o affect those returns by using its power over the entity Power is demonstrated through existing
rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly affect the entity’s returns Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date control commences
until the date control ceases

The procedure for preparing Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements of Mindspace Business Parks Group are stated below:
a) The financial statements of Mindspace Business Parks Group are consolidated for like items and intragroup balances and fransactions for assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows between entities of Mindspace Business Parks Group are eliminated in full upon consolidation

b) Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited, which is a shareholder in Intime, KRIT and Sundew has not agreed to exchange their equity interest in
the SPVs (Intime, KRIT and Sundew), thus, Mindspace Business Parks REIT has recorded a non-controlling interests for these SPVs The interest of non-controlling
shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
The choice of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlhng interests is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity

c) The figures in the notes to accounts and disclosures have been Consolidated line by line and Inter-company transactions and balances including unrealised profits are
eliminated in full on consolidation

d) Mindspace Business Parks Group holds 4% of the equity share capital of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, a company involved in the real estate development
Mindspace Business Parks Group is of the view that it is not able to exercise significant influence over Stargaze Properties Private Limited and hence it has not been
accounted using equity method
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Significant accounting policies

(a) Functional and presentation currency

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is Mindspace Business Parks Groups functional currency and the currency of the
primary economic environment in which Mindspace Business Parks Group operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded off to nearest
million except otherwise stated

(b) Basis of measurement

The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are on the historical cost basis, except for the following:

- Certain financial assets and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instrument):; measured at fair values;

- Net defined benefit (asset) liability less present value of defined obligations: Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined benefit plan

(c) Use of judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Ind AS) requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Condensed Consolidated
Financial Statements is included in the following notes:

Presentation of “Unit Capital” as “Equity” m accordance with the REIT Regulations instead of compound instrument {Note 19)

Estimation of lease term for revenue recognition

Estimation of useful life of property, plant and equipment and investment property

Estimation of recognition of deferred tax assets, availability of future taxable profit against which tax {osses carried forward can be used and income taxes
Impairment and Fair valuation of Investment Property, Investment property under construction, Property, plant and equipment and Capital work-in-progress
Recognition and measurement of provisions for contingencies and disclosure of contingent liabilities

d) Current versus non-current classification

Mindspace Business Parks Group presents assets and liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet based on current/ non-current classification
An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent uniess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no uncenditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents Mindspace Business Parks Group has
identified twelve months as its operating cycle

(e) Measurement of fair values

Mindspace Business Parks Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
Mindspace Business Parks Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments_If third party information is used to measure fair values then the finance team assesses
the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy
in which such valuations should be classified

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level I quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that entity can access on measurement date

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i e. as prices) or indirectly (i_e. derived from
prices)

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the ferms of a debt instrument

Financial guarantee contracts are measured initially at the fair value and in accordance with Ind AS 109 unless on a case to case basis elected to be accounted for financial
guarantee as Insurance Contracts as specified under Ind AS 104

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is charged when the assets are ready for their intended
use. Purchase price or construction cost is defined as any consideration paid or fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to Mindspace Business Parks
Group. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to Mindspace Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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(c) Depreciation
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Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management over the balance useful life The
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013, are listed in the table
below. Depreciation on addition / deletion of property, plant and equipment made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addition /
deletion

The assets and estimated useful life are as under:

Estimated Useful Life
Asset group )
(in years)
Power assets Other assets

Right to use - Leasehold land Balance Lease term -
Buildings* 75/90 -
Plant and machinery 15 15
Electrical installation* 5 15
Computers 3 3
Temporary Structure* - 1
Office equipment* 4 4
Fumiture and fixtures* - 7
Vehicles* - 5

* For these class of assets, based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is appropriate which is different than those prescnibed under
Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013

(1) Based on intemal assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those
respective assets at SPV

(2) Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition

(3) The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation
accounted for on a prospective basis

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property. plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment under construction is disclosed as capital work in progress which is carried at cost less any recognized impairment losses. Cost comprises of
purchase price and any attributable cost such as duties, freight, borrowing costs, erection and commissioning expenses incurred in bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use

Advance paid and expenditure incurred on acquisition / construction of property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet
date are disclosed under other non current assets as advances on capital account and capital work-in-progress respectively,

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are initially
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment, if any. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less impairment, if any

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure,
including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value, Amortisation is recognised in the Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line method over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets, from the date that they are available for use

Estimated Useful Life
Asset group .
(in years)
Other assets
Computer Softwares 3
Trademarks 10

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis

De-recognition

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal, gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognised
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Investment property

Recognition and measurement

Properties including land, building and other assets, which are held either for long-term rental yield or for capital appreciation or for both, and which are not occupied
substantially by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified as investment property

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost, including related transaction costs Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in
accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model i e Cost less depreciation less impairment losses, if any Depreciation is charged when the

ses st, site labour cost, material used for construction, project
ery incurred specifically for the respective like insurance, design
on he project.

ele ents which are physically attached to the commercial buildings are considered as part of

Investment property
Acquisitions and disposals are accounted for at the date of completion of acquisitions and disposals

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to
Mindspace Business Parks Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred

Depreciation

Depreciation / amortisation is provided using straight line method as per the useful life of the assets estimated by the management over the balance useful life The
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are higher than, lower than or equal to those prescribed under Schedule 1I of the Companies Act 2013 and listed in the table
below Depreciation on addition / deletion of investment property made during the period is provided on pro-rata basis from / to the date of such addition / deletion

Estimated Useful Life
Asset group

(in years)

Right to use - Leasehold land Balance Lease term
Buildings* 75/90
Infrastructure and development 15
Roadwork* 15
Broadwalk, vantage café etc * 50

Plant and machinery 15

Office equipment* 4
Fumiture and fixtures* 7
Electrical installation* 15

* For these class of assets, based on technical assessment the management believes the useful life of the assets is appropriate which is different than those prescribed under
Part C of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013

(1) Based on internal assessment the management believes the residual value of all assets except Leasehold Land is estimated to be 5% of the original cost of those
respective assets at SPV

(2) Assets individually costing less than Rs 5,000 are fully written off in the year of acquisition

(3) The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with the effect of any changes in the estimation
accounted for on a prospective basis

Fair Value

Fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued The fair value of investment property is disclosed in the Statement of Net assets at Fair
Value

De-recognition

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the property is de-recognised

Investment properties under construction

Property that is being constructed for future use as investment property is accounted for as investment property under construction until assets are ready for their intended
use

Direct expenses like land cost, site labour cost, material used for project construction, project management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the
stte and general expenses incurred specifically for the respective project like insurance, design and technical assistance, and construction overheads are taken as the cost of
the project

Investment properties under construction represent the cost incurred in respect of areas under construction of the real estate development projects less impairment losses, if
any

Advance paid for acquisition of investment property which are not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet date are disclosed under other non current assets as
capital advance

Impairment of assets

Mindspace Business Parks Group assesses at each balance sheet date, whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,

sS i the erable amount of the assets (or where that of the erating unit
be t he and its value in use Value in use is value of e future cash
ar t us al at the end of its useful life An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying

amount of an asset or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit
and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit) in prior years A reversal of an recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are treated as direct cost and are considered as part of cost of such
assets. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Investment income eamed on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. A qualifying asset is an
asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale

Capilalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the general borrowings
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during the extended period in which active development is interrupted. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is ceased when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred

Borrowinyg cost incurred by the SPVs on inter-company loans is continued to be capitalised only to the extent Mindspace Group has incurred external borrowing cost

Inventories

Measurement of inventory

Inventories comprise of building material and components. Contractual work in progress, in respect of third party customers, is classified as work in progress Mindspace
Business Parks Group measures its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost of inventories

The cost of inventories of building material and components and work in progress comprise all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis

Net realisable value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price n the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Revenue recognition

Facility rentals

Revenue from property leased out under an operating lease is recognised over the lease term on a straight line basis, except where there is an uncertainty of ultimate
collection

Revenue from works contractual services

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when a performance obligation is satisfied by transfer of promised goods or services to a customer in accordance
with the agreement with the customer For works contract arrangement, the performance obligation gets satisfied over time, and therefore, the revenue recognition is done
by measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation from time to time as per the agreement with the customer. The progress is measured in
terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation The revenue is recognised to the extent of
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation satisfied Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of a third party

Maintenance services
Maintenance income is recognised over a period of time for services rendered to the customers

Revenue from power supply

Revenue from power supply is accounted for on the basis of billings to consumers and includes unbilled revenues accrued up to the end of the accounting year. Mindspace
Business Parks Group determines surplus/deficit i e. excess/ shortfall of aggregate gain over return on equity entitlement for the period in respect of its operations based on
the principles laid down under the respective Tariff Regulations as notified by Maharashtra Electricity Regulatory Commission (MERC), on the basis of the tariff order
issued by it.In respect of such surplus/deficit, appropriate adjustments as stipulated under the regulations are made during the period, Further, any adjustments that may
arise on annual performance review by the MERC under the tariff regulations is made after the completion of such review.

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation, The transaction price of goods sold is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Company as part of the contract. Revenue
from the sale of goods is recognised when the Group performs its obligations to its customers and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably and recovery of the
consideration is probable The fiming of such recognition in case of sale of goods is when the control over the same is transferred to the customer.

Finance Lease

For assets let out under finance lease, Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Rentals received are
accounted for as repayment of principal and finance income. Minimum lease payments receivable on finance leases are apportioned between the finance income and the
reduction of the outstanding receivable. The finance income allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining net investment in the finance lease

Contingent rents are recorded as income in the periods in which they are earned.

Sale of surplus construction material and scrap
Revenue from sale of surplus construction material and scrap is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those ¢oods net of the expected removal cost

Recognition of dividend income, interest income :

(1) Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which Mindspace REIT group has right to receive payment is established.

(it) Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis, by reference to the prncipal outstanding and the effective interest rate applicable

(ii1) Delayed payment charges and interest on delayed payments are recognised, on time proporttion basis, except when there is uncertainty of ultimate collection

Tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. 1t is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to an
item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in equity and other comprehensive
income respectively

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to
income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by end of reporting period
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(b) Deferred tax

(c

Deferred tax asset/liability is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabihties in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured that are expected to apply to the period when the asset1s
realised or the liability is settled, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences thal would follow from the manner in which Mindspace Business Parks Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction; and

- Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates, and Jjoint arrangements to the extent that Mindspace Business Park Group is able to control the
ttming of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not

reverse in the foreseeable future;

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a fransaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will
be realised simuitaneously

For operations carried out under tax holiday period (801A benefits of Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax assets or liabilities, if any, have been established for the tax
consequences of those temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases that reverse after the tax holiday ends

In the situations where one or more units of the Group are entitled to a tax holiday under the tax law, no deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of
temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period. to the extent the concerned unit's gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday
period Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the lemporary differences originate.
However. the Group restricts recopnition of deferred tax assels to thé extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such
deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

MAT credit entitlement is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period
[n the year in which MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
and shown as MAT credit entitlement under deferred tax assets This is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement is written
down to the extent it is not reasonably certain that normal income tax will be paid during the specified period.

Earmings per unit (EPU):

The basic eamings per unit is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to the unit holders of Mindspace REIT by the weighted average number of units
outstanding during the reporting period. The number of units used in computing diluted eamings/ (loss) per unit comprises the weighted average units considered for
deriving basic eamings/ (loss) per unit and also the weighted average number of units which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential units

Dilutive potential units are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing diluted earnings per unit,
only potential equity units that are dilutive and which either reduces earnings per unit or increase loss per units are included

Provisiens, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when Mindspace Business Parks Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that Mindspace
Business Parks Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration net of recoveries if any, required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will probably not, require an outflow of resources, When there
is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

A contingent asset is disclosed when there would be a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of Mindspace Business Parks Group
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates

Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange
transactions settled during the year are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss of the period.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the period-end and not covered by forward contracts, are translated at the
period-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary
foreign currency items are carried at cost
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Leases

As a Lessor

Mindspace Business Parks Group enters into lease agreements as a lessor with respect to some of its investment properties

Leases for which Mindspace Business Parks Group is a lessor is classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases

When Mindspace Business Parks Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts. The sublease is classified as a
finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease and presented as unbilled revenue in other financial assets
Initial direct costs such as brokerage expenses incurred specifically to earn revenues from an operating lease are capitalised to the carrying amount of leased asset and
recognised over the lease terin on the same basis as rental income

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of Mindspace Business Parks Group's net investment in the leases. Finance
lease income is allocated to reporting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on Mindspace Business Parks Group's net investment outstanding in respect
of the leases

As a Lessee

Mindspace Business Parks Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases ( defined as leases with a lease term of 12
months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, Mindspace Business Parks Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the
lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, Mindspace Business Parks Group uses its incremental borrowing rate

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

» fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease mcentives:

* vanable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement date.

= the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

* payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease

The lease liability is presented separately as part of Financial Liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated balance sheet The lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made,

Mindspace Business Parks Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever

* the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate

+ the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is
measured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which
case a revised discount rate is used)

* a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a scparate lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The nght-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial
direct costs  They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses

Whenever Mindspace Business Parks Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under Ind AS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabiliues and Contingent Assets’ The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset

Mindspace Business Parks Group applies Ind AS 36 Impairment of Assets to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in Note 3 5

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line  other expenses” in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Financial instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when Mindspace Business Parks Group becomes party to a contract embodying the related financial instruments.
All financial assets/ financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, plus in case of financial assets/ financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets/ financial liabilities are added to or deducted, as the case may be, from the
fair value of such assets or liabilities. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price

Financial assets:

Classification of financial assets:
Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost

(i1} The classification is done depending upon Mindspace Business Parks Group's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash

(111) For investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held

(iv) Mindspace Business Parks Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes
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Subsequent Measurement
Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on Mindspace Business Parks Group's business mode! for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. There are three measurement categories into which Mindspace Business Parks Group classifies its debt instruments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by
selling financial assets

Financial assets at fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss unless it is measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are immediately recognised in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Equity instruments:

Mindspace Business Parks Group subsequently measures all equity investiments at fair value. There are two measurement categories into which Mindspace Business Parks
Group classifies its equity instruments:

Investments in equity instruments at FVTPL:

[nvestments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless Mindspace Business Parks Group irrevocably elects on initial recognition to present subsequent
changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for equity nstruments which are not held for trading

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI:

On Initial recognition, Mindspace Business Parks Group can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected investments are initially measured at fair
value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the reserve for 'equity instruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal of the investments, but is transferred to retained eamings

Impairment of financial assets:

Mindspace Business Parks Group applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impainnent loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost, lease receivables,
trade receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset. For trade receivables, Mindspace Business Parks Group measures the loss allowance at
an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, Mindspace Business
Parks Group has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109, This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information

Derecognition of financial assets:
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
(i) the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or
(i1) Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset; and
Mindspace Business Parks Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
Mindspace Business Parks Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (other than investments in equity instruments at FVOCI), the differences between the carrying amounts measured at the
date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created
or retained by the SPV is recognised as a separate asset or liability

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of Mindspace Business Parks Group after deducting all of its liabilities Equity
instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs

Repurchase of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instrument is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments

Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound financial instruments issued by Mindspace Business Parks Group are classified separately as financial liabilities and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of Mindspace Business Parks Group's own equity instruments is an equity
nstrument

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is
recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole.
This is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible instruments are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability component and are amaoftis; ier the lives of the convertible instrument using the effective interest method
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(d) Financial Liabilities
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2)

Recognition, measurement and classification

Financial liabilities are classified as either held at a) fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, or b) at amortised cost Management determines the
classification of its financial habthties at the time of imitial recognition or. where applicable. at the ume of 1eclassification

Mindspace Business Parks Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings and derivative financial instruments Subsequent
measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss or at amortized cost. All changes in
fair value of financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Amortised cost category is applicable to loans and
borrowings, trade and other payables. After initial recognition the financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate method

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires Gains and losses are recognized in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented on net basis in the Balance Sheet when there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises of cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value

Statement of Cash flow

Cash flow is reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals
of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of Mindspace Business Parks Group are segregated

For the purpose of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of Mindspace Business Parks Group's cash management

As per para 8 of Ind AS 7 “where bank overdrafis which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents Bank overdraft, in the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet. 1s mcluded as “borrowings™ under Financial Liabilities

Employee benefits plan

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS - 19 ‘Employee benefits’

Sheort term employee benefits

All employee benelits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, etc and are
recognised in the period in which the employee rendered the related services The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period.

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made as and when
services are rendered by the emplovees Mindspace Business Parks Group's provident find contribution, in respect of certain employees, is made to a government
administered fund and charged as an expense. The above benefits are classified as defined contribution schemes as Mindspace Business Parks Group has no further
defined obligations beyond the monthly contributions

Defined benefit plan

Mindspace Business Parks Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. Mindspace Business Parks Group has determined the gratuity liability based on
intemal calculation based on the number of years completed and last drawn basic salary as mentioned in the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The liability or asset
recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the
fair value of plan assets, if any. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries / SPVs using the projected unit credit method

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Other long term employee benefits - Compensated absences

Benefits under compensated absences are accounted as other long-term employee benefits Mindspace Business Parks Group has determined the liability for compensated
absences based on internal calculation which is determined on the basis of leave credited to employee’s account and the last drawn salary. Mindspace Business Parks
Group's net obligation in respect of compensated absences is the amount of benefit to be settled in future, that employees have eamed in return for their service in the
current and previous years. The benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The obligation is measured on the basis of an actuarial valuation / by SPVs using the
projected unit credit method. Remeasurement is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. Compensated absences
which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognised as a liability

Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax

Mindspace Business Parks Group has elected to present earnings before interest, depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax as
a separate line item on the face of the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss Mindspace Business Parks Group measures eamings before interest,
depreciation and amortisation, regulatory income / expense, exceptional items and tax on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations

Subsequent events
The Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements are adjusted to reflect events that occur after the reporting date but before the Condensed Consolidated Financial
Statements are issued. The Consolidated Financial Statements have their own date of authorisation, which differs from that of the financial statements of the entities
which are part of Mindspace REIT group. Therefore, when preparing the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements, management considers events up to the date of
authorisation of these financial statements
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Errors and estimates

Mindspace Business Parks Group revises its accounting policies if the change is required due to a change in Ind AS or if the change will provide more relevant and
reliable information to the users of the Condensed Consolidated financial statement Changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively

A change in an accounting estimate that results in changes in the carrying amounts of recognised assets or liabilities or to profit or loss is applied prospectively in the
period(s) of change

Discovery of errors results in revisions retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts of assets, liabilities and equity of the earliest prior period in which the error is
discovered. The opening balances of the earliest period presented are also restated

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use Such assets
are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains and losses
on re-measurement are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investment properties are no longer amortised or depreciated, and any equity-
accounted investee is no longer equity accounted
Segment Information

Primary segment information
The primary reportable segment is business segments.

Business segment

The Mindspace Group is organised into the two operating divisions - real estate' and “power distribution’, which are determined based on the internal orgamisation and
management structure of the Mindspace Group and its system of intemal financial reporting and the nature of its risks and its returns, The Governing Board of the
manager has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM) CODM evaluates the Mindspace Group's performance, allocates resources based on analysis
of various performance indicators of the Group as disclosed below

Real estate segment

Real estate comprises development and management of projects under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other commercial assets The
Group has its project/properties in Mumbai Region, Hyderabad, Pune and Chennai for development and management of commercial SEZ, IT parks and commercial assets
including incidental activities.

Power distribution
The state power regulator has taken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Infra as Deemed Distribution Licensee for Power. The approved
SPVs being Deemed Distributor, supplies power to customers within the notified SEZ

Secondary segment information
Mindspace Business Parks Group's operations are based in India and therefore Mindspace Business Parks Group has only one geographical segment - India

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the share of reserves and capital attributable to the shareholders of the SPVs who have not agreed to exchange their shares in the SPVs
for units of Mindspace REIT and will not become the unitholders of Mindspace REIT Below is the list of shareholders of the SPVs for whom non-controlling interest has
been recognised Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss,
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Condensed Balance Sheet

SPV Shareholder % Holding in SPV
(As on rupurtil&date]
KRIT Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure 11.0%
Corporation Limited
[ntime Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure 11.0%
Corporation Limited
Sundew Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure 11.0%

Corporation Limited
Ind AS 110 requires entities to attribute the profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income to the owners of Mindspace REIT and to the non-controlling
interests. This requirement needs to be followed even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Cash distribution to unit holders

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to Unitholders when the distribution is authorised and a legal obligation has been created. As per the REIT
Regulations, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Governing Board of the Manager. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in other equity

Distribution Policy
The Net Distributable Cash Flows of Mindspace REIT are based on the cash flows generated from Mindspace REIT’s assets and investments

In terms of the Distribution Policy and the REIT Regulations, not less than 90% of the NDCF of each of the Asset SPVs is required to be distributed to Mindspace REIT,
in proportion of their shareholding in the Asset SPV, subject to applicable provisions of the Companies Act or the LLP Act Presently, NDCF to be received by Mindspace
REIT from the Asset SPVs may be in the form of dividends, interest income, principal loan repayment, proceeds of any capital reduction or buyback from the Asset SPVs,
sule proceeds out of disposal of investments if any or assets directly held by Mindspace REIT or as specifically permitted ynder the Trust Deed or in such other form as
may be permissible under the applicable Jaw

The Manager is required to and shall declare and distribute at least 90% of the NDCF of Mindspace REIT as distributions (“REIT Distributions™) to the Unitholders. Such
REIT Distributions shall be declared and made for every quarter of a Financial Year
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Recent Pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendiment Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022 to amend the following Ind AS
which are effective from April 01, 2022

Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to Ind AS 103

- The amendments replaced the reference to the ICAT’s “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements under Indian Accounting Standards™ with
the reference to the “Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standard™ without significantly changing its requirements

The amendments also added an exception to the recognition principle of Ind AS 103 Business Combinations to avoid the issue of potential “day 2" gains or losses arising
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within the scope of Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets or Appendix C, Levies, of Ind
AS 37, if incurred separately. It has also been clarified that the existing guidance in Ind AS 103 for contingent assets would not be affected by replacing the reference to
the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements under Indian Accounting Standards

- Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to Ind AS 16

The amendments modified paragraph 17(e) of Ind AS 16 to clarify that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be
recognised in the profit or loss but deducled from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment

- Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to Ind AS 37

The amendments to Ind AS 37 specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making The amendments apply a
“directly related cost approach™. The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs for example direct labour and
materials and an allocation of other costs directly related to contract activities for example an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling that contract. General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the confract

There were certain amendments to standards and interpretations which are applicable for the first time for the year ended 31 March 2023, but either the same are not
relevant or do not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group

On March 31, 2023, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015 by issuing the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April |, 2023, as below:

Ind AS | — Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies Accounting policy information, together
with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The Group does not
expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of
the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences The Group does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in accounting estimates has been
replaced with a definition of accounting estimates Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounis in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty The Group does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements

The Group has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

8

Non Current Investment

Particulars

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Financial assets

Investments in equity instruments
Unquoted equity shares measured at FVTOCI

2,000 equity shares of Stargaze Properties Private Limited, face value of Rs, 10 each fully paid-up

(31 March 2022 : 2,000)

Unquoted investment in Government Securities at amortised cost
7.61% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2022: 25,000)
8.24% GOI 2027 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2022: 25,000)
7.17% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 25,000 units (31 March 2022: 25,000)
7.26% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2022: 22,000)
7.06% Central Government Loan (Face value Rs 100), 22,000 units (31 March 2022: 22.000)
6.67% GOI 2050 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 8,000 units (31 March 2022: 8,000)
7.72% GO1 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 10,000 units (31 March 2022: 10,000)
6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 11,300 units , (31 March 2022: NIL)
7.26% GOI 2029 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 18,000 units (31 March 2022: 18,000)
7.40% GOI 2055 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 28,700 units (31 March 2022: 28,700)
.33% GOI 2036 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 21,210 units (31 March 2022: 21,210)
7.06% GOI 2046 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 12,000 units (31 March 2022: 12,000)
8.33% GOI 2036 Bond (Face value Rs 100), 1,790 units (31 March 2022: 1,790)
6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 28,000 units (31 March 2022: NIL)
6.99% GOI 2051 Bond (Face Value Rs 100), 17,700 units (31 March 2022: NIL)

N W S = W W N e NN ON W W

e e o NN W W

S = L W N

N
-]

Investments measured at cost (gross)

Investments measured at fair value through profit or loss

Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments measured at amortised cost

Aggregate amount of impairment recognised

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

9 Other financial assets (Non current)

Particulars

Unsecured, considered good

Fixed deposits with banks*

Unbilled revenue

Interest receivable

Finance lease receivable

Security deposits for development rights
Security deposits

Other receivables

As at
31 March 2023

32
1,058
23
844
60
497
12
2,526

As at
31 March 2022

* These fixed deposits includes amounts held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and earmarked for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

10 Deferred tax assets (net)
Particulars

Deferred tax assets

11A Non-current Tax assets (net)
Particulars

Advance Tax (net of provision for tax)

11B Current Tax assets (net)
Particulars

Advance Tax (net of provision for tax)

12 Other non-current assets
Particulars

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances

Advance to vendors

Balances with government authorities

13 Inventories (valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Particulars

Building materials and components

Inventory of Equipment

14 Trade receivables
Particulars

Unsecured
Considered good
Credit impaired
Less: loss allowance

As at
31 March 2023

473

As at
31 March 2023
928

928

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2023

293
237
50
As at
31 March 2023
40
32
72
As at

31 March 2023

572

82
(82)
572

57
904
23
874
60
545
11
2,474
As at
31 March 2022
1,051
As at
31 March 2022
1,041
1,041
As at
31 March 2022
23
23
As at
31 March 2022
697
5
130
40
872
As at
31 March 2022
26
26
As at
31 March 2022
210
40
(40

210



15A Cash and cash  uivalents

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Cash on hand 3 2
Balances with banks
- in current accounts* 3,176 3,046
- 1N escrow accounts 3 0
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than
three months 880 430
4,062 3,478

*Includes balance with bank of Rs 0 million as on 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: Rs 1 million) for unpaid distributions.

15B Other bank balances

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fixed deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months and less than
twelve months* 78 73
Balance with banks** 128 48
206 121
* These fixed includes amounts held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and earmarked for Debenture Redemption Reserve.

** These are amounts, deposited in separate escrow accounts, earmarked for on-going Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) projects.

16 Other financial assets (Current)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable

- on fixed deposits 4 1

- from others 11 2
Interest accrued but not due

- on fixed deposits 1

- from others 3 15
Security deposits 170 21
Fixed deposits with banks* 322 432
Unbilled revenue 1,613 446
Finance lease receivable 309 268
Other receivables**

- Considered good 102 292

- Credit impaired
Less: loss allowance

* These fixed includes amounts held as lien in respect of loan availed by the SPVs and earmarked for Debenture Redemption Reserve.
** Refer Note 48 for related party disclosure.

17 Other current assets

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Deposit / advance for supply of goods and rendering of services 330 115
Loan to staff 0 0
Balances with government authorities 149 108

107 45

King
&



NDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Cond d C lidated Financial S

Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

18 Corpus
Lomus
Asat | Apnl 2021 0
Changes dunng the sear E
Closing balance as at 31 March 2022 o
As at 1 April 2022 0

Changes durme the penod
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 []

19 Unit Capital
A Unit Capital No. Amount
RS S e ]
As at | Apnl 2021 593,018,182 162,839
Changes dunng the yvcar . .
Closing balance as at 31 March 2022 593,018,182 162,839
As at 1 April 2022 593,018,182 162,839

Chanpes dunni the peinod - -
Closing balunce as at 31 March 2023 593,018.182 162,839

(a) Terms/rights attached to Units and other disclosures
The Trust has only one class of Units Each Unit represcnts an undnided beneficial interest 1n the Trust Each holder of Units 15 entitled to onc vote per umt The
Umitholders have the nght to receive ar least 90% of the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust at least once n et cny six months i cach financiat sear m accordance
with the REIT Regulations The Gosening Board of Investment Manager approves distributions The distabution will be 1n proportion to the number of Units held by the
Unitholders The Trust declares and pass distnbutions in [ndian Rupecs

Under the provisions of the REIT Regulations. Mindspace Business Parks REIT 1s required to distnbute to Umitholders not less than 90% of the net distributable cash
flows of Mindspace Business Parks REIT for cach financial sear Accordingly. a portion of the Unut Capital contauns a contractual obligation of the Mindspace Business
Parks REIT to pay to its Unitholders cash distnbutions Henee, the Unit Capital 1s a compound financial instrument which contains cquity and habiluy components in
accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments Presentation Howeser, in accordance with SEB] Curculars (No  CIR/IMD/DF/146/2016 dated 29 December 2016 and
No CIR/AMD/DF 412016 dated 26 Docember 2016) ssued under the REIT Rezulations. the Unitholdées™ funds have been presented as “Equity | monder to comply with
the requiremunts of Seetivn H of Ammevure A to the SERI Curcular dated 26 December 2016 dealing with the minmum presentation and disclosure requirements for key
fimmneinl statements Consistent with Unit Capital bemp clesafied as equiy. the distrt o U Hers 1s also presunted m Statement of Chanses i Unitholders'
Equits when the distributions are approved by the Governing Board of Imvestment Manager

(b Unithotders holding more than 5 percent Units in the Trust
Name of the unitholder As at 31 March 2023 As ar 31 March 1022
No of Units % holding No of Units %5 holdne

Platinum Illumnation A 2018 Trust 54,375,000 9.17% 34.375.000 9 [7%
Anbec Constructions LLP 35,404,890 5.97% 35.404.890 397%
Cape Trading LLP 35,404,890 5.97% 35.404.890 397%
Chandru Lachmandas Raheja 32,634,433 5.50% 32,634.433 550%
Capstan Trading LLP 41,095,719 6.93% 41.095.719 693%
Casa2 Mana Properties LLP 46,820,719 7.90% 41.095.719 6 93%
Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP 41,095,719 6.93% 41,095.719 693%
Raghukool Estate Developement LLP 41,937,069 7.07% 536.212.069 611%
K Rahgya Cosp Prvate Limited 36,596,296 6.17% 36.596 296 6 17%

(c) The Trust has not allotted any fully pard-up units by way of bonus umits nor has it bought back any class of umits from the date of registration till the balance sheet date
Further. the Trust had issued an aggregate of 36.363.600 Units for cash at Rs 275 per unit and 556 634.382 Units at a pnee of Rs 275 per unit for consideration other
than cash duning the peniod of five years immediately preceding the balance shect date

20 Other Equity*

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 Asar
31 March 2022

Reserves and Surplus

Retamned camings (15,546) (6.743)
Debenture redemption resenve 534 109
{15.012) (6.634)

*Refer Condensced Consolidated Statement of changes in Unit holder's equity for detarled movement m other equity balances

Retained earnings :
The cumulative gaie or loss ansing from the operations which is retaned and 1s recogmized and accumulated under the heading of retained eamings At the end of the
period. the profivloss after tax 15 transferred from the statement of profit and loss to the retained camings account

Debenture redemption reserve

As per the Compantes (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules. 2014 (amended). SPVs are required to creatc Debenture Redemption Resenve (DRR) out of profits, which 1s
available for payment of dividend. equal to 10% of the amount of debentures issued Accordmgly. the SPVs have created DRR out of their profits in terms of the
Companics (Share Caputal and Debenture)Rules. 2014 (as amended) which would be untized for redemption of debentures at the ume of its matuan
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Zl A

21 AQr)

Borrowings

Particulars Asat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Secured

Terms loans

- from banks (refer Note 21 A) 15,276 19.963
- from othcr partics (refer Note 21 A) 1,578 -

Flexi term loan (refer Notes (21 Au)-Note 2 and 21 A(vi)-Note 3)) 380

Debentures
Sccured. lsted. semor. taxable. lative. rated. red blc non- - 1.988
convertible debentures (NCD Senies 1) (net of 1ssuc cxpenses. at amortised cost)
{refer Note 21 B(1)}

10 year G-Scc linked sccurcd. listed. semor. taxable. non-cumulative, rated. 3,741 3.730
pnncipal protected - market linked. redeemable. non-convertible debentures

{"Market Linked Debentures / MLD Semes 2) (net of issue cxpenscs. at

amortised cost) (refer Note 21 B(in)

Secured. listed. semor. taxable. non-cumulative. rated. redeemable mnon- 750 750
convertible debentures (NCD Series 2) (net of issuc cxpenscs. at amortised cost)
(refer Note 21 B(mu))

Semor. Listed. Rated. Secured. Non-Cumulanive. 3,986 3972
Taxable. Transferable. Redecmable Non-Convertiable Debentures {Sundew NCD
1) (refer Note 21 B(iv))

Sccurcd. listed. scrior. taxable. mnon lative. rated. red blc non- 4,971 4954
convcertible debenturcs (NCD Series 3) (net of ssuc expenscs. ar amortised cost)
trefer Note 21 B(v))

Senior. hsted. rated. sccured. non: L taxable. t ble. red bl 4.969
non-convertible debentures ( NCD Senes + ) (Refer note 21 Bivi))

Sccured. bsted. rated. secured. non: lative. taxable. t di bl 5461 -
non ible deb ("Mindsp REIT Green Bond 1) (net of issuc
expenses. at amortised cost) (31 March 2022 Nil) (refer Note 21 B{viu))

Bonds - Scnwor. Listed. Rated. Secured. Non-Cummulative. Taxable 4,730 -
Transferable. Redeemable Non-Convertible Bonds (MBPPL NCB 1) (Refer note
21 B(vi))

45,842 35357

Repayment terms, rate of interest and security details

Gigaplex
Note I: Lender Term loans - INR Nil mulion (3! March 2022 - INR 827 million) . Current maturitics of long-term debt - INR 820 mullion (31 March 2022 - INR 86
mullion). Bank Overdratt of INR 6 million (31 March 2022 INR 500 mulion)

(1) Nature of securities:

1) Hypotheciation of movable fixed asset pertaining to Property . present and fiture,

ii) Hypotheciation of currcnt assct and recetvables pertaining to Property . present and future

in) Escrow account and Debt service reserve account (DSRA).

w) Charge by way of Registered Mortgage of certain foor/unit of IT building named Building 4.

v) Mortgage/First Pan-Passu charge by way of registered mortgage on all that picee or parcel of land known as Plot No IT- 5 m the Trans Thane Creck (TTC)
Industrial Arca. MIDC (Airol Knowledge Park) .Navi Mumba: admeasurements. 2.02.345 Squarc Mcters

(2) Terms for repayment:
The said Rupec term loan shall be repaid in 156 structured monthly installment from the date of disbursement of rupee term loan ending on August 31. 2034 The loan
carries interest rate of 8 60%

Note 2: Lender Term loans - INR 1.279 million (31 March 2022 INR 1.460 million): Current maturitics of long-term debt - INR 26 million {31 March 2022 INR 91
million): Bank Overdraft of INR Nil million (31 March 2022 : INR 484 million) ‘

(1) Nature of securities:
Exclusive EM/ RM charge of Building No 1 along with Pari-Passu charge on all that picce or parcel of land known as Plot No IT-35 n the Trans Thane Creck (TTC)
Industrial Arca. MIDC (Awroli Knowledge Park) .Navi Mumbai admeasurements. 2.02.300 Square Mcters

Exclusive charge on entirc current asscts (including receivables. moveable fixed asscts and cash flows) and moveable fixed asscts, both prescnt and future. of Building No
1

Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over:

a) All the nights. titles, mierest. benefits, clums and demands whatsaeser. of the Bormower. n the contracts. less peotection covers. etc. pertaining

to Building No | {b) all the mghts_ tikes. mteres, benefite, clams and demands whatsoever. of the Borrower n any letter of crediL guamntee. performance bond provided

by any coumerpamy 1o the Borower, pertaumig 1o Buikdsg No | (c) all the nehts. titles, interest. benefits. clams and demands whatsocver. of the Borrower in the
policies. i ds. d by the Borrower or procured by any of its contractors favounng the Borrow cr. pertaining to Building No |

Exclusive charsc oser the Escrow Account of Building No 1

{2) Terms for repayment:
The term loan from Lender carties iterest rate of $ 10% pa  payable monthly

The said loan shall be repaid in struchured 36 monthly mstallment. beginnung from the end of the month of the date of first disbursement of rupee tenm loan and ending on
Januan 31,2024




21 Atn)

21 A(m)

21 A(n)

Horizonview

Note I: Lender Term Loan of INR Nil million (31 March 2022 INR 999 milhion). Current Matuntics of Term Loan of INR 1000 Million (31 March 2022 INR Ni
million). Bank Overdraft of INR 175 million (31 March 2022 INR 140 milhon)

(1) Nature of securities:

() First and exclusive charge through registered mortgage over units compnsing of lcasable arca of 4 6% lacs sq ft 1c company’s share m Tower ‘B’ located at
Poonamallec Road. Porur. Chennan. alongw ith proportionate car parks. open space. amemitics and undivided share of land {present and future) with all nghts appurtcnants
there to along with nght of way to be herem refermed 1o as "Secunty Property”

(i) together with first and cxclusive charge by way of hypothccation on Current Assets. Moy able Propertics. Escrow Account. Recetvables and Specific Asscts related 1o
Tower B. commerzone Porur. located at Mount Poonamallec High Road. Porur. Chennau

() Unconditional and ir bl from B Parks REIT

(2) Terms of repayment:

Bullet repayment at the cnd of the month after 36 months from the dalc of first disbursement  The loan carmies intercst ratc 8 10% pa for Term Loan facdity and OD
facilits {Sublimit of Term loan)

Note 2: Lender Term Loan of INR 1.483 mullion (31 March 2022 INR Nil mulion). Current maturtics of long-term debt of INR 8 million (31 March 2022 INR Nil
milhon) Flew term loan of INR 0 muilion (31 March 2022 INR NIL).

(1) Nature of securities:

{1) Charge over leasable area of 0 342 Mn Sq Ft sttuated on the 3rd to the 9th floor n Tower A. Commerzone compnsing of two towers bemg Tower A and Tower B
consisting of a combmed triple bascment. ground floor plus ninc office floor. constructed on the land admeasuring approxumately 3 acres 51 cents (cquivalent to 22.425 13
square meters) as per revenuc records beanng Sunvey No 25/3A. Surves No 25/4H5. Survey No 25/4H6B and Survey No 25/41 situate ar 111/168. Porur village.
Ambattur Taluk. Thiruvallur District. D No 111 Mount Poonamallce High Road. Porur. Chennai 600 116

(u) Hypoth of bles p ing to Honzonview's share of Units m Tower A through Escrow account

(2) Terms of repayment:
Repayment to be done through staggered monthly installment till November 2036 The loan cames interest rate 7 60% for the entie facility

KRC infra
Note 1: Lender Term Loan of INR 4,449 mullion (31 March 2022 INR 4.900 mllion). Current matunnes of long-term debt of INR 451 mulion (31 March 2022 INR
360 million) and Bank Overdraft of INR 64 million (31 March 2022 INR 911 mullion)

Terms Loans from Lender 1s sccured by way of Mortgage on the project Land and Building of R1 and R4

(1) Nature of securities:

a Exclusive registered murgage over project Land & Building for R1 and Exclusive registered mortgage over project Land & Building for R4
b Exclusive charge over recenables of Budding R and Exclusive charge over receivables of Building R+

¢ Fixed deposit pledged - DSRA cquivalent to 3 months interest and principal

d Corporte Guarantec from Mindspace REIT

(2} Terms of repayment:
Repavment in 110 instalments upto February 10. 2030 The overdraft facilits 1s pavable on demand Term Loan camnes interest rate of 8 05% pa

Note 2: Lender Term Loan of INR 471 million (31 March 2022 NIL): Current matuntics of long-term debt of INR 27 million (31 March 2022 NIL) and Bank
Overdraft of INR 395 mullion (31 March 2022 NIL)

Terms Loans from Lender 1s securcd by way of Mortgage on the project Land and Building of R and R4
(1) Nature of securities:

a Exclusive Mortgage over Floor 1.2.3.4.5.12 and 13 of building R3 alongwith land appurtcnant thercto
b Exclusive charge over reccivables from Floor 1.2.3.4.5.12 and 13 of building R3

¢ Fixed deposit pledged - DSRA cquivalent to 3 months interest and principal

d Corporte Guarantce from Mindspace REIT

(2) Terms of repayment:

Repayment i 180 mstalments upto March 31. 2038 The overdraft facthty 1s repayable over 35 monthh wnstallments starting from 31 Max 2035 Term Loan camncs
interest ratc of 8 30% pa

MBPPL

Note 1: Lender Term Loan of INR 1.849 million (31 March 2022 INR 4.458 million). Current maturitics of long-term debt of INR 2.613 million (31 March 2022 : INR
340 million): Bank Overdraft of INR Nil million (31 March 2022 INR 3| million)

Nature of securities:

Term loan and overdraft from Lender are sccured by assignment of leasc rent reccivable and exclusive charge on property bemg all that picce and parcel of land together
with the building No 1. 3 and 4 at Airoli constructed thereon

Exclusive Ist Charge over all the current assets. present and future. mcluding Cashflow / rentals ansing out of Building No 1. 3 & 4 (Excluding the corresponding
electricity reccivables of Bidg No 1.3 & 4)

Exclusive hypothecation charge on all the movable fixed assets of the property. both present and future

Term loan and overdraft from Axis Bank Limited are secured by exclusve charge by way of mortgage of the building No 2. 7. 8 & 9 (only floor no 6,7.8) alongwith
undivided intcrest in the appurtenant land thereon at Mindspace Airoli East Exclusive charge on the piece and parcel of land at Auroli east has been modificd to pari-passu
charge on entire land parcel and amended modification deed is in the process of cxecution

Exclusive charge on the futurc cash flows of leasc rentals 1o be received from and out of the Building 2.7.8. 9(only Hoor no 6.7.8)

Terms of repayment:

Term loan of Rs 3.000 Millions 1s repayable 168 monthly stallments starting from 30 September 2018 The loan carnes mterest rate of 9 40%

Overdraft of Rs 500 millions is repayable alongwith the term loans and carmies interest rate of 9 40% pa currenth

Term loan of Rs 2.530 Millions is rcpayable 156 monthly installments starting from 27 March 2020 The loan carries terest rate of 8 10% pa currenth payablc monthly
Overdraft of Rs 1.500 millions is repayable alongwith the term loans and cares interest rate of 8 10% pa currently

Note 2: Lender  Term Loans of INR Nil million (31 March 2022 INR 1.684 million). Current maturities of long-term debr of INR Nil million (31 March 2022 INR 149
miltion) and Bank Overdraft of INR Nil million (31 March 2 INR 70 mullion)




21 A(v)

21 A(vi)

Nature of securities:
Term loan from the Lender is 15 sccured by exclusive charge on-
1) All that picee and parcel of demarcated portion of the land admeasunng about 16.292 sq mirs (“the Building No 3-6 Portion”) togcther with the building no 5 and 6
consisting of sult. 2 parking floors and 8 office floors constructed thereon having a chargeable arca of abount 0 $3 ma sq R which is constructed ar Mindsapec. Airoh
2) First and cxclusive charge on lease rentals from the tenants of building 3 and 6 at Mindspacc. Arrol
3) Debt Senice Resenve Account (DSRA) of 2 equated monthly installments i the form of Deposit Under Licn
4) Guarantce of Mindspace REIT

Terms of repayment:

Term loan of Rs 3.653 Millions 1s repayable i 120 ball monthly Il b from October 2018 The loan cames interest of 8 10% The loan has been
partially repand m Februany 2022

Overdraft of Rs 100 Mullions is repayable alongwith the term loans and cames mterest raic of 8 43%

The above mentioned loan 15 prepaid cntirely duning the vear

Note 3: Lender  Term Loan of INR 2.009 mullion (31 March 2022 INR 1,729 million). Curreat matunities of long-term debt of INR 237 mullion (31 March 2022 [NR
264 milbon)

Nature of securities:

(@)() first and exclusive charge by way of on land ad ng approx 23.400 sq meters focated at Suney No 35 Hissa No 9+10+11+12B.
Ahmednagar Road. Vadgaon Sheri. Punc - 411014 along with building/structures constructed/to be constructed thercon admeasuring Approx 4 63 lakh sq ft of leasable
carpet arca and car parking's and on ali the movable fixed assets in the buildng cxcluding those owned by the lessecs: (Sccurity for Term Loan Facility | & 2)

(a)()) Escrow of recenvables from sale/leasc/transfer of the property offered as securtty wncluding all revenues gencraled from cwisting and future lessees of the property .
(Securmy for Term Loan Facility | & 2)

(a)(m) An amount equivalent to one months Debt Servicing obligation during the cnure Tenurc of the Facilty shall be mantaned in the (DSRA) mamntaned with KMBL
at all umes from the datc of first disbursement (Sccuntty for Term Loan Facility 1 & 2)

a(w) Corp G provided by Mindspacc B Parks REIT Specific 1o Term Loan Facility 2

Terms of repayment:

Term Loan Facilits | Term loan of 2.800 million is obtained al an micrest rate of 9 85% linked to Repo rate with quarterdy resct and is repayable n 44 monthly
mstallments starting from the month after datc of first disbursement

Term Loan Facilits 2 Term Loan 1s obtamed at an interest rate of 9 03% finked to 1 Yr KMCLR with Yearly resct and 15 Repayable in 144 monthly mstallmeats after the
moratorium of 44 months from the date of first disbursement Overdraft Facility 1s repavable on demand and carnes interest rate of 9 05%%

Note 4: Lender  Term Loan of INR 1,677 million (31 March 2022 NIL). Current matunties of long-term debt of INR 46 million (31 March 2022 NIL) and Bank
Overdraft of INR 4 million (31 March 2022 INR Nil million)

Nature of securities:

1) Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on the enure Buiding Nos 3 & 6 consisting of sult. 2 parking floors and 8 office floors having a chargeable arca of
about 086 Mnsq ft which 15 constructed on the larger piece of leaschold land known as Plot No 3 in the Kalwa Industnal Arca within the village lmits of Iithan and
Airavali Taluka and registration sub-distnict Thane distnct and registration district Thane contained by admcasurement 1.98.997 squarc meters or thereabouts. along with
first pan-passu charge on the Land

2) First and excluswve charge over the lease rentals (recenvables) from tenants of building no 586 at Mmd Spacc. Asroli. Navi Mumbar, Distnct Thane. Maharashtra
through an Escrow account

Terms of repayment:
Term loan 1s obtained at an mterest rate of 8 03% with vearly reset and 1s reparable n 180 monthly installments
The overdraft facility 1s repayable over 23 monthly mstallments starting from {3 March 2036 Term Loan camics iterest rate of 8 05% pa

KRIT
Note 1: Lender  Overdraft facilits of INR 283 nullion (31 March 2022 INR 44 mullion)

Nature of securities:
Overdraft imit from Lender 1s sccured with follow mg

Prmmany Exclusive charge on the entire asscts. both movables (excluding current asscts) and immoveable of the Borrower m the Property_ present and future

Collatcral

a) Exclusive secunity charge on the entire current assets of the Borrower in the Properts. present and futurc

b) Property 1s defincd as Bldg no 5 (alongwith appurtcnant land thereto) leased to BA Continuum Solutions - with lcasable arca of ~ 1 14 lakhs sq ft and Floor | & 2
(alongwith proportionate undivided terest in the land appurtenant thereto) of Bldg no 4A & B leascd to EIT Services India Pyt Ltd - with leasable arca of ~ 0 43 lakhs sq
/"

Terms of repayment:

Bank overdraft is repayable on demand

Sundew Properties Limited

Note 1: Lender : Non current borrowings of INR Nil mitlion (31 March 2022 : INR 2.925 million): Current maturitics of long-term debt of INR Nil million (31 March
2022 INR 299 million) and Bank Overdraft of INR Nil million (31 March 2022 : INR 91 million)

Nature of securities;

- Term loan and Bank Overdraft from Lender is sccured by way of charge on all picce and parcel of land bearing sub plot no 12C admeasuring 15.538 64 sq mitrs (3 84
acres) together with the building no 12C having built -up area of about 7 80 lacs sq & constructed thereon at SEZ project comprising of 40 25 acres land. and further
secured by way of hypothecation of all present and future book debts. outstanding monies. receivables. claims due arising from Company’s premises viz building no 12C
bearing Survey no 64 {part) situatcd at Madh Village. Serilingmpally Mandal. Ranga Redds District. Hydcrabad and also by a lien(including the nght of set off) on the
Deposit placed with HSBC from tme to time. including any intcrest accrued thercon and any renewals thereof from time to tune and further. secured by way of charge on
all picce and parcel of land bearing sub plot no 11 admcasuring about 12,008 46 sq mtrs {2 96 acres) (de-notified SEZ Portion) together with the building no 1} having
built-up area of about 5 80 lacs sq ft constructed thereon at SEZ project comprising of 40 25 acres land. and further by way of hypothecation of all present and future
book debts. outstanding moncs. receivables. claims duc ansmg from Company's premises viz building no 11 beanng Survey no 64 (part) sttuated at Madhapur Village
Senlingmpally Mandal. Ranga Reddy Distnct, Hyderabad

Terms of repayment:

Repayable in 120 monthly instalments of varyng amounts commencing from October 2018 The loan currenth cames an mierest rate of 8 10% per annum Overdmf of
Rs 200 Mulons 1s repayable alongwith the term loans and carrics intcrest rate of 8 43% (31 March 2022 6 60% per annum) The loan 1s fully repaid in the month of
March 2023
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Note 2 ‘Lender Term Loan INR 705 mulhion (31 March 2022 INR 753 million). Current matunties of long-tcrm debt INR 48 mullion (31 March 2022 INR 37 mullion)
Bank Overdraft INR Y6 million (31 March 2022 INR 225 milhon)

Nature of sccunics

Term loan and Bank Oscrdraft from Lender is sccurcd by way of charge on All the prece & parcel of Building 14 together with sub-plot of land located at Surves no 64.
situated a1 Madh Village. Senl pally Mandal Ranga Reddy Distnct. Hyderabad admeasunng approximalely 14.456 43 sq mtrs . having total leasable arca of
around 329.030sq R ncluding ali the structures thereon both present & future along with all the development potential ansing thereon ncluding additional devel p
potential m the form of TDR. premium FSI. ctc . both present and future { Property ) and Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Scheduled Recen ables and all
insurance procceds. both present and future pertaming to the Property and Exclusive charge by way of hypothecation on the Escrow Account along with all momes
credrted/deposited therem (in w hatever form the same may be). and all investments in respect thereof (in whatever form the same may be) pertaining to the Properm

Terms of repayment
‘Repayable in 120 monthly instalments of vars ing amounis
The Rupee Term loan faciliy currenth carmes an nterest rate of 7 40% per annum and the Overdrafi facility cames an mierest rate of 8 80% per annum

Note 3 Lender Non current borrowmgs of INR 93 million (31 March 2022 [INR NIL). Current maturttics of long-term debt of INR 4 million (31 March 2022 NIL)
Flexi term loan of INR 380 miilion (31 March 2022 INR NIL). Currcat maturitics of Flexi term loan of INR 10 million (31 March 2022 [NR NIL)

Nature of securities:

| First and Exclusive charge by way of Equitable mortgage on the demarcated portion of the land admeasunng about 12.008 46 sq mtrs (2 96 acros) {de-notificd SEZ
Portion) bemg o pornon of the langer propens waether with the Bunldme No 11 consisting of 3 basement. 1 stilt. | (Parking + office) and 13 office floors admeasuring
shaut 602436 &g f 2t the Homower's SEZNON SEZ project compnzing of 40 25 acres land (larger Property) bearing Survey No 64 {part) being and situated a1
Madh Village. Serit pally Mandal Ranga Reddy Districr. Huderabad 50008)

2 First and exclusive charge over the lease rentals (recevables) from tenants of bullding no 11 swutated at Mmd: Cyberabad. Madhapur. Hyderabad through an
Escrow account

Terms of repayment:

Repayable m 136 d monthly I The entire facility currenth carmcs an interest rate of § 00% per annum

P

Avacado

Note | Lender Term Loan INR 2.838 mullion (31 March 2022 INR 227 mullion). Currenl matunties of long term borrowings INR 89 million (31 March 2022 &
milhon) and Bank Overdraft of INR 196 million (31 March 2022 INR 0 million)

Nature of securities:

Loan from Lender has been sccured by way

1) Exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage on all the picce & parcel of land located at Plot no C-61. admeasurng approx 3.818 19 squarc meters. G-Block.
Bandra Kurla Complex. Bandra East. Mumbas together with the structure constructed thercon consisting of two basemeats and ground plus cight upper floors all
colicctively admeasuring 1.46.350 squarc fect) along with any additional TDR

2) Exclusive charge on movable fixed. current assels and recenvables both present and future assoctated with the Property

The loan carnes mterest rate of 7 40% per annum

Terms of repayment:
Loan 1s repayable in 148 monthly installments

Mindspace REIT

In D 2020. Mind B Parks REIT issued 2.000 secured. listed. scnior. taxable, L . rated. red 3 ible deb ("NCD
Serics 1) having face value of Rs 10.00.000 (Rupces ten lakhs onlhy) cach. amounting to Rs 2.000.000.000 (Rupees two thousand million only) with a coupon rate of
645% pa payable quartery begmning from the end of first full quarter from the datc of allotment i 31 March 2021. with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redemption datc 1¢ 16 December 2023 The tenure of the sud NCD Series | 1s 36 months from 17 December 2020. bemg date of allotment

This NCD Series | was listed on BSE Limited on 21 December 2020

Security terms

NCD Sencs | are secured by each of the follow ing security m favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders):

a) First and exclusive charue registered by way of simple mortgage (meludmg recenables ansing therefrom) on the aggregate Ileasable area of approvimately 414,599 Sq
Ft or thereabouts 1n busddimgs no | and 5 of Comnicrzone Yerawads (approx. 43.200 5 f in bulding no 1 and approx. 371.399 in building no 3) together with the
proportionate undivided right. title and intcrest in the notionally d d land adi ing i s 18.264 sq mtrs on which the said two building no 1 and 5.
out of all those pieces and parccls of larger land thar are situated. lying and being in Village Yerawada Taluka Haveli. District Pune ("Mortgaged Propertics™) of NCD
Series |1

b) A chargo on the cscrow account m which recevables of the Mortgaged Propertics shall be received save and except any common area maintenance charges payable to
MBRBPL with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged properties.

¢) Corporate guaranice exceuted by MBPPL

Redemption terms:
a) NCD Series | arc redecmable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 36 months from the date of all ie 16 D ber 2023, and dinghy the same has been
classified as current maturity of long term dcbt as on 31 March 2023

b) Interest is pavable on the last day of each financial quarter in 2 year (starting from 31 March. 2021) until the scheduled redemption date
¢) The Coupan shall he merzased by I3 bps for every notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency in case rating is upgraded after amy rating downgrade.
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for cach upgrade.

d) Upon occurrence of a dators red ion event. the Deb Trustee may. by issuing not less than 30 (thirty ) business days’ notice to the Issuer require the [ssucr
to redecm in full, all the debentures then outstanding by paving an amount cqual to the total mandators redemption amount in respect of each debenture
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In March 2021 Mindspace REIT issucd 3.750 10 scar G-Scc linhed secured. listed. scoior. taxable. non-cumwulatn e, rated. principal protected — market linked.
cemablc. non-comerble debentures " Marker Linked Dibontures 7 MLD Serics ) hay g face value of Rs 10.U0.000 (Rupues ten lakhs only) cach. amounting to Rs
S TEOA00,00 (Rupess theee thousand sesen hundred fitts myllion only) The tenire of the sad MLD Scrics 2 1s 3% months from 18 March 2021, being date of allotment
of the MLD Series 2 and coupen. if ams shall be pasable on the Schediked Redemption Date 1e on matunty on 17 May 2024 The coupon paroff structure 1s linked to
condition where the payoff will be fived on the final fiving date 1e 16 Apnl 2024 If identified 10 sear G-Sec’s last traded price as on final fining date 1s greater than 23%
of its last rraded price as on witial fising date ¢ 18 March 2021 the coupon rate will be 6 63% p a If wleatified 10 voar G=Sec's last traded price as on final fixmy date 1s
less than or cqual tp 247, of i last sraded pnee as on il finanie date. the coupon rate will be zero pereent As perthe saliers report in respect of valuation of these
MLD Sures 2 the probablins of oscprience of such an cvent (last rraded price of dennified 10 year G-Sec on final finmg date being loss than or dqual to 23, of its last
traded price on wibial frang date) 1s remote and henee the svalue of the option considered as zero
This MLD Scrics 2 was listed on BSE Lumited on 22 March 2021

Security terms

MLD Scries 2 are secured by cach of the following sccurty i favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the Debenture Holders)

ab First and cchusive charge bemg created by wan of equitat morzane on the s feasable area of approxamarely 13.71.442 Sq Ft or thereabouts in buildings no
124 and Units of Bullding 12B of Madhapur. Hydersbad (appros, 1249 140 g i budding no 124 and approy 102,302 sq R i building no 128} towether with the
proportonaze undiided nght. mile amd interest i the notionally démarzited Lind agdmeasuring spprosmazels 29442 55 mtrs on which the said two bulding no |2A and
12B. out of all those prcces and parcels of larger land that arc situated. hang and being in Madhapur Village. Senli ils Mandal. Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad
("Mortgaged Properties ) for MLD Scns 2

b) First ranking cxclusive charge ereated by way of a hypothecation over the Hypothecated Propertics of MLD Sencs 2

¢} A charge on the escrow account created. i which recenvables of the Mortzaged Propertics of Sundew shall be recened. save and ©XCepl any common arca mantenance
charpes parable to Sundew with respect to the mantenance of the mortgaged propertics
d) Corporatc guarantec exceuted by Sundew

Redemption terms:
a) MLD Senes 2 arc redeemable by way of bullet payment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment. 1c 17 May 2024

b) The Coupon shali be increased by 25 bps for evers notch dow ngrade wn the rating by the Credit Rating Agency [n case rating 1s upgraded after any rating downgrade.
the Coupon shall be decreased by 23 bps for cach upgrade  The Investors shall have the nght to accelerate the MLD Senes 2 1f the rating 1s downgraded to A~

¢) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption cyent. the Debenture Trustee may. by issuing not less than 30 (thiy ) business days notice to the Issuer require the [ssuer
to redeem 1n full. all the Debentures then outstanding by paymg an amount equal to the total mandators redemption amount n respect of cach Debenture

In March 2021, Mindspace Business Parks REIT issucd 730 sceured. listed, sentor. taxable non-cumulative. rated. redeemable. non-comvertible debentures ( NCD Serics
27 having face value of Rs 10.00.000 (Rupees ten lakhs only) cach. amounting to Rs 750.000.000 (Rupees seven hundred fits million only) with a coupon rmte of
66861% pa pavable quartcrly beginming from the end of first full quarter from the date of allotment 1¢ 30 June 2021. with last coupon payment on the scheduled
redempuion date 1¢ 17 May 2024 The tenure of the said NCD Series 2 1s 38 months from 18 March 2021 beng date of allotment

NCD Scnes 2 was hsted on BSE Limited on 22 March 2021

Security terms

NCD Senes 2 are sccured by cach of the follow g secunts in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders)

a) First andd exelusive chuege being regmiered by way of smple mongaie (mehudimg reconables ansing therefrom) on the ngereunte k; he arca of approvimanely 131,460
Sq Fu or thereabouts i building no 4 of Commerzone Yoranada together with the proporiomate undivided nght. utle and intorest m the notwonally demareated land
admeasurmg approximatel 9361 sq mitrs on which the sud butlding. aut of all those pieces and parcels of larger land thar are siwared, hmg and being in Villae
Yerawada. Tahuka Haveh Distnzt Puns (“Moitzaged Proparties™ of MO Senes 2

b} A charge on the escrow account to be created. m which recevables of the Mortgaged Propertes shall be recenved. save and cxcept any common arca mamtenance
charges pavable to MBPPL with respect to the mamntenance of the mortgaged propertics

c) Corporate guarantee cxccuted by MBPPL
Redemption terms:
) NCD Scnies 2 are redeemable by way of buliet repayment at the end of 38 months from the date of allotment. ic 17 May 2024
b) Interest 1s payable on the last day of cach financial quarter in 2 year (starting from 30 June. 2021) until the scheduled redemption date
¢) The Coupon shall be ncreased by 23 bps for every notch downgrade in the rting by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating 15 upgraded after any rating downgrade.
the Coupon shall be decrcased by 25 bps for cach upgrade
d) Upon occurrence of a mandators redemption cvent. the Debenture Trustee may. by 1ssung not less than 30 (thiry ) business days™ notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full. all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount equal to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of cach debenture

In Scptember 2021. Sundew Properties Lumuted i1ssucd 4.000 Scator. Listed. Rated. Secured. Non-Cumalative. Taxable. Transferable, Redcemable Non-Consertible
Debentures of ( Sundew NCD 17) having face saluc of Rs 10,00.000 (Rupees ten lakhs only ) cach. amounting to Rs 4.000.000.000 (Rupces four thousand million only )
with a coupon rate of 6 1% pa payable quarterly begnning from the end of first full quarter from the datc of alt (datc of all being 28 2021 and
end of first full quarter bemng 31 December 2021). with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption date 1¢ 28 June 2024 The tenure of the sud NCD 1s from
decmed date of allotment 1.c 28 September 2021 till scheduled redemption date 1.c 28 June 2024

This NCD was listed on BSE Limited on 1 October 2021

Security terms:

NCD | are secured by cach of the following secunty 1n favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders) (as further detailed n sccurty
documents)

I First ranking cxclusive sccurity interest by way of an cquitable mortgage over identificd immovable properties (as idenuificd below). First ranking sole and cxchisive
sccurity interest by way of hypothecation over

(@) the cument & future movable assets owned by the Sundew and recomvabiles pertaming to identificd immovable properties Building 20 with 709, 163 square feet carpet
arca [save and exeept | 1.974 square foet carpet arca of cafitena and 1,520 square fier carpet ares of SEZ office). Building 128 (unit no 1301 (22.069 square feet carpet
arcal. unit no 1302 (16.296 squan: fect carpet anca). unit no 1401 (37,030 square fect carpet ansad)- Part Project Mindspace Madhapur, Hyderabad Buildings

(b) the: esrow aceount and the subscription decaunt and all mmounts sanding to the credit of, or accrued or seeruing on escrow account and the subscrption account

2 NCD are backed by guaranies provided tn Mindspace REIT

Redemption terms:

a) NCD 1 are redeemable by way of bullet payment on 28 June 2024

b) Interest 1s pasabile on the txst das of cach financial quarcr in ayear (starting from 31 December. 2021) unul the scheduled redemption date

¢) The Coupon shall be mereased by 25 bps for every nateh dow ngrade n the rting by the Credit Raung Agency [n case rating 1s upgraded aficr any rating dow ngrade,
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for cach upyrade

d) Upon: occuprence of 2 mandatony nedomption event. the Sundew shall fssue mandatory redemption notice withm 2 business days and no later than than 30 (thirty)
Business Davs fram issuance of mandaters redemption notice (unkess mstructed otherwise by debenture trustee). redeem in full (or as the case may be. i part) all the
Deteentirss thin cutstanding by paving an amount equal to the mandatory redemption amount m respect of cach Debenture




21 B(v)

21 B(v

21 B(vn)

In Februany 2022 Mindspace Busincss Parks REIT sssucd 5.000 semior, Disted. rated, sccurcd non-cumulatne. taxable transferable. redeemable. non-coms eruble
debentures (“NCD Senies 3 ) having face value of Rs 10.00 000 (Rupees ten lakhs only ) cach. amounting to Rs 5.000.000.000 (Rupces five thousand million only ) with a
coupon rate of 6 33% p a Coupon on the outstanding Nomunal value of cach debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day _be prorated on an actual/ actual
basis for the actual mimber of days in the Coupon Purmed and be patyble i arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment date to the Debenture Holder whose name 1s appcaring
on the Register of Benelicial Owners as on the Record Date The lssuer hzritn aknowledges and agrees that there shall be no moratorium penod for the payment of
Coupon The firat Coupott payment Date s 31 March 2032 with last coujxin payment on the scheduled redemption date 1¢ 31 December 2024 The tenure of the sud
NCD Scries 3 1s 35 months from | Februan 2022. being date of allotment

This NCD Senies 3 was listed on BSE Limited on Februany 04. 2022

Security terms

NCD Senes 3 are sccured by cach of the follow ing securts in fasour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders)

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of sumple mortgage on the carpet arca of approxmmately 3.52.974 Sq Ft (save and cxcept cntire 2nd floor
admeasunng 11.883 Sq Ft carpet area in building no 2) (the building no 2 ) situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionatc covered and open parking spaces. in
Building 2 together with all the bengficial nghts. utle and interest of the Awrol West in appurtenant to Building 2 and all crections The Building 2 is situated on a portion
orthe Mongage Land admeasunng % 04 Heetares. which portiop i5-notifled a5 a Specul Economic Zone & first and oxelisive charge being rewstered bn way of simple
martgnge an the wentificd units with aggregating o carpet area of approxamatchy 461,527 Sq Fr (idenuficd units of building no 3 ) stuated an the Mortgape land along
with proportionate covered and apen parkme spaces, in Buildme 3 together with all the benefical dghts. vtk and mieres of the Assets SPV m appurtenant to Building 3
and all erections (“Mongaged Prog 50 o NCD Senes 3 25 furher detailed in transaction documents

A first ranking pan passu charge by way of a smple mongage oyver the Mortgaged Land as further detailed i transaction documents

b) A charge on the cscrow account to be created. i which recevables of the Mortgaged Propertics shall be recened. save and except any common arca mamtcnance
charges pavable to GIGAPLEX with respect to the mamtenance of the mortgaged properties

¢) Corporate guarantee cvecuted by Gigaplex

Redemption terms:

a) NCD Scnes 3 are redecmable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 35 months from the date of allotment. 1¢ 31 Dccember. 2024

b) Intcrest 15 pasvable on the last day of cach financial quarter n a year (starting from 31 March. 2022) until the scheduled redemption date

c) The Coupon shall be increased by 23 bps for eveny notch downgrade in the ratng by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating 1s upgraded after any rating dow ngrade
the Coupon shall be decreased by 25 bps for cach upgrade

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption cvent. the Debenture Trustee may by issung not Iess than 30 (thirty ) business davs™ nouce to the Issucr require the [ssuer
to redeem in full. all the debentures then outstanding by pay ing an amount cqual to the rotal mandaton redemption amount in respect of cach debenture

In June 2022, Mindspace Busincss Parks Prvate Limited issucd 4.900 senior. redecmable. hsted. rated, secured. transferable. rupee denominated, non-comvertible bonds
("Non Concrable Bonds ) having face value of Rs 10.00.000 (Rupecs ten lakhs only) cach. amounting to Rs 4.900.000.000 (Rupecs four thousand nine hundred million
only) with a coupon rate Iinked to 3 month Goscrment of India T-Bill plus spread of 203 bps payable quartery. with last coupon payment on the scheduled redemption
datc 1 22 Junc 2027 The tenure of the said non convertible bond ts 60 months from deemed date of allotment 1 ¢ 23 Junc 2022 nll scheduled redempuion date 1¢ 22
Junc 2027

This NCB Scnies | was histed on BSE Limited on June 24. 2022

Security Terms:
The Non Convertible Bonds are sccured by

(1) a first ranking pan passu Secunts by way of a simple mortgage over the speeified land (larger land admeasunng 2.02,740 square meters situated at Kalwa Industnal
Arca sub dustrict Thanc ) and

(m a first rnking exclusine Sccunty over the identificd buildings hay Ing aggregate carpel arca of apprommately 10.40.348 Y8 sq ft (approx 2.67.560 73 sq ft i Building
No 10, approx 2.35.961 50 sq fi i Building no 11 (part).approx 2,74.449 71 sq ft i Building No 12. approx 2.62.37702sq Rt n Building No 14). recenvables and
Account Asscts. as specifically defined m the bond trust deed dated Junc 02 2022 and as further amended from time to ume (“Bond Trust Deed )

(m) Corporate guarantce by the REIT pursuant to the terms of the Bond Trust Deed

Redempiiun teem:

Final Redemption Date is the date falling 60 months from the Decmed Date of Allotment (Prncipal repayment 125 on 31 Mar 23, 2% on 31 Mar 24. 3% on 31 Mar 25.
AMaem 31 Mar 26, 5% on 31 Mar 27 and Batance on Fmal Redemption Date) The said non comvertible bonds are voluntanly redecmable by the company upon the expiry
of the loek-m preseribed under the Applicable Laws a¢ specifically defined w the Bond Trust Deed Non comvertible bond holders have a put opuon ar the end of 54
manths from Decmed Date of Allotment aé spocified 11 the Band Trust Deed

On and from the occurrence of a Rating Downgrade Event/ Rating upgrade Event. the Spread shall sand ncreased/ decreased by 0 23% per annum over and abose the
immediately preceding Coupon as on the date of the occurrence of such Rating Downgrade/ Upgrade Event

In July 2022. Mindspace Business Park REIT wssued 5.000 senior. listed. rated. secured. non-cumulative. taxable. transfermble. redeemable. non-convertible debentures of
face valuc of INR 1.000.000 (Indian Rupees Onc Million) per Debenture for aggregate principal amount of upto INR 5.000.000.000/- (Rupces Fnve Thousand Million
Only) with 2 coupon rate of 7 95% p a Coupon on the outstanding Nominal value of cach debenture shall be applicable and computed from day to day. be prorated on an
actual/ actual basis for the actual number of days in the Coupon Perod and be parable in arrears on the relevant Coupon Payment datc to the Debenture Holder whose
name 1s appeaning on the Reguster of Beneficial Owners as on the Record Date The first Coupon payment Date 1s 30 Scpt 2022. with last coupon pavment on the
scheduled redemption date te 27 July 2027 The tenure of the sud NCD Senes 4 1s 60 months

Thus NCD Series 4 was listed on BSE Limuted on July 29. 2022
Sccunty terms
NCD Scrics 4 are sccured by each of the following security n favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the NCD Holders)

a) First ranking sole and exclusive sccunty interest by way of an cquitable momngage on carpet area of approumately 779.466 sq fi in building 12 D (1dentified uruts of
buiding) of Madhapur. Hydcrabad along with the common arcas. usage and access nghts appurtenant to the units mortgaged n Buding 12D as menuioned 1 the trust
deet. situated on a Iy d d land ad; g approx; cly 17414 77 squarc metres (equivalent to 430 acres). forming part of a portion of land

admcasunng 14 02 hectares ctiunalcn[ to 34 64 acres or thereabout declared as - Special Economic Zone land from and out of the larger prece of land beanng Suney no
64(pan). lving. being and situated at Madhapur Village. Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad

b) A charge on the escrow account to be created. in which receisables of the Mortgaged Propertics shall be recened. save and except amy common area maintcnance
charges payable to Sundew with respect to the maintenance of the mortgaged propertics

c) Corporate guarantee exceuted by Sundew Propertics Limited

Redemption terms:

a)NCD Senes 4 are redeemable by way of bullet repayment at the end of 60 months from the date of allotment. ic 27 Julv. 2027

b)Interest s pavable on the last day of each financial quarter n a year (starting from 30 September 2022) until the scheduled redemption date

¢) The Coupon shall be increased by 25 bps for cvery notch downgrade in the rating by the Credit Rating Agency In case rating 1s upgraded aftcr any rating dow ngrade.
the Coupon shall be decreased by 23 bps for each upgrade

d) Upon occurrence of a mandatory redemption event. the Debenture Trustee may. by 1ssurng not less than 30 (thirty ) business days™ notice to the Issuer requure the Issucr
to redeern in full. all the debentures then outstanding by paying an amount cqual to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of cach debenture




21 B(sm) On 15 March 2023. Mindspace Business Parks REIT issucd 53,000 (fifts five thousand) Green Debt Sccunties in the form of bisted. rated. sccurcd. non-cumulaty e.

22

24

Lkh
the
sad
Security terms:
Mindspace REIT Green Bond 1 arc each of the following sccunty n favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the bencfit of the NCD Holders) as more
particularly descnbed in the transacti ts. summarized as follows
a) First e
million o
no 9) itl
(equivalent to 1 7717 acres) on which Building 5B 1s situated. and (1i) the notio
4 17 acres) on which Building 9 1s situated
b) account in which recewvables of the Mortgaged Propertics shall be payable to Intime Propertics
c) ccuted by Intume Propertics Limited
Redemption terms:
a) Mindspac Bond 1 ble by way of bullet repayment at the end of 3 years and 30 days from the date of allotment (date of allotment bewmg 15

March 2023 cmption il 2026)

b) Interest is payable on the last day of each financial quarter m a year (startmg from 31 March. 2023) unul the scheduled redemption datc and on the scheduled
redemption date.

¢) The Coupon shall be mcreased by 23 bps for every notch downgradc m the ratmg by the Credit Rating Ageney In casc rating is upgraded aficr any ratmg downgrade.
the Coupon shall be decreascd by 25 bps for cach upgrade

d) Upon occurrence of a 1 redemption event. the Det Trustec may. by than 30 (thurty) busmess days™ notice to the Issucr requure the Issucr
to redeem in full. all the debentures then outstanding by paving an amount cqual to the redemption amount in respect of cach debenture

Refer Note 49 for Rano disclosure

Other non-current financial liabilities

Particulars As al Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Sccurity deposits IH5 3.759
Retention money payable

- due to micro and small cnterprises 31 115

- others i 74
Capital credrtors

- Duc to micro and small enterprises -

- Others 31 6
Intercst accrucd but not due on debentures 535 27

4.153 4,280

Provisions (Non current)

Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for employee benefits
gratuty 26 18
compensated absences 14 12
Other {Refer Note 42 (T)ch 27
67 30
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Particulars As at Asa
2,494 669
Other non-curvent liabilities
Particulars As at Asat
31
rent 482 580
482

nS¢

7 s|\99



26 _Short term burrowings
Particulars Asat Asar
31 March 2033 31 March 2022

Secured:

Loans repayable on demand

- overdraft from banks 1.219 2496
Unsecured:

- Commercial Paper (Refer note 26(n)) (31 March 2022 Nib) - -

Current maturities of long-term debt

- Sccured. bisted. seruor. taxable. non-cumulatine, rated. redeemable non- 1,996
comveruible debentures (NCD Seres 1) (net of issuc expenses. at amortised cost)

(31 March 2022 1.988 mullion) (Refer Notc 21 B(1))

- 10 year G-Scc linked sccured. bsted. guaranteed. seator. tasable. non- - 4,997
cumulauve rated. prncipal protected ~ market ioked, redecmable non-

comvertible debentures (“Marhet Linked Debentures * MLD Sencs 1) (net of

Issuc expenses. at amortised cost) (Refer Note 26(i))

- Bonds - Scnior. Listed. Rated. Sceurcd. Non-Cummulative. Taxable. 98

Transferable. Redecmable Non-Convertible Bonds (MBPPL NCB 1) (Refer note

21 B(w1))

- from banks (refer Note 21 A) 5357 1.630

- from other partics (refer Note 21 A) 13 =

- Flexa term Joan (refir Note 2| Afvik-Note 31 10 -
8,683 9123

26 (i) In September 2020, Mindspaee REIT issued 5,000 10 year G-Sec litked seoured, histed. gunranived. semor, taable. soo-cumulatne. mted. pnncipal protected — market
linked. redeermable. non-comsertible debentures (“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Sergs | ) having face value of Rs 10.00.000 (Rupces ten lakhs only) cach. amounting
to Rs 5.000.600.000 (Rupees five thousand million onlv) The tenure of the sud MLD Senes | 1s 577 days from 29 Scptember 2020. being date of allotment of the MLD
Senes 1 and coupon. if any shall be pavable on the Scheduled Redemption Date i on maturity on 29 April 2022 The coupon payoff structure 1s linked to condition where
the payoff will be fixed on the final fiang date 1¢ 30 March 2022 If dentificd 10 sear G-Sec’s last traded pnice as on final fiung date 15 greater than 23% of its last traded
pnce as on mitial fiving date 1 e 29 September 2020. the coupon rate will be 6 80% pa If identificd 10 year G-Sce's last traded prce as on final fixing date 1s less than or
cqual to 25% of its last traded pree as on mitial fixing date. the coupon rate will be zero percent As per the valucrs report i respect of valuation of MLD Scres 1. the
probability of occurrence of such an event (last traded price of identificd 10 ycar G-See on final fiang date being less than or cqual to 25% of uts last traded prce on miial
fixing date) is remote and hence the valuc of the option considered as zero
This MLD Sencs | was listed on BSE Lumited on 13 October 2020 Dunng the current year, pnincipal and interest s pad on 29 Apnl 2022

Security terms

MLD Senes | were sccured by cach of the follow ing sccurtts in favour of the Debenture Trustee (holding for the benefit of the Debenture Holders)

a) First and exclusne charge registered by way of simple mortgage (meluding bles ansing th. ) on the M Icasabic arca of approxmmatcly 974,500 Sq
Ft or thercabouts i buildings no 6. 7 and 8 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx 178.569 sq R n building no 6. approx 371.799sq & m building no 7 and approx
424.132 in building no 8) together with the proportionate undivided nght. title and interest i the notionally demarcated land admeasuning approxumately 25.313 sq mtrs
on which the sad three building no 6. 7 and 8. out of all thosc picces and parcels of larger land are situate, hving and being in Village Yerawada Taluka Haveli District
Punc (“Mortgaged Propertics ) of MLD Scncs |

b) A charge on the escrow account m which recenables of the Mortgaged Propertics of MBPPL shall be received

¢) Corporate guarantee exccuted by MBPPL

Redemption terms:

a) MLD Scnes | arc redecmable by way of bullet payment at the end of 577 days from the date of allotment. 1¢ 29 Apnl 2022 and accordingly the same has been
redecmed  (refer note 26)

b) The Coupon shali be increased by 25 bps for cveny notch downgrade in the raning by the Credit Rating Agency In casc rating 1s upgraded after any ratmg downgrade.
the Coupon shall be decreased by 23 bps for cach upgrade  The Insestors shall have the right to accelerate the MLD Scres | 1f the rating 15 downgraded to A~

¢} Upon occurrence of a mandatory redempuion event. the Debenture Trustee may by 1ssuing not less than 30 (thirty ) business days notice to the Issuer require the Issuer
to redeem in full. all the Debentures then outstanding by payving an amount cqual to the total mandatory redemption amount in respect of cach Debenture

26 (ii) On 20 D ber 2022, Mindspace Bi Parks REIT 1ssued 2.000 Commercial Papers with a face value of Rs 5,00.000 (Rupces five lakhs only) cach. at a discount of
7 2% per annum to the face value  The discounted amount raised by the REIT through MREIT CP/I was Rs 982.556 000 (Rupces mune hundred eighty two mullion five
lakhs fifty six thousands only) and the value payable on maturity is Rs 1000 000,000 (Rupees onc thousand mullions only) Discount on Commercial papers 1s amortized
over the tenor of the underlving instrument The commercial papers were listed on BSE and matured and repaid on 20 March 2023

27 _Trade pavables

Particulars Asat Az at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade Pavables
- total outstanding dues of micro cnterpriscs and small enterprises 133 Al
- total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro enterpriscs
and small enterpnecs * 576 #43
T09 705

* Refer note 48 for related party disclosure

28 _Other current financial liabilities

Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Emplosces dues payable 13 :
Interest accrued but not duc on loans from
- banks / financial institutions £ 72
- debenture/bonds 3 523
Interest accrued and duc on others 21 29
Sccunity deposits 5,162 4.116
Retention dues pavable
- duc 10 micro and small enterpnscs 193 12
- others 250 127
Unpaid Distributions [1} [}
Capntal creditors
- Duc to micro and small enterpriscs 380 383
- Others 1,560 1.368
Othier liabilities® ki 102
7.6%6 6.835

* Refer note 48 for related party disclosure




29 _Provisions (Current)
Particulars As at

As ot
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Provieh lovee beneln
F

for employ

- graturty 4
- compensated absences 3
Provision for compensation” 7

Z) P

[

7 2
ks 35
*This provision represants estimated contrctual obhigation oxtsting 26t the balanes sheet date on account of pending handoyer of possession Lo the land owner as per
Joint Development Agrecment

30 _Other current liabilities

Particulars Ay at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Uneamed rent 365 364
Advances recerved from customers 46 169
Statutory ducs 308 170
Other advances 54 30
Other pavable® 354 299

L7 1.052

*This meludes Linspent Corporate Social Respanzibsimy amount
31 Current tax liabilities (net)

Particulars As at As

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provigon fir moome-gay. nat of advinie tax a5

25

[ )
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

42

2

Contingent liabilities and Capital commitments

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Contingent liabilities

Claims not acknowledged as debt in respect of

- Income-Tax matters (Refer note | below) excluding interest 936 936
- Service-Tax matters (Refer note 2 below) 367 367
- Customs duty matters (Refer note 3 below) 34 34
- Stamp duty 65 65

Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account inet of advances) and not provided for (Refer 5,173 7338
Note 4 below)

Notes:

(a) Gigaplex- An appeal has been filed for A'Y 2010-11 before CIT(A) against the penalty order raising demand of Rs.3 million and the appeal is pending It has paid
20% (Rs. 1 million) with a request to keep the demand in abeyance. As per Income tax website , there is no demand outstanding.

(b) KRIT - Contingent liability of Rs. 933 million relate to AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19 for which it has filed appeals before CIT(A) against orders under section 143(3)
/ 143(3) read with section 153A of the Act contesting the disallowance of deduction under section 80lA of the Income Tax Act 1961 KRIT is hopeful of a favourable
outcome for these Assessment Years In case of unfavourable decisions in appeal for AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19, the tax would be payable under normal tax and
hence, MAT credit currently available with KRIT will no longer be available. As a result, in addition to above contingent liability, KRIT would require to pay additional
tax of Rs. 326 million w.r.t. AY 2019-20 and AY 2020-21 (These years are not under litigation) because during these years KRIT has utilised the MAT credit availed
during AY 2012-13 to AY 2018-19.The disallowance of deduction under section 80IA for AYs 2012-13 to 2018-19 by the Income Tax department was based on the
order for earlier AY 2011-12 wherein similar disallowance was made KRIT had challenged the said order of AY 2011-12 before the ITAT The Hon’ble ITAT vide its
order dated 06 05 2021 allowed the appeal in favour of KRIT by quashing the disallowance made by the income-tax authority

SPVs As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

MBPPL 92 92
Sundew 1 |
Intime 57 57
KRIT 209 209
Avacado 8 8

367 367

MBPPL : The SPV has received show cause and demand notices for inclusion in taxable value amounts received as reimbursement of electricity and allied charges and
demand service tax there on of Rs. 92 million excluding applicable interest and penalty. SPV has filled appropriate replies to the show cause and demand notices.

Sundew : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs.1 Million and Demand for Interest and Penalty on account of wrong
availment of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs.0 million . SPV has filed an appeals with CESTAT and matter is pending.

Intime : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs.36 million and Demand for Service tax on electricity and water and irregular
availment of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs 21 million. It has filed an appeats with CESTAT for the past orders and is in the process of filing an appeal
before the Commissioner appeals for the recent order. The matter is pending adjudication

KRIT : Demand for Non Payment of service tax on renting of fitouts and equipments Rs. 116 million and Demand for Service tax on electricity and water and irregular
availment of credit of service tax paid on input services Rs 93 million. It has filed an appeals with CESTAT for the past orders and is in the process of filing an appeal
before the Commissioner appeals for the recent order. The matter is pending adjudication




a)

b)

a)

Avacado : (a) The SPV has received an order dated 31 January 2018 pronounced by the Commissioner (Appeals). confirming the service tax demand of Rs 7 mullion
(excluding applicable interest and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tenants during the period April 2008 to March 2011 It has
filed an Appeal before the Customs, Central Excise & Service Tax Appellate Tribunal The matter is pending adjudication

(b) For the period April 2011 to September 2011, Avacado had received a Show Cause cum Demand Notice dated 22 October 2012 alleging non-payment of service tax
of Rs 1 million (excluding applicable interest and penalty thereon) on renting of immovable property services provided to tenants Avacado had filed its detailed reply
on 24 December 2012 No further correspondence has been received in this case

For both the above matters,Avacado had filed applications in Form SVLDRS-1 under the Sabka Vishwas (Legacy Dispute Resolution) Scheme, 2019 Avacado had
recetved SVLDRS-3 with service tax demand in respect of above matters  Avacado had not accepted the demand and therefore the matter remains under dispute

Customs duty demand at the time of debonding of assets from the Software Technology Parks of [ndia scheme ( STPI') for Intime Rs 16 million and KRIT Rs 18
million
Future Cash outflow in respect of above, if any, is determinable only on receipt of judgement / decision pending with relevant authorities

The SPV wise details of capital commitments are as follows:

SPVs As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

MBPPL 891 658
Gigaplex 770 2,379
Sundew 438 166
KRC Infra 1,513 3378
Horizonview 328 77
KRIT 988 439
Avacado 141 77
Intime 104 164

5173 7.338
Avacado

A Suit has been filed in the year 2008 by Nusli Neville Wadia (Plaintiff) against Ivory Properties and Hotels Private Limited (Ivory) & Others which includes Avacado
as one of the Defendants inter alia in respect of the land and the 'Paradigm’ Industrial Park building of Avacado The Plaintiff has prayed against Avacado and the said
Ivory restraining them from carrying out further construction or any other activity on the land (on which the building Paradigm is constructed), demolition and removal
of the structures on the said land, appointment of a Court Receiver in respect of the said land and Paradigm building, declaring the MOUs / Agreements entered into by
Avacado with [vory and the Plaintiff as voidable and having been avoided and rescinded by the Plaintiff and to be delivered up and cancelled, restraining from
alienating, encumbering or parting with possession of structures and restraining from dealing with, creating fresh leases / licenses or renewing lease / license in respect
of the said Paradigm building and from receiving or recovering any rent / license fee / compensation in respect of the said leases / licenses, depositing all the rents in the
Court, etc The Court has not granted any ad-interim relief to the Plaintiff. Avacado has filed its reply to the said Suit denying the allegations and praying that no interim
relief be granted to the Plaintiff. Avacado in its reply has also taken up a plea that issue of limitation should be decided as a preliminary issue before any interim relief
could be granted to the Plaintiff. The notice of motion for interim relief and the Suit are pending for the final hearing before the High Court

Based on an advice obtained from an independent legal counsel, the management is confident that Avacado will be able to suitably defend and the impact, if any, on the
Ind AS financial statements can be determined on disposal of the above Petition and accordingly, Ind AS Financial statements of Avacado have been prepared on a
going concem basis Further, the Plaintiff. through his advocates & solicitors, had addressed letter dated 13 February 2020 including to Mindspace REIT, the Manager,
the Trustee, the Sponsors, Avacado, Mr Ravi C Raheja, Mr Neel C Raheja, Mr Chandru L Raheja, Ivory Properties and K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd , expressing his
objection to the proposed Offer and any actions concerning the building Paradigm located at Mindspace Malad project The allegations and averments made by the
Plaintiff have been responded and denied by the addressees, through their advocates & solicitors No further correspondence has been received

Pursuant to the levy of service tax on renting of immovable properties given for commercial use, retrospectively with effect from 1 June 2007 by the Finance Act, 2010,
some of the lessees to whom Avacado has let out its premises, have based on a legal advice, challenged the said levy and, inter-alia, its retrospective application and
withheld payment of service tax to Avacado, based on certain judicial pronouncements and stay orders granted by appropriate High Courts from time to time Further in
this regard the Hon’ble Supreme Court has passed an interim order dated 14th October, 2011 in Civil appeal nos 8390, 8391-8393 of 2011 and in compliance of which,
such lessees have deposited with appropriate authority in 3 instalments, 50% of the amount such service tax not so paid by them upto 30 September 2011 and have
furnished surety for the balance 50% of the amount of service tax and which amount has also been deposited by them with the authorities Further as per Hon’ble
Supreme Court’s Order dated 5th April 2018 in Civil Appeal No (s) 4487/2010, the matter is deferred until disposal of the issues pending before the nine judges Bench
in Mineral Area Development Authority and others

In view of the above and subject to the final orders being passed by the Hon'ble Supreme Court in the aforesaid appeals, there may be a contingent liability on Avacado
in respect of interest payable on account of the delayed payment of service tax, which amount would be recoverable from the respective lessees by Avacado

KRC Infra

In respect of KRC Infra's project at Village Kharadi, Pune, a special civil suit is filed by Ashok Phulchand Bhandari against Balasaheb Laxman Shivale and 29 others in
respect of inter alia an undivided share admeasuring 44 15 Ares out of the land bearing S No 65 Hissa No 3 for declaration, specific performance, injunction and other
reliefs Neither Gera Developments Private Limited nor KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited is a party to the aforementioned suit and neither of them have
been joined as parties to the civil suit or Gera Developments Private Limited nor KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private Limited have filed any intervention
application There are no orders passed in the matter affecting the suit or the development thereof or restraining the transfer or development of the aforesaid land
in any manner whatsoever The matter is currently pending Kins
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permanent injunction and several other reliefs KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private
Limited is not a party to the 2021 Suit and further, no summons from the Court have been received by KRC Infrastructure & Projects Private Limited till date Gera
Developments Private Limited and Gera Resorts Private Limited i e Defendant No 15 & 16 in the said suit have filed their written statement and an Application for
rejection of plaint on the grounds mentioned therein The matter is currently pending Gera Developments Private Limited (“Gera Developments™) and Gera Resorts
Private Limited (“Gera Resorts”), two of the defendants in the matter have filed an application for rejection of plaint under Order VI Rule 11 of Code of Civil
Procedure, which application was rejected by the Court by way of an order passed on May, 05, 2022 Thereafter, on June 22, 2022 Gera Developments and Gera

tin June 022 ntiff has filed an application under section 151 of Code of Civil Procedure seeking
fro party s by sale, not to carry out construction or development activities. On June 27, 2022, the
era ir repl he te Ty injunction application An application to recall the order dated May 5, 2022 was filed

by defendants 1 to 15 The matter was heard on July 16, 2022, wherein the Court rejected the application filed by the defendants 1 and 15 On August 29, 2022 KRC
Infra filed an application for intervention as third party for being impleaded in the suit The hearing was concluded on September 27, 2022 on the intervention
application and the matter has been posted to October 01, 2022 for passing of an order on the Application for intervention filed by KRC Infra On October 1, 2022 the
matter was further adjourned to October 6, 2022 and further to October 7, 2022 On October 7, 2022 additional arguments were advanced on the intervention
application and the matter has been posted for order on the ion application. By an order dated November 18, 2022, the Court allowed the intervention
application filed by KRC Infra and directed the Plaintiff to im intervener i.e. KRC Infra as Defendant No. 66 in the suit within one month of the order. On
December 3, 2022 the Plaintiff filed applications for amendment of the plaint and for injunction. On December 13, 2022, KRC Infra filed its say to the application for
amendment By an order dated December 13, 2022, the Court allowed the application of the Plaintiff to amend the plaint in Exhibit 5. Further, by the said Order the
Court has directed the Plaintiff to serve the amended compilation upon KRC Infra and KRC Infra to file its written statement along with its say to the application for
temporary injunction filed by the Plaintiff. The matter was posted to January 5, 2023 for compliance On January 3, 2023, Defendant no 66 (ie, KRC Infrastructure
and Project Private Limited) has filed on record the written Statement and say to Application for Temporary n along with affidavit in support of Say, and
Application for production of documents along with List of documents Thereafter, Defendant no 1 to 14 filed tw tions.

— (1) an Application seeking an adjournment to file Additional Written Statement; and, (2) an Application seeking direction from the Hon’ble Court to the Plaintiff to
provide documents referred to in the amended plaint filed by the Plaintiff, to the said Defendants and the matter was posted to January 11, 2023, for arguments on
behalf of the Plaintiff and the Defendant no 66 on the Application for Temporary Injunction filed at Exhibit 5 On January 11, 2023, the Plaintiff advanced oral
arguments before the Court on the application for temporary injunction Thereafter, the Court adjourned the matter and the same was posted to January 24, 2023, for
arguments on behalf of Defendant no 66 on the application for temporary injunction On January 24, 2023, Defendant No 66 filed an application for production of
documents along with a separate list of documents and filed photographs on record and the matter was adjoumed to February 07, 2023 for arguments on behalf of
Defendant no 66 on the application for temporary injunction On February 07, 2023 and February 21, 2023 the Defendant No 66 advanced arguments before the Court
on the Application for injunction The matter was further posted to March 2, 2023 for concluding the arguments on Application for injunction by the Plaintiff. The
Plaintiff concluded her arguments in reply to the arguments made by Defendant no 66 Defendant No 66 filed the written notes of arguments The Plaintiff has filed

quo r dated December 05, 2022, passed in RTS Appeal No. 429 of 2022 rejecting the
/202 re the Hon'ble Additional Collector, Pune. Thereafter the captioned matter has been
. by tiff and other Defendants On March 15, 2023 the matter was adjourned till March 23,

2023 On March 23, 2023 Defendant Nos 62 and 63 filed an application for amendment of the WS filed by them and the Plaintiff has filed its say to the said
application Thereafter, the Plaintiff and the Defendant Nos 62 and 63 argued on the aforesaid application and the Hon’ble Court was pleased to allow the aforesaid
amendment application The Defendant Nos 16, 17, 18, 19, 51, 52 and 53 filed their written notes of arguments and the Defendant No 16 and 17 have filed their
written notes of arguments The 2021 Suit matter has been adjourned till May 4, 2023 for passing order on Application for injunction filed by the Plaintiff. Further, A
notice of lis pendens dated February 1, 2022 has been registered at the office of Sub Registrar, Haveli no 11, Pune The matter is currently pending

Saraswati Malhari Gaikwad (deceased) through her heir (“Appellant™) filed an RTS Appeal on June 2, 2022, before the Sub Divisional Officer, Haveli, Pune (*SDO™)

Gera Resorts Ja ondents™) see hing and setting aside of the o ed on May
2 by the Cir 5 Order™) reco name of Respondents on the records in
ce of the dul ex between Gera Developments Pvt Ltd and Gera Resorts Pvt Ltd in respect of
Survey No. 65 Hissa No. 3, Village Kharadi, Taluka Haveli, District Pune. The t has filed an application for stay to the Impugned Order passed by the Circle

Officer, Kalas. On June 17, 2022 the Sub Division Officer, Haveli granted a stay n the Impugned Order till the next date of hearing ie July 4, 2022 By an order dated
December 05, 2022, the SDO has rejected the said RTS Appeal on merit and subject to the final order /outcome of the 2021 Suit

MBPPL

Pursuant to the demerger and vesting of the Commerzone Undertaking of K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd (KRCPL), in MBPPL, MBPPL is the owner to the extent of 88 16 %
undivided right title and interest in the land bearing S No 144, 145 Yerawada, Pune which is comprised in the said Undertaking ~Shrimant Chhatrapati Udayan Raje
Bhosale (" the Plaintift”) has filed a Special Civil Suit bearing No 133 of 2009 in the Court of Civil Judge, Senior Division Pune against the erstwhile land Owner Shri
Mukund Bhavan Trust (who had entrusted development rights to MBPPL) and the State of Maharashtra, claiming to be the owner of the said land The Hon ble Court
was pleased to reject the Application for amendment of plaint filed by the Plaintiff and allow the Third Party Applications on 14 11 2016 The Plaintiff has filed two writ
petitions bearing Nos 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 in the Bombay High Court challenging the aforesaid orders passed on 14 11 2016 The matier was transferred to
another Court for administrative reasons and adjourned on several occasions for compliance of the order by the Plaintiff. On 5th March 2018 the Advocate for the
Plaintiff filed a purshis on record stating that since he does not have any instructions in the matter from the Plaintiff, the Vakalatnama is being withdrawn by him and
the matter was posted on 20th March 2018 On 20th March 2018 the Hon ble Court was pleased to adjourn the matter till 22nd June 2018 since the Advocate for the
Plaintiff had withdrawn the Vakalatnama and the Plaintiff was not represented by any Advocate Writ Petition Nos 4415/2017 and 4268/2017 filed in the Hon’ble
Bombay High Court challenging the orders dated 14th November 2016 by Shrimant Chatrapati Udayanraje Bhosale against Shri Mukund Bhavan Trust and others
came up for hearing on 28 November 2017 wherein the Advocate for the Petitioner undertook to serve the copy of the petition on the Respondent No 2 ie State of
Maharashtra and the Hon’ble High Court was pleased to adjourn the same till 16 01 2018, 26 02 2018, 22 06 2018 On 22 06 2018 the Advocate for the Defendant No
I filed a purshis stating that the Defendant No 1 (a) expired matter was further adjourned till 24 10 18, 26 11 18, 21 12 18, 01 02 2019, 25 03 2019 and 15 04 2019,
18.06 2019, 27 08 2019, 19 09 2019 On 19 09 2019 the matter has been stayed by the Hon’ble Court and further posted on 11 11 2019 for compliance of the order
dated 14 11 2016 by the Plaintiff. The matter has been stayed under Sec 10 of Code of Civil Procedure Next date 05 07 23 for steps Both the Writ Petitions were
posted on 210918, 11 1018, 2210 18 and further posted on 1006 19 for Admission The matters came on board on 20 06 2019, 1411 2019, 1501 2019 and
21022019 As per the CMIS Writ Petition No 4415/2017 was last posted on 27 03 2020 and is yet not listed As per the CMIS Writ Petition No 4268/2017 was last
posted on 27 03 2020 and thereafter on 23 07 20 for Admission and is yet not listed In the management's view, as per legal advice, considering the matter and the
facts, no provision for any loss  liability is presently required to be made
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MBPPL 1s subject to other legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. MBPPL's management does not reasonably expect that
these legal actions, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on MBPPL's results of operations or financial condition

MBPPL received a communication (alleged reminder) from Pune Municipal Corporation (PMC) demanding an amount of Rs 157 million allegedly due from MBPPL
based on objections by internal audit report of Pune Municipal Corporation. MBPPL, has submitted a letter denying all allegation of PMC, as MBPPL has not been
served with any document referred to the said PMC letter. Subsequently MBPPL addressed one more communication stating that MBPPL would be in a position to
submit their reply upon receipt of the details of amount demanded as per their reply submitted which states that if any principal outstanding is due/recoverable, MBPPL
agrees to make the said payment and sought detailed clarification on the interest amount By letter dated 20.07.2019 to MBPPL, PMC provided the copy of the audit
report to MBPPL and requested MBPPL to provide its clarifications in respect of objectionable issues and furnish the challans in lieu of payment of the recoverable
amount By letter dated 17.08.2021 to the architect firm and another, PMC stated that it has not received any clarifications and provided the challans of amounts by
assessing interest thereon and required submission of challan/receipt towards payment of an amount of ¥ 183.60 million recoverable against all objectionable issues. By
its reply letter dated 06 09.2021 to PMC, MBPPL has again reiterated that the earlier PMC letter dated 04.02.2019 and the PMC letter dated 17.08 2021 are addressed to
the wrong persons and informed PMC of the non-receipt of relevant information and documents from PMC as requested by MBPPL earlier. By letter dated 11 10 2021
to PMC, MBPPL replied stating that the impugned challans, demands and notice are illegal, null and void and ultra vires; and likewise the act of issuing the letter dated
17.08 2021 is ultra vires and without the authority of law and called upon PMC to withdraw the impugned challans and letter forthwith. By the said letter MBPPL
further stated that if the challans and letter is not withdrawn and any further action is initiated in that event the letter dated 11 10 2021 may be treated as a notice under
section 487 of The Maharashtra Municipal Corporations Act, 1949 and under section 1359 of The Maharashtra Regional and Town Planning Act, 1966. Further, without
prejudice to the contentions raised in the reply and without admitting any liability to pay the amount as per the impugned challans, MBPPL has submitted that, in order
to resolve the controversy, MBPPL is willing 1o offer to pay in full and final settlement on all accounts of all demands raised in the said challans, a lumpsum one-time
amount of ¥ 26 64 million without any liability for interest thereon or for any other payments relating to the subject and to provide an opportunity of hearing and
furnishing clarifications, if required by PMC. Subsequently, by letter dated March 10, 2022, PMC informed MBPPL that it has not accepted the cheque issued by
MBPPL vide its letter dated January 25, 2022 and requested MBPPL to issue demand draft for the amount as per the Challans and make the payment to PMC at the
earliest. On April 7, 2022 MBPPL submitted a reply/ letter to PMC enclosing a demand draft as desired by the PMC, for an amount of ¥ 26.64 million towards the
payment as set out in MBPPL's earlier communications. Vide letter dated July 11, 2022 PMC returned MBPPL's demand draft while demanding entire demanded
payment. MBPPL vide its letter dated July 22, 2022 read with MBPPL letter dated July 21, 2022 remitted the entire demanded payment of Rs 10,13,57,239/- under
protest. MBPPL on July 28, 2022 also paid an amount of Rs.60,93,225/- being Challan Late Fees and recorded this payment under MBPPL letter dated August 8,
2022 MBPPL (“Petitioner™) has filed writ petition on November 14, 2022 in the Bombay High Court (“Court™) against Pune Municipal Corporation and others
("Respondents™) inter alia, seeking to impugn and set aside the Demand Notice dated January 5, 2022 enclosing challans for certain amounts allegedly due and payable
by the Petitioner (“Tmpugned Demand Notice™) and for refund of the amount of ¥ 107.45 million paid by the Petitioner under protest to the Respondents towards the
Impugned Demand Notice. The matter is currently pending for admission

Intime, Sundew and KRIT

In accordance with the Scheme of arrangement which was approved by Hon’ble Andhra Pradesh High Court on 23 March 2007, the [ndustrial Park II and III
undertakings of K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited (formerly known as K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Private Limited) ("KRIT", "JV Company") have been
demerged and vested in the Company with effect from the appointed date i e 01 September 2006

Intime and Sundew had acquired the land at Madhapur, Hyderabad as part of the demerger scheme from KRIT. The said land is in lieu of the employment opportunities
to be generated by KRIT and others.

The liability, if any. arising due to the obligation to create the job opportunities for the entire larger land of which the above property is a part, continues to be retained by
KRIT as at 31 March 2023

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("TSIIC") has returned the original Bank Guarantees to KRIT and
also confirmed to the bank that TSIIC will not claim any amount from the bank under the Bank Guarantees and the bank is relieved of its obligation, Hence, no liability
is recognised towards the price of the plot of land

An unconditional obligation to pay amounts due to Andhra Pradesh [ndustrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited ("APIIC") in respect of APIIC's claims of losses due to
any difference in values pertaining to sale transactions of the project undertaken by KRIT Losses incurred by the Government/TSIIC in its JV Company, if any, will be
paid in full by K Raheja Corp Pvt Ltd and it has furnished to the JV Company in writing agreeing and admitting liability to make such payment to Government/TSIIC
The shareholding pattern of the Government/TSIIC in the JV Company and the Company will not change as a result of conversion from Private to Public, the
Government / TSIIC equity of 11% will remain the same in the Company and all the demerged companies and further in future, Government / TSIIC will not be asked
to infuse further cash to maintain its 11% stake

Gigaplex

Regular Civil Suit had been filed before the Hon. Civil Judge (J. D) Vashi at Central Business District by an Education Society ("the Plaintiff") who is claiming rights in
existing school structure, claiming its area as 500 square meters and its existence since more than 30 years, seeking an injunction not to dispossess him. Gigaplex has
filed its reply opposing the Plaintiff’s prayers. After hearing the parties, the Hon’ble Judge at the Vashi Court had rejected the Plaintiff’s Injunction Application by
Order dated 20.08.18 (Order). Thereafter the Plaintiff has filed an appeal in Thane District Court. The Plaintiff's Appeal filed in Thane District Court is still pending,
it’s next date is 12,06 23 for Arguments in Appellant's Applications for injunction and status quo. In management view, the estimate of liability arising out of the same
is remote, no provision has been taken.
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KRIT

A Writ petition has been filed against the Company in the High Court of Judicature of Andhra Pradesh at Hyderabad with respect to specific use of the land
admeasuring 4,500 square yards, earmarked as plot 18 Pursuant to it, the Court has passed an Order for no construction activity on the said plot of land until further
orders of the Court KRIT has filed its reply and also sought expeditious hearing  The matter is pending for disposal by the High Court Based on the facts of the case,
the management does not expect any liability and is of the opinion that no provision needs to be made

Sundew
Reve ha 27 August
and R L . in respect
Gove o r 2009 for

ding information requested by the letter dated 27 August 2009 Sundew had filed a
detailed response on 30 September 2009 stating that (a) the land was onginally granted by the Government of Andhra Pradesh to K Raheja [T Park Hyderabad Limited

hra P [ ture Corporation Limited, (b) the land was vested in Sundew by way of demerger
d has d and is therefore exempt from the local laws; (d) the land was shown as a non-
is the n n ued a final notice to Sundew in January 2012
requesting a declaration for full and correct of the lands he e the Tribunal. Future cash flows in respect of
above matt erminable only on receipt of judg isions pending ¢}
Intime
during T Authority for the periods beginning July 2017 to March 2020 for not considering
lities b t up power provided to tenants, amounting to Rs 100 million. The Management, after
of the t tricity and DG back-up power are incurred in the capacity of a ‘pure agent’ as covered
of CGST Rul uch sup exempt as per the Exemption Notification and hence to be excluded from the value of taxable supply.
ent is in the p respons show cause notice. Based on the facts of the case and the provisions of the GST law, no provision has
.t. recovery of back-up
Management and Support fees
Management Fees*
Property Management Fee
amended, the Manager is entitled @ 3% of the total rent ( lease and fitout, car park
the relevant property in respect to ns, maintenance and management of the SPVs, as

by the SPVs The fees has been determined to meet the ongoing costs of the Investment
Manager to undertake the services provided to the SPVs
Property Management fees for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023 amounts to Rs 107 million and Rs 418 million and for the quarter and year ended 3| March
2022 amounts to Rs 94 million and Rs 368 million respectively There are no changes duning the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager

Support Services Fee

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 29 June 2020 as amended, the Manager is entitled to fees @ 0 5% of the total rent  lease and fitout, car park
charges or any other compensation on account of letting out) per annum of the televant property in respect to general administration and other support service of the
SPVs, as applicable The fees has been determined to meet the ongoing costs of the Investment Manager to undertake the services provided to the SPVs

Support Management fees for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023 amounts to Rs 21 million and Rs 80 million and for the quarter and year ended 31 March
2022 amounts to Rs 18 million and Rs 68 million respectively There are no changes during the period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Manager.

REIT Management Fees
Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreement dated 21 November 2019, Investment Manager is entitled to fees @ 0 5% of REIT Net Distributable Cash Flows

w be her i oth, iscretion of the Investment Manager. The fees has been determined for undertaking
m to and fees ng GST) accrued for the quarter and year ended 31 March 2023 amounts to Rs. 17
m Rs and 202 nts to Rs 16 million and Rs 64 million respectively There are no changes during the

period in the methodology for computation of fees paid to the Investment Manager

*Refer Note-48 for related party disclosure
Business Support Services :
REIT SPVs have entered into support services agreements with K Raheja Corporate Services Private Limited (KRCSPL) under which KRCSPL has agreed to provide

project related support activities to the REIT SPVs The agreement has been further amended during the year for reduction in the quarterly fees payable with effect from
1 April, 2022
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

45 Financial instruments
A The cammying value of financial instruments by categories are as below:

Financial assets

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income ('FVTOCI")

Investments in equity instruments 0 0
Amortised cost

Investments - non-current 29 23
Trade receivables 572 210
Cash and cash equivalents 4,062 3478
Other bank balances 206 121
Other financial assets 5,061 3,951
Total assets 9,930 7.783
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 54,335 44 480
Lease Liabilities 127 127
Security deposits 8,607 7.874
Trade payables 709 705
Other financial liabilities (other than Security deposits) 3,242 3.240
Total liabilities 67,220 56,426

The Management considers that the carrying amount of the above financial assets and liabilities approximates to their fair value

B. Measurement of fair values
The section explains the judgement and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are:
a) recognised and measured at fair value
b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standard An explanation of each level is mentioned below:

Fair value hierarchy
* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

» Level 2 inputs are inputs. other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,

The following table presents the fair value measurement hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurming basis as at 31 March 2023,

Financial instruments
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 31 March 2023-

Particulars Date of valuation Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets measured at fair value:

FVTOCI financial investments: 3/31/2023 0 - - 0
FVTOCI financial investments: /31/2022 0 - - 0

C Transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
There were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3 during the period ended 31 March 2023 and year ended 31 March 2022,
D Determination of fair values

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability

1) The fair value of mutual funds are based on price quotations at reporting date
i) The fair values of other current financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be equivalent to their carrying values.

it1) The fair values of borrowings at fixed rates are considered to be equivalent to present value of the future contracted cashflows discounted at the current market
rate

borrowing rate




MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(Al amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

46 Segment information
Primary segment information
The primary reportable segment is business segment
Business Segment

s rmined and
i and its the
's perfo on
i
Real estate
Real estate comprises development and management under Special Economic Zone (SEZ), Information Technology Parks and other commercial assets . The
Group has its project/properties in Mumbai Region, , Pune and Chennai for development and management of commercial SEZ, [T parks and commercial

assets including incidental activities
Power distribution

The state power regulator has taken on record the SEZ developer MBPPL, Gigaplex, Sundew and KRC Infra as Deemed Distribution Licensee for Power The
approved SPVs being Deemed Distributor, supplies power to customers within the notified SEZ.

For the quarter ended 31 March 2023

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
revenue 5,533 190 (56) 5,667
Segment result 3,235 (26) (108) 3,101
Less: Finance cost 95 (4) 886 977
Interest income / other income 19 4 33 56
/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 3,159 (18) (961) 2,180
Exceptional Items (refer note 52A and 52B) (1,368) - (1,368)
Profit / (loss) before tax 1,791 (18) 961) 812
Tax - 1,149 1,149
Loss) after tax 1,791 (18) (2,110) (337)
For the quarter ended 31 December 2022
Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
revenue 5,415 207 64) 5,558
result 3,349 (28) (170) 3,151
Finance cost 95 0 810 905
Interest income / other income 8 0 38 46
/ (loss) before tax 3,262 (28) (942) 2,292
Tax 1,027 1,027
after tax 3.262 (28) (1,969) 1,265
For the quarter ended 31 March 2022
Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
revenue 4,567 142 43) 4,666
result 2,798 27 (133) 2,687
Less: Finance cost 129 1 619 749
Interest income / other income 27 1 79 107
/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 2,696 ks (673) 2,045
Exceptional Items (refer note 51B) 489 489
/ (loss) before tax 3,185 27 (673) 2,534
Less: Tax 1,198 1,198

Profit / after tax 3.185 22 (1,871) 1,336



For the half year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

Segment revenue

Segment result

Less: Finance cost

Add: Interest income / other income

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax
Less: Exceptional Items (refer note 52A and 52B)
Profit / (loss) before tax

Less: Tax

Profit / (Loss) after tax

For the half ended 30 2022
Particulars

Segment revenue

Segment result

Finance cost

Interest income / other income
Profit / (loss) before tax

Tax

Profit / (Loss) after tax

For the ended 31 March 2022
Particulars

Segment revenue

Segment result

Less: Finance cost

Add: Interest income / other income

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax
Less: Exceptional ltems (refer note 51B)
Profit / (loss) before tax

Less: Tax

Profit / (Loss) after tax

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

Segment revenue

Segment result

Less: Finance cost

Add: Interest income / other income

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax
Less: Exceptional Items (refer note 52A and 52B)
Profit / (loss) before tax

Tax

Profit / (Loss) after tax

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Particulars

Segment revenue

Segment result

Less: Finance cost

Add: Interest income / other income

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional items and tax
Less: Exceptional Items (refer note S1A and 51B)
Profit / (loss) before tax

Less: Tax

Profit / (Loss) after tax

Real estate

10,948
6,584
190
27
6,421

(1.368)
5,053

5,053

Real estate

11,283
6,002
190

4
5,816

5,816

Real estate

8,849
5,532
202
29
5,359
489
5,848

5,848

Real estate

22,231
12,586
380
31
12,237
(1,368)
10,869

10,869

Real estate

17,061
10,803
338
64
10,529
(843)
9,686

9,686

Power
distribution
397
(54)
4)
4
(46)

(46)

(46)

Power
distribution

444

Power
distribution
307
49
2
1
48

48

48

Power
distribution
841
(53)
)
5
(44)

(44)

(44)

Power
distribution

598
108
3
2

107
107

107

Unallocable

(278)
1,696
71

(1,903)

(1,903)
2,176
(4,079)

Unallocable

(292)
1,359
13

(1,538)
2,123

(3,661)

Unallocable

(252)
1,208
90

(1.370)

(1,370
1,733
(3,103

Unallocable

(570)
3,055
184

(3,441)

(3,441)
4299

(7,740

Unallocable

(476)

2,303
129

(2,650)

(2,650)
2,670
(5,320)

Inter segment
elimination
( 20)

Inter segment
elimination

(131)

Inter segment
elimination

86)

Inter segment
elimination
(251

Inter segment
elimination

(158)

Total

11,225
6,252
1,882

102
4,472

(1,368)
3,104
2,176

928

Total

11,596
5,711
1,549

118
4,280
2,123
2,157

Total

9.070
5,329
1412

120
4,037

489
4,526
1,733
2,793

Total

22,821
11,963
3,431
220
8,752
(1,368)
7384
4299

3,085

Total

17,501
10,435
2,644
195
7,986
(843)

7,143
2,670
4,473

Kins

itte
7 8105



For the year ended 31 March 2023

Other Information

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment assets 219,012 1,795 6,424 - 227,231
Segment liabilities 11,526 1,685 58,238 - 71,449
Capital expenditure 7,263 3 - - 7,266
Depreciation & amortisation 3.460 94 - - 3,554
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Other Information

Real estate Power Unallocable Inter segment Total
Particulars distribution elimination
Segment assets 215,204 1,897 6,434 - 223,535
Segment liabilities 10,950 1,598 46,275 - 58,823
Capital expenditure 5,243 48 - 5,291
Depreciation & amortisation 3,188 101 = - 3.289

Secondary segment information
Mindspace Group's operations are based in India and therefore the Group has only one geographical segment - India.

Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting policies of the Mindspace Group In addition, the following specific accounting policies have been followed for
segment reporting:

Segment revenue includes income directly attributable to the segment.

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to segments are reported under respective reportable segment.

Revenue and expenses which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under 'Unallocable’.

Borrowings and finance cost of the Group which are not attributable or allocable to segments have been disclosed under 'Unallocable’

Revenue from major customers:
i) The Company has earned revenue from works contract (Real Estate Segment) from 1 customer (Refer Note no 6(u))

1) Mindspace Group has no customer that represents more than 10% of the Group's revenue (other than works contract revenue) for all the reporting periods (i.e for
the quarter ended 31 March 2023, 31 December 2022, 31 March 2022, for the half year ended 31 March 2023, 30 September 2022, 31 March 2022 and for the year
ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022)
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

48  Related party disclosures

A Parties to Mindspace REIT as at 31 March 2023 (Refer Note 1)

SI. No. Particulars Name of Entities
1 Trustee Axis Trustee Services Limited
2 Manager K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
3 Anbee Constructions LLP

== -R N - N Y

11

12

13

14

Sponsors

Cape Trading LLP

Mr. Chandru L Raheja

Mr. Ravi C. Raheja

Mr Neel C Raheja

Mrs. Jyoti C. Raheja

Ms. Sumati Raheja (w e f. 30 September 2021)

Capstan Trading LLP

Sponsors Group Casa Maria Properties LLP

Raghukool Estate Developement LLP

Palm Shelter Estate Development LLP

Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd

Sponsors Group

Promoters/Partners*

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheja

Mr Ravi C. Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheja
Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C Raheja

Sumati Raheja (w e f. | October 2021)

Ravi C Raheja

Neel C Raheja

Chandru L Raheja
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Mr Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheja
Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheja

Chandru L Raheja

Jyoti C Raheja

Ravi C Raheja
Mr Neel C Raheja
Mr Chandru L Raheja
Mrs. Jyoti C Raheja

Ravi C Raheja
Neel C. Raheja
Chandru L Raheja
Jyoti C Raheja

Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Jyoti C. Raheja

Mrs Jyoti C. Raheja Jointly with
Mr Chandru L. Raheja

Ravi C Raheja Jointly with
Mr Chandru L. Raheja Jointly with
Jyoti C Raheja

Neel C Raheja Jointly with
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Anbee Constructions LLP
Cape Trading LLP
Trading LLP
Maria Properties LLP
Estate Developement LLP
Shelter Estate Development LLP
Neel C. Raheja Jointly with
Ramesh M Valecha

Directors

Ravi C Raheja
Neel C Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh
Ranganthan(Appointed
7th July, 2021)
Hingorani(Appointed
e f. 7th July, 2021)
N Robhira (Cessation
e f 7th July, 2021)

s|e©



15
Sponsors Group
16
17 Names of SPVs/subsidiaries
Board and
18 Managerial Personnel of

Manager (K Raheja
Investment Managers LLP )

Entities controlled/jointly
controlled by members of
Governing Board/Key
Managerial Personnel of the
manager

19

* only when acting collectively

Ivory Property Trust

Hardware & Parks Pvt Ltd

Avacado Properties and Trading (

Private Limited

Gigaplex Estate Private Limited
Horizonview Properties Private Limited
KRC Infrastructure and Projects Private
Limited

Intime Properties Limited

Sundew Properties Limited

K Raheja IT Park (Hyderabad) Limited
Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited

oo~ >

Deepak Ghaisas (Independent Member)

Manisha Girotra (Independent Member)

Bobby Parikh (Independent Member)
Mr Alan Miyasaki (Non Executive Non
Member) (resigned w.e f. 27 December 2021)
Mr  Manish  Kejriwal (Independent

w e f. 2 February 2022)
Ravi C Raheja (Non Executive Non

Neel C Raheja (Non Executive Non

Mr Vinod Rohira (Chief Executive Officer of
Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP)
Preeti Chheda (Chief Financial Officer of K
Corp Investment Managers LLP)

Agro & Development Private Limited
Properties Private Limited (till 24

Grange Hotels And Properties Private Limited
Immense Properties Private Limited
Novel Properties Private Limited
Pact Real Estate Private Limited
Logistics & Distribution Private Limited

Properties Private Limited (till 30 March 2022)

Real Estate Private Limited
K Raheja Corp Real Estate Private Limited (Formerly
known as “Feat Properties Private Limited")
Carin Properties Private Limited
Asterope Properties Private Limited
Properties Private Limited
Properties And Leasing Private Limited (till
12 November 2021)
Strategic Services Private Limited
Biotech Private Limited
Infrafacilities Services Private Limited
Raheja Corp Advisory Services (Cyprus) Private
Limited
Convex Properties Private Limited
M/s Parikh & Associates

Chandru L Raheja
C Raheja
Ivory Properties & Hotels Pvt Ltd
C Raheja
C Raheja
are trustees)

Mr Ravi C Raheja Jointly with
Mr Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Mrs Jyoti C Raheja

Neel C Raheja Jointly with
Chandru L Raheja Jointly with
Jyoti C Raheja
L Raheja jointly with Jyoti C Raheja,
on behalf of the beneficiaries of Ivory Property
Trust

C Raheja

C Raheja
Ramesh Valecha
Ramesh Ranganthan(w e f.
20th April, 2021)
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)

48
C.

Related party disclosures

Balances as at the period end

Particulars As on As on

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Other Receivable
Vinod N Rohira 0

K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP

Trade Payables
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
M/s Bobby Parikh and Associates

Sitting Fees Payable
Neel C.Raheja

Ravi C.Raheja

Preeti Chheda

Vinod N Rohira

Other Financial Liabilities
K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP

Security Deposit
K. Raheja Corp Pvt. Ltd.

Co-Sponsor Initial Corpus
Anbee Constructions LLP
Cape Trading LLP

[ — I — ]

18

34
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28
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MINDSPACE BUSINESS PARKS REIT
RN:IN/REIT/19-20/003

Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Notes to Accounts

(All amounts in Rs. million unless otherwise stated)
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a) The figures for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2023 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2023 and the published year-to-date figures upto period ended 31 December 2022 and 30 September
2022, respectively which were subjected to limited review.

b) The figures for the quarter and half year ended 31 March 2022 are the derived figures between the audited figures in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2022 and the published year-to-date figures upto period ended 31 December 2021 and 30 September
2021, respectively which were subjected to limited review.

¢) The figures for the quarter ended 31 December 2022 are the derived figures between the figures in respect of the nine months
ended 31 December 2022 and the figures for the half year ended 30 September 2022, respectively which are subjected to limited
review.

During the FY 2021-22, KRIT had proposed to redevelop Buildings 1A and 1B at Mindspace, Madhapur, Hyderabad. Vacation of
these buildings by the tenant, provided the SPV an opportunity to evaluate the possibility of redevelopment which would
potentially increase the area of the building, help incorporating new upgraded facilities, enhance the marketability of the buildings
and also offer future consolidation opportunities to existing tenants in the Park with continuity and growth. Basis the assessment
by the SPV of the opportunity and concurrence from the Telangana State Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Ltd. (TSIIC) vide
its letter dated June 23, 2021, the SPV proposed to redevelop the said buildings subject to the receipt of statutory approvals &
clearances as may be required for the proposed redevelopment. Accordingly, the Mindspace Group had charged the written down
value of the said buildings, plant and machinery and other assets in relation to the buildings aggregating to Rs.1,332 million to the
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and considered the same as an Exceptional Item for the year ended March
31,2022,

During the FY 2021-22, Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited (*"MBPPL") had entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding dated 16 December 2019 with K. Raheja Corp Private Limited (“KRCPL™) for the proposed sale of MBPPL’s
parcel of land admeasuring 39.996 acres located at Pocharam Village at a predetermined price. The Board of Directors of MBPPL
and the Governing Board of Investment Manager in their meeting held on 9 February 2022 and February 10, 2022 respectively had
approved the proposed transfer. The said land was recorded as “Investment Property under construction® in the Consolidated
financial statements, forming part of ‘Real estate’ segment. The said land had been sold vide agreement dated 30 March 2022 for
the consideration of Rs. 1,200 million, which had been determined as per the mutual agreement considering latest ready reckoner
rate, resulting into profit of Rs. 489 million. The same had been considered as an Exceptional Item in the statement of Profit and
Loss for the year ended March 31 , 2022.

During the current year, KRIT has proposed to redevelop Buildings 7 and 8 at Mindspace, Madhapur, Hyderabad as these were
expected to be vacated by the tenant by March 2023. Vacation of these buildings provides the Company an opportunity to evaluate
the possibility of redevelopment which would potentially increase the area of the building, help incorporating new upgraded
facilities, enhance the marketability of the buildings and also offer future consolidation opportunities to existing tenants in the
Park with continuity and growth. Basis the assessment by the SPV of the opportunity and concurrence from the Telangana State
Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Ltd. (TSIIC) vide its letter dated March 13, 2023, the SPV proposed to redevelop the said
buildings subject to the receipt of statutory approvals & clearances as may be required for the proposed redevelopment.
Accordingly, the Group has charged the written down value of the said buildings, infrastructure plant and machinery as at March
31, 2023 amounting to Rs. 1,297 million to the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and considered the same as
an Exceptional Item for the year ended March 31 , 2023.

An impairment loss of Rs. 72 million related to GIS substation asset at Gigaplex Airoli forming part of Group’s “Real
estate”segment. The impairment charge arose due to technological obsolescence of asset and therefore, impairment loss has been
considered for the carrying value of the asset and considered the same as an Exceptional Item for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Previous period figures have been regrouped, as considered necessary, to conform with current period presentation.

"0" represents value less than Rs. 0.5 million.




Annexure-3

D l 'tt Chartered Accountants
e OI e Lotus Corporate Park
= 1st Floor, Wing A-G
Haskins & Sells LLP SIoNo A ez
Off Western Express Highway
Goregaon (East)

Mumbai-400 063
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6245 1000
Fax: +91 22 6245 1001

REF: NUS /2022 - 23/ DH3

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on “Statement of Security Cover and Compliance
Status of Financial Covenants” (“the Statement”) in respect of Non-Convertible
Debentures Series 1 of the Trust for the year ended and as at 31 March, 2023

To,

The Governing Board,

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Plot No. C -30, Block ‘G’,

Opp. SIDBI, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 22
July 2022, addendums to our engagement letter dated 9 January 2023 and 2 May 2023.

2. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of
Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“the Trust”/ "REIT”), have been requested by the
Management of the Trust to certify the Statement in respect of Non-Convertible
Debentures Series 1 of the Trust for the year ended and as at 31 March 2023.

The Statement is prepared by the Management of Investment Manager from the audited
books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and
its subsidiaries (REIT SPVs) as at 31 March 2023 pursuant to requirements of Circular no.
SEBI/ HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR / P/ 2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by
Securities and Exchange Board of India in terms of Regulation 54 read with Regulation
56(1)(d) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Regulation 15(1)(t) of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (hereinafter referred together as
“the SEBI Regulations”), as amended, for the purpose of submission to IDBI Trusteeship
Services Limited, Debenture Trustee of the above mentioned Non-Convertible Debentures
Series 1 (hereinafter referred to as “the Debenture Trustee”). The responsibility for
compiling the information contained in the Statement is of the Management of the
Investment Manager and the same is initialed by us for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility

3. The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the Management of the
Investment Manager, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and
other relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes collecting,
collating, validating data and design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement and applying an appropriate
basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. The
management is solely and entirely responsible for determining the fair value of the assets
included in the statement.
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4. The Management of the Investment Manager is also responsible for ensuring that the Trust
complies with all the relevant requirements of the SEBI Regulations and Debenture Trust
Deed for providing all relevant information to the Debenture Trustees and for complying
with all the covenants as prescribed in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Auditor’s Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR
/ P/ 2022/ 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India, our
responsibility for the purpose of this certificate is to provide a limited assurance on
whether the details included in the Statement related to the Trust in respect of the Non-
Convertible Debentures Series 1 for the year ended and as at 31 March 2023 have been
accurately extracted from the audited books of account and other relevant records and
documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs . This did not include the evaluation of
adherence by the Trust and REIT SPVs with all the applicable guidelines of the SEBI
Regulations.

6. The engagement involves performing procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence
to provide limited assurance on the Statement as mentioned in paragraph 5 above. The
procedures performed vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a
reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a
limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have
been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed.

Accordingly, we have performed the following procedures in relation to verification of the
Statement:

a) Read the Statement received from the management of Investment manager.

b) Traced the book value of assets from the audited books of account of the Trust as at
31 March 2023 and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust, in
the normal course of its business.

c) Reviewed the Debenture Trust Deed to understand the nature of charge (viz. exclusive
charge or pari-passu charge) on assets.

d) Obtained Register of Charges filed by the REIT SPVs as per the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 to confirm the disclosure of the secured assets.

e) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Mindspace Business Parks Private
Limited (“"REIT SPV”) for the book value of assets against which Non-Convertible
Debentures Series 1 are mortgaged and traced to the book value of assets included in
the Statement of security cover.

f) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Sundew Properties Limited,
Intime Properties Limited and Gigaplex Estate Private Limited ("REIT SPVs”) for the
book value of assets against which other Debt Securities are mortgaged and traced to
the book value of assets included in Table II - Security cover on consolidated basis for

__the listed entity.
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g) Performed necessary inquiries with the management and obtained necessary
representations.

h) Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the information included in the Statement.

i) Traced the fair value of the assets from the Valuation report issued by Independent
valuers provided to us by the Management on which we have placed reliance.

j) Obtained the working prepared by the Management for compliance with the relevant
ratios related to the Trust and REIT SPVs and recomputed the ratios.

The audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023, have been audited
by us, on which we have issued unmodified opinion vide our report dated 4 May 2023.
Our audit of the audited financial statements was conducted in accordance with the
Standard on Auditing (SAs) and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“"ICAI”). Those Standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

7. We conducted our examination and obtained the explanations in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI. This
Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAI.

8. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Review Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Conclusion

9. Based on the procedures performed as referred to in paragraph 6 above and according to
the information, explanations and representation provided to us by the Management of
the Investment Manager, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the details included in the Statement read with the notes related to the Trust have not
been accurately extracted from audited books of account of the Trust and REIT SPVs for
the year ended and as at 31 March 2023 and other relevant records and documents
maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs.
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Restriction on Use and Distribution

10.This certificate is addressed and provided to the Governing Board of the Investment
Manager solely for the purpose of submission to the Stock exchanges/Debenture Trustee
and should not be used by any other person or for any other purposes without our prior
consent in writing. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of
care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into
whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W / W-100018)

bz rad

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership No. 49660
UDIN: 23049660 BGLY EDX 6531

Place: Mumbai
Date: 4 May 2023



Mindspace Business Parks REIT

Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of Financial Covenants for the year and as at 31 March 2023

The listed entity viz. Mindspace B Parks REIT (“Mindspace REIT” / "REIT") through its manager K Rahejr Corp Investment Managers LLP, (“Manager"), has vide its Executive Committee Meeting dated 8 December 2020, has issued the following listed debt securities:
ISIN Private Placement/Public Issue Secured/Unsecured Sanctioned amount (Rs. in Million)
INEOCCU07025 Private Placement Secured 2,000

Security Cover for listed debt securities at Standalon level: -
The financial information as at 31 March 2023 has been extracted from the audited books of account for the year ended ended 31 March 2023 and other records of the REIT and Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited (“MBPPL / REIT SPV™) (the “books of account and other records of REIT and MBPPL™).

ASSETS

Table I - Security cover on standalone basis for the listed entity

Property, Plant and Equipment/ Investment Property NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA €
Capital Work-in- Progress NA NA NA No NA NA = NA - NA NA NA NA -
Right of Use Assets NA NA NA No NA NA - NA = NA NA NA NA -
Goodwill NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA -
Intangible Assets NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA -
Intangible Assets under Development NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA -
Investment NA NA NA No NA NA 1.53.103 NA 1,53,103 NA NA NA NA -
Investment Property (Note 6, 7, 2 and 10) Note 8 1.259 NA No NA NA - (1,259) - 5.094 NA NA NA 5,004
Investment Property under Construction Note 8 - NA No NA NA = a - ’ NA NA NA
Loans NA NA NA No NA NA 31,859 NA 31,859 NA NA NA NA -
Inventories NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA -
Trade Receivables (Note 4, 5 and 2) Note 8 30 NA No NA NA - (30) - NA 30 NA NA 30
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 11) NA NA NA No NA NA 2984 NA 2,984 NA NA NA NA -
Bank Balances other than Cash and NA NA NA No NA NA = NA - NA NA NA NA -
Others (Note 9) NA NA NA No NA NA 578 NA 578 NA NA NA NA -
Total = 1,289 = = s = 1,88,524 (1,289) 1,88,524 5,094 30 5,124
LIABILITIES
Debt secu;lﬁties to which this certificate Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-
pertains (Note 1) cumulative, rated, redeemable non- .
convertible debentures (NCD Series 2000 B hg L = s “) 1,996 A& b . =
[}]
Other debt sharing pari-passu charge with NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Other Debt (Note 3) NA 19,892 No NA 4971 NA (4.971) 19.892 NA NA NA NA -
Subordinated debt NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Borrowings NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Bank NA notitoibeifilled NA No NA NA NA NA = NA NA NA NA 7
Debt Securities NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Others NA NA No NA NA NA NA = NA NA NA NA -
Trade payables NA NA No NA NA 17 NA 17 NA NA NA NA -
Lease Liabilities NA NA No NA NA NA NA = NA NA NA NA E
Provisions NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Accrued Interest on Debt NA 0 526 No NA 1 NA ()] 526 NA NA NA NA -
Others NA NA NA No NA NA 52 NA 52 NA NA NA NA <
Total = 2.000 20.418 - = 4,972 69 (4,976) 22,483 = - -
Cover on Book Value 0.64 NA
Cover on Market Value (Note 7) 2.56 NA
Exclusive Security Pari-Passu Security
Cover Ratio Cover Ratio

Note 1: Value of NCD excludes Ind AS adjustment amounting to Rs. 4 million which is eliminated to ensure liability is reconciled with balance sheet

Note 2: For the purpose of the preparation of the table above, we have considered book value of assets Secured which are in the books of Mindspace Business Park Private Limited (Subsidiary/ REIT SPV). We have eliminated the same through column I to reconcile with financials.

Note 3: Other debts are secured against assets of other REIT SPVs which are disclosed in Table 11 - Security cover on consolidated basis.
Note 4: While determining outstanding receivables as on 31 March 2023, the balances considered are net of advances, if any. Also, common area maintenance charges and other utility charges payable by the tenant with respect to the maintenance of the Mortgaged Properties are included.
Note 5: The above receivables are with respect lo the mortgaged properties only. Amount of receivable considered is approximate to its fair value

Note 6: Book value of Investment Property is written down value of the secured asset The common cost which is not identifiable against secured asset is not allocated (including cost of Power Assets). Further, Ind AS adjustment for initial direct cost are not considered on secured assets.

Note 7: Market value of secured assets has been calculated as per the requirement of the Debenture Trust Deed . . o . p
Note 8: First and exclusive charge registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 414,599 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no. 1 and 5 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 43,200 sq. ft. in building no. | and approx. 371,399 in building no. 5) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and

interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 18,264 sq mtrs on which the said two building no. 1 and 5, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune. (Mindspace Business Park Private Limited)

Note 9: Assels which are not identifiable at the building level but are mortgaged against the debt/borrowing has not been bifurcated and disclosed separately

Note 10. The market value of the motgage immoveable properties has been considered based on the valuation reports issued by two independent valuer for valuation as at 31 March 2023 out which lowest has been considered.

Note 11. The Escrow account and all monies lying to the credit thereof as more particularly set out under the Morigage Documents is excluded for computing Security cover in the above table.




Mindspace Business Parks REIT
Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of Financial Covenants for the year and as at 31 March 2023

b. Security Cover on Consolidated basis for listed debt securities:

Table II - Security cover on Consolidated basis for the listed enti

ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment/ Invesiment Property NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA -
Capital Work-in- Progress NA NA NA No NA NA - NA = NA NA NA NA -
Right of Use Assets NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA -
Goodwill NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA -
Intangible Assets NA NA NA No NA NA : NA - NA NA NA NA -
Intangible Assets under Development NA NA NA No NA NA - NA = NA NA NA NA -
NA NA NA No NA NA 1,53,103 NA 1.53.103 NA NA NA NA -
Investment Property (Note 6, 7. 2, 8 and 11) Note 11 11.379 NA No 1,447 NA - (12.826) - NA NA NA
Investment Property under Construction Note 11 83 NA No 87 NA - (170) - 51,736 NA NA NA 51,736
Finance Lease Note 11 500 NA No NA NA - (500) - NA NA NA
Loans NA NA NA No NA NA 31.859 NA 31,859 NA NA NA NA -
Inventories Note 11 4 NA No NA NA - 4) - NA 4 NA NA 4
Trade Receivables (Note 4. 5 and 2) Note 11 76 NA No NA NA - (78) - NA 76 NA NA 76
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 9) NA NA NA No NA NA 2.984 NA 2984 NA NA NA NA -
Bank Balances other than Cash and NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA -
Others (Note 3) NA NA NA No NA NA 578 NA 578 NA NA NA NA -
Total - 12,042 - - 1.534 - 1,88.524 (13,575) 1.88.524 51.736 80 - - 51,816
LIABILITIES
;Z::h: ::r:)t‘.: ) ;o e s cersfene Note 10 22,000 NA No NA NA NA aiz) 21.888 NA NA NA N i
ame::::: :Nh;"enlgo';m'pm charge with NA NA Yes 7131 NA NA (7.131) - NA NA NA NA -
Other Debt NA NA No NA NA NA NA 3 NA NA NA NA .
Subordinated debt NA NA No NA NA NA NA ¥ NA NA NA NA -
Borrowines NA not to be filled NA No NA NA NA NA =] NA NA NA NA .
Bank NA NA No NA NA NA NA Y NA NA NA NA -
Debt Securities NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA .
Others NA NA No NA NA NA NA Fl NA NA NA NA -
Trade payabl NA NA No NA NA 17 NA 17 NA NA NA NA -
Lease Liabilities NA NA No NA NA NA NA F NA NA NA NA -
Provisions NA NA No NA NA NA NA = NA NA NA NA -
Accrued Interest on Debt NA 526 NA No 9 NA NA (9] 526 NA NA NA NA -
Others NA NA NA No NA NA 52 NA 52 NA NA NA NA -
Total 2 22526 - E 7.140 - 69 (7.252) 22,483 & = - - -
Cover on Book Value 053 021
Cover on Market Value (Note 7 and 11) 230 Note 7
Exclusive Security Pari-Passu Security
Cover Ratio Cover Ratio

Note I: Ind AS adjustment amounting to Rs 112 million is disclosed in Column 1 1o reconcile the balance of NCDs/MLDs with financial statements

Note 2: For the purpose of the preparation of the table above, we have considered book value of assets Secured which are in the books of REIT SPVs We have eliminated the same through column I to reconcile with financials

Note 3: Assets which are not identifiable a1 the building level but are morigaged against the debt/borrowing has not been bifurcated and disclosed separately

Note 4: While determining outstanding receivables as on 31 March 2023, the bal, idered are net of ad . if any Also, area maj h and other utility charges payable by the tenant with respect to the maintenance of the Mongaged Properties are included
Note 5: The above receivables are with respect to the mortgaged properiies only Amount of receivable considered is approximate to its fair value

Note 6: Book value of Investment Property is written down value of the secured asset The common cost which is not identifiable against secured asset is not allocated (including cost of Power Assets) Further, Ind AS adjustment for initial direct cost are not considered on secured assets

Note 7 Market value of secured assets has been calculated as per the requi of the Deb Trust Deed
Note 8 The market value of the security has been considered based on the valuation reports issued by an independent valuer for valuation as at 31 March 2023
Note 9 The Escrow account and all monies lying to the credit thereof as more particularly set out under the Mortgage D is excluded for computing Security cover in the above table

Note 10 There are other borrowings in the books of REIT SPV which ase sharing the same Pari Passu secured assets and Hence amount of such other debts has been disclosed and then eliminated from column I to reconcile with financials




Mindspace Business Parks REIT

Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of Financial Covenants for the year and as at 31 March 2023
Note 11 Sumamry of all the debts, security, book value and Market value

(Rs. In Million)

Name of Debt (NCDs/MLDs)

Security

Debt at Face value
excluding Ind AS
impact

Accrued Interest

Book Value

Ratio

Investment Property

Investment
Property under
Construction

Finance Lease

rade Receivably

Inventory

Total

Market
Value

Book Value

Market Value

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed. senior. taxable, non-
\ative, rated, principal p d — market linked,
d ble, no: rtible deb (“Market Linked
Debentures / MLD Series 27)

First and exclusive charge being created by way of equitable morigage on the
aggregate leasable area of approximately 13,71,442 Sq Ft or thereabouts in
buildings no 12A and Units of Building 12B of Madhapur, Hyderabad (approx
12,69.140 sq ft in building no 12A and approx. 102,302 sq ft in building no
12B) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in the
notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 29,842 sq murs on|
which the said two building no 12A and 12B, out of all those pieces and parcels|
of larger land that are situated. lying and being in Madhapur Village.
Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy DistricL Hyderabad (“*Mortgaged
Properties™), for MLD Series 2 (Sundew Properties Limited)

3.750

522

1,627

1,633

9,744

038

)
%
60

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated,
redesamable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 1) *

First and exclusive charge registered by way of simple mortgage (including
receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately|
414,599 Sq Ft or thereabouts in buildings no | and 5 of Commerzon:
Yerawada (approx 43.200 sq ft in building no 1 and approx 371399 in
building no 5) together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest
in the notionally d d land ad ing approximately 18,264 sq mtrs
on which the said two building no 1 and 5, out of all those pieces and parcels of]
larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka
Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 1 (Mindspace

Park Private Limited)

2.000

1,259

30

1,289

5.094

064

Secured. listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative. rated,
redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 2)

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple morigage
(including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of]
approximately 151,460 Sq FL or thereabouts in building no 4 of Commerzone
Yerawada together with the proportionate undivided right, title and interest in
the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 9,56t sq mtrs on
which the said building, out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are
situated, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District Pune
(“Mortgaged Properties”) of NCD Series 2 (Mindspace Business Park Private
Limited)

750

384

1,803

052

241

Secured, listed, senior, taxable. non-cumulative, rated,
redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 3)
{Note 10)

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage on the
carpet area of approximately 5,52,974 Sq Ft ( save and except entire 2nd floor
admeasuring 11,883 Sq Ft carpet area in building no 2) (the building no 2 )
situated on the Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open
parking spaces, in Building 2 together with all the beneficial rights, title and
interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant to Building 2 and all erections The
Building 2 is situated on a portion of the Mongage Land admeasuring 8 04
Hectares. which portion is notified as a Special Economic Zone & first and
exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage on the identified
units with aggregating to carpet area of approximately 4.61.527 Sq Ft

5,000

10,789

075

(identified units of building no 3 ) situated on the Morigage land along with
proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 3 together with al}
the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurienant ta|

|[Monigaged Land as further detailed in t

Building 3 and all erections (“Mortgaged Properties™) of NCD Series 3 as further
detailed in ransaction documents

A first ranking pari passu charge by way of a simple mortgage over the
ion de (Gigaplex Estate|

Private Limited)

7131

1,447

87

Note 7

Note 7

Secured, listed. senior. taxable, non-cumulative, rated.
redesmable non-conventible debentures (NCD Series 4)

a) First ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of an equitable
mortgage on carpet area of approximately 779,466 sq fi in building 12 D
(identified units in building) along with the common areas, usage and access|
rights appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Building 12D as mentioned in the
trust deet, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately
17414 77 square metres (equivalent to 4 30 acres), forming part of a portion of]|

land admeasuring 14 02 hectares equivalent to 3464 acres or thereab
declared as *Special Economic Zone’ land from and out of the larger piece of]
land bearing Survey no 64(part), lying, being and situated at Madhapur Village,
Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad (Sundre Properties|
Limited)

5.000

3,376

500

w

3.879

12.508

078

Secured. listed, rated. secured. non-cumulative. taxable,
ferabl d ble non—convertible debentures
(“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 17)

First and exclusive charge registered by way of equitable mortgage (including|
receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximaiely
1.067 million square feet or thereabouts in buildings no 5B and 9 of Mindspace|
Madhapur under SPV Intime Properties Limited (approx 245977 sq ft in
building no 5B and approx 821,717 building no 9) together with the
proportionate undivided right, title and interesi in (i) the notionally demarcated
land admeasuring approximately 7,169 90 square melres (equivalent to 1 7717
acres) on which Building 5B is situated, and (ii) the notionally demarcated land
admeasuring approximately 16,871 82 square metres (equivalent 1o 4 17 acres)
on which Building 9 is situated

5.500

1.031

79

w

1119

11.798

020

* This certificate is issued for the NCD 1 and accordingly Security cover ratio for NCD 1 is 2 56

29.131

526

12,826

170

500

13,575

51,736

0.75




Mindspace Business Parks REIT
Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of Financial Covenants for the year and as at 31 March 2023

c) Compliance of all the covenaats of the issue in respect of listed debt securities of the Trust:
We have examined the compliances made by the listed entity in respect of the covenants of the issue of the listed debt securities
(NCD’s) and certify that the such covenants of the issue have been complied by the entity. Compliance with other financial

covenant as per debenture trustee deed are disclosed below:

i. Other covenants at Mindspace Business Parks REIT (the “REIT”) Consolidated level

Particulars Rs. in million

Gross Debt to EBITDA before regulatory income and expenses

Gross Debt (A) [Refer Note 3 & 5] 55,127
EBITDA before regulatory income and expense for the year ended ended 31 March 2023 (B) [Refer Note 15,596
1&2]

Gross Debt to EBITDA before regulatory income and expenses (A)/(B) 3.53
Maximum Gross Debt to EBITDA before regulatory income and expenses as per Debenture Trust

Deed for the aforesaid debentures 5.00

Loan to Value Ratio

Gross Debt 55,127
Cash & Cash Fauivalents 4.062
Loan (C) 51,065
Value of asset (D) [Refer Note 6] 2,92.953
Loan to Value Ratio (C)/(D) 17%
Maximum Loan to Value ratio as per Debenture Trust Deed for the aforesaid debentures 49%

ii. Other covenants at Mindspace Business Parks Pvt. Ltd., Asset Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) level

Particulars Rs. in million

Gross Debt to EBITDA before regulatory income and expenses

Gross Debt (A) [Refer Note 4 & 5] 16,331
EBITDA before regulatory income and expense for the year ended ended 31 March 2023 (B) [Refer Note 4,874
1&72])

Gross Debt to EBITDA before regulatory income and expenses (A)/(B) 3.35
Maximum Gross Debt to EBITDA before regulatory income and expenses not exceeding 5.00x as

per Debenture Trust Deed for the aforesaid debentures 5.00

Loan to Value Ratio

Gross Debt 16,331

Add: Debt from Mindspace Business Parks REIT and its subsidiaries 2.540
Cash & Cash Equivalents 172
Loan (C) 18,699

Value of asset (D) [Refer Note 7] 75.732

Loan to Value Ratio (C)/(D) 25%
Maximum Loan to Value ratio not exceeding 49% as per Debenture Trust Deed for the aforesaid

debentures 49%
Notes:

1 EBITDA is determined on the basis of earnings before interest, depreciation and amortisation and tax after extinguishing the
movement in all regulatory deferral account balances from other income and expenses.

2 EBITDA is for the year ended from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023,

3 Gross debt for REIT is external financial indebtedness availed including interest on the basis of its consolidated financial
statements.

4 Gross debt for Asset SPV is external financial indebtedness availed including interest on the basis of its standalone financial
statements. B

5 Gross Debt includes amortization charges recorded as per Ind-AS in the financial statements

9 Value of asset at consolidated level for the purpose of this calculation is fair value of invesment properties, investment
properties under construction and fair value of Camplus

10 Value of asset at Asset SPV level for the purpose of this calculation is fair value of invesment properties and investment
properties under construction.

For and on behalf of K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
(acting as Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

(OO an a2

Preeti Chheda
Chief Financial Officer
4 May 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Certificate on “Statement of Security Cover and Compliance
Status of Financial Covenants” (“the Statement”) in respect of Non-Convertible
Debentures Series 2 of the Trust for the year ended and as at 31 March 2023

To,

The Governing Board,

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Plot No. C -30, Block ‘G’,

Opp. SIDBI, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 22
July 2022, addendums to our engagement letter dated 9 January 2023 and 2 May 2023.

2. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of
Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“the Trust”/ “REIT”), have been requested by the
Management of the Trust to certify the Statement in respect of Non-Convertible
Debentures Series 2 of the Trust for the year ended and as at 31 March 2023.

The Statement is prepared by the Management of Investment Manager from the audited
books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and
its subsidiaries (REIT SPVs) as at 31 March 2023 pursuant to requirements of Circular no.
SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR / P / 2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by
Securities and Exchange Board of India in terms of Regulation 54 read with Regulation
56(1)(d) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Regulation 15(1)(t) of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (hereinafter referred together as
“the SEBI Regulations”), as amended, for the purpose of submission to IDBI Trusteeship
Services Limited, Debenture Trustee of the above mentioned Non-Convertible Debentures
Series 2 (hereinafter referred to as “the Debenture Trustee”). The responsibility for
compiling the information contained in the Statement is of the Management of the
Investment Manager and the same is initialed by us for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility

3. The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the Management of the
Investment Manager, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and
other relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes collecting,
collating, validating data and design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement and applying an appropriate
basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. The
management is solely and entirely responsible for determining the fair value of the assets
included in the statement.

L2
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4. The Management of the Investment Manager is also responsible for ensuring that the Trust
complies with all the relevant requirements of the SEBI Regulations and Debenture Trust
Deed for providing all relevant information to the Debenture Trustees and for complying
with all the covenants as prescribed in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Auditor’s Responsibility

5. Pursuant to the requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR
/ P/ 2022/ 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India, our
responsibility for the purpose of this certificate is to provide a limited assurance on
whether the details included in the Statement related to the Trust in respect of the Non-
Convertible Debentures Series 2 for the year ended and as at 31 March 2023 have been
accurately extracted from the audited books of account and other relevant records and
documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs . This did not include the evaluation of
adherence by the Trust and REIT SPVs with all the applicable guidelines of the SEBI
Regulations.

6. The engagement involves performing procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence
to provide limited assurance on the Statement as mentioned in paragraph 5 above. The
procedures performed vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a
reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a
limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have
been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed.

Accordingly, we have performed the following procedures in relation to verification of the
Statement:

a) Read the Statement received from the management of Investment manager.

b) Traced the book value of assets from the audited books of account of the Trust as at
31 March 2023 and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust, in
the normal course of its business.

c) Reviewed the Debenture Trust Deed to understand the nature of charge (viz. exclusive
charge or pari-passu charge) on assets.

d) Obtained Register of Charges filed by the REIT SPVs as per the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 to confirm the disclosure of the secured assets.

e) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Mindspace Business Parks Private
Limited ("REIT SPV") for the book value of assets against which Non-Convertible
Debentures Series 2 are mortgaged and traced to the book value of assets included in
the Statement of security cover.

f) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Sundew Properties Limited,
Intime Properties Limited and Gigaplex Estate Private Limited (“"REIT SPVs”) for the
book value of assets against which other Debt Securities are mortgaged and traced to
the book value of assets included in Table II - Security cover on consolidated basis for
the listed entity.

=
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g) Performed necessary inquiries with the management and obtained necessary
representations.

h) Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the information included in the Statement.

i) Traced the fair value of the assets from the Valuation report issued by Independent
valuers provided to us by the Management on which we have placed reliance.

j) Obtained the working prepared by the Management for compliance with the relevant
ratios related to the Trust and REIT SPVs and recomputed the ratios.

The audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023, have been audited
by us, on which we have issued unmodified opinion vide our report dated 4 May 2023.
Our audit of these financial statements was conducted in accordance with the Standard
on Auditing (SAs) and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI”). Those Standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

7. We conducted our examination and obtained the explanations in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI. This
Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAI.

8. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Review Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Conclusion

9. Based on the procedures performed as referred to in paragraph 6 above and according to
the information, explanations and representation provided to us by the Management of
the Investment Manager, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that
the details included in the Statement read with the notes related to the Trust have not
been accurately extracted from audited books of account of the Trust and REIT SPVs for
the year ended and as at 31 March 2023 and other relevant records and documents
maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs.
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Restriction on Use and Distribution

10.This certificate is addressed and provided to the Governing Board of the Investment
Manager solely for the purpose of submission to the Stock exchanges/Debenture Trustee
and should not be used by any other person or for any other purposes without our prior
consent in writing. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of
care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this certificate is shown or into
whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W / W-100018)

e

Nilesh Shah

Partner

Membership No. 49660
UDIN: 230496 6084YEDY 1337

Place: Mumbai
Date: 4 May 2023



Mindspace Business Parks REIT

Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of Financial Covenants for the year and as at 31 March 2023

The listed entity viz. Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“Mindspace REIT” / "REIT"} through its manager K Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP, (“Manager™), has vide its Executive Committee Meeting dated 9 March 2021, has issued the following listed debt securities:

. Private Placement/Public Secured/ Sanctioned
ISIN I Unsecured amount
ssue (Rs. in Million)
INEOCCU07033 Private Placement Secured 750

Security Cover for listed debt securities at Standalone level:
The financial information as at 31 March 2023 has been extracted from the audited books of account for the year ended ended 31 Marcl
Table I - Security cover on standalone basis for the listed entity

h 2023 and other records of the REIT and Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited (“MBPPL/ REIT SPV”) (the “books of account and other records of REIT and MBPPL™)

Ratio

Cover Ratio

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E Column F Column G Column H Column [ Column J Column K | Column L [ CommaM | Column N | ColumnoO
Exclusive Charge Exclusive Charge M: flass Pari- Passu Charge h:n.! Ao Asul!s::‘tl:iﬂt;red = Elmm;;lﬁ(va;mnm =+ (Total C to I) Related to only those items covered by this certificate
i arrying value/book value
Assets shared by pari Other assets on ] 2mem;:$;°r Markef Value ¢ ;?mwgﬁ passu charge
Particulars Debt for which passu debt holder (includes |which there is pari- debt amount considere d Market Value for| where market value is not for Pari passu O e S T
Description of aszet for e Other Secured Debt| this certifica te ekl r‘fr .Whid] his Passu.clmlrge more‘than L (t.lue o Assets charged on| ascertainable or applicable Ch"ge,.. is not ascertainable or =l\? :: +M’ +u,:
which this certificate relate | certificate being issued i — cerliﬁcate.ls usm.ed & other (excludfng items exclusive plus pari passu Exclusive basis (For Eg. Bank Balance, Asse.lsvm applicable (For Eg. Bank ( )
debOuithipapassl coreretlliniolumn charge) DSRA market value is R Balance, DSRA market
charge) F) not applicable) Caltmmmaty value is not applicable)
(Rs. In Milliom) Book Value Book Value Yes/ No Book Value Book Value
ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment/ Investment Property NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA *
Capital Work-in- Progress NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA =
Right of Use Assets NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA -
Goodwill NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA -
Intangible Assets NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA .
Intangible Assets under Development NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA -
Investment NA NA NA No NA NA 1.53.103 NA 1.53.103 NA NA NA NA -
Investment Property (Note 6, 7, 2 and 10) Note 8 384 NA No NA NA - (384) - T NA NA S 1.803
Investment Property under Construction Note 8 & NA No NA NA = - - : NA NA NA
Loans NA NA NA No NA NA 31.859 NA 31.859 NA NA NA NA -
Inventories (Note 4. 5 and 8) Note 8 - NA No NA NA - - = NA - NA NA -
Trade Receivables (Note 4, 5 and 8) Note 8 3 NA No NA NA - (3) - NA 3 NA NA 3
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 11) NA NA NA No NA NA 2.984 NA 2984 NA NA NA NA -
Bank Bal_ances other than Cash and NA NA NA No N NA i NA : NA NA NA NA >
Cash Equivalents (Note 11)
Others NA NA NA No NA NA 578 NA 578 NA NA NA NA -
Total = 387 = =] = - 1,88,524 (387)] 1,88,524 1,803 3 - - 1,806
LIABILITIES
Debt securities to which this certificate Secured. listed. senior.
pertains (Note 1) taxable. non-cumulative,
rated. redeemable non- 750 NA No NA NA NA NA 730 NA NA NA NA =
convertible debentures
(NCD Series 2)
a(;(t)l:,eerj:tt:tl sharing pari-passu charge with NA NA No NA NA NA NA } NA NA. NA NA =
Other Debt (Note 2) NA 21,138 No NA 4971 NA (4.971) 21.138 NA NA NA NA -
Subordinated debt NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Borrowings (Note 3) NA not to be filled NA No NA NA NA NA . NA NA NA NA -
Bank NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Debt Securities NA NA No NA NA NA NA = NA NA NA NA -
Others NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Trade payables NA NA No NA NA 17 NA 17 NA NA NA NA -
Lease Liabilities NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Provisions NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Accrued Interest on Debt NA 0 526 No NA 1 NA (1) 526
Others NA NA NA No NA NA 52 NA 52 NA NA NA NA -
Total - 750 21,664 - - 4,972 69 (4,972) 22,483 - - - - =
Cover on Book Value 052 NA
Cover on Market Value (Note 7) 241 NA
Exclusive Security Cover Pari-Passu Security

Note 1:
Note 2:
Note 3:
Note 4:
Note 3:
Note 6:
Note 7:
Note 8:

Value of NCD excludes Ind AS adjustment, which is eliminated to ensure liability is reconciled with balance sheet
For the purpose of the preparation of the table above, we have considered book value of assets Secured which are in the books of Mindspace Business Park Private Limited (Subsidiary/ REIT SPV). We have eliminated the same through column T to reconcile with financials
Other debts are secured against assets of other REIT SPVs which are disclosed in Table 11 - Security cover on consolidated basis

First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 151,460 Sq  Ft. or thereabouts in building

on which the said building. out of all those pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated. lving and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli. District Pune (Mindspace Business Park Private Limited)

Note 9: Assets which are not identifiable at the building level but are mortgaged against the debt/borrowing has not been bifurcated and disclosed separately

Note 10. The market value of the security has been considered based on the valuation reports issued by an independent valuer for valuation as at 31 March 2023

Note 11 The Escrow account and all monies Iving to the credit thereof as more particularly set out under the Mortgage Documents is excluded for computing Security cover in the above table

sifieg
s
A

its Manager K Raheia
Corp tnvesiment

While determining outstanding receivables as on 31 March 2023, the balances considered are net of advances, if any. Also, common area maintenance charges and other utility charges payable by the tenant with respect to the maintenance of the Mortgaged Properties are included
The above receivables are with respect to the mortgaged properties only. Amount of receivable considered is approximate (o its fair value
Book value of Investment Property is written down value of the secured asset. The common cost which is not identifiable against secured asset is not allocated (mcluding cost of Power Assets). Further, Ind AS adjustment for initial direct cost are not considered on secured assets
Market value of secured assets has been calculated as per the requirement of the Debenture Trust Deed

ne Yerawada together with the proportionate undivided right. title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximalely 9,561 sq. mirs




Mindspace Business Parks REIT

Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of Financial Covenants for the year and as at 31 March 2023

Security Cover on Consolidated basis for listed debt securities:

Table II - Security cover on Consolidated basis for the listed entity

ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment/ Investment Property NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA £
Capital Work-in- Progress NA NA NA No NA NA - NA < NA NA NA NA -
Right of Use Assets NA NA NA No NA NA - NA - NA NA NA NA -
Goodwill NA NA NA No NA NA - NA = NA NA NA NA -
Intangible Assets NA NA NA No NA NA = NA - NA NA NA NA -
Intangible Assets under Development NA NA NA No NA NA . NA - NA NA NA NA =
Investment NA NA NA No NA NA 1,53,103 NA 1.53,103 NA NA NA NA -
Investment Property (Note 6, 7, 2 and 8) Note 11 11.379 NA No 1,447 NA B (12.826) - NA NA NA
Investment Property under Construction Note 11 33 NA No 87 NA z (170) - 51.736 NA NA NA 51.736
Finance Lease Note 11 500 NA No NA NA - (500) - NA NA NA
Loans NA NA NA No NA NA 31,859 NA 31.859 NA NA NA NA -
Inventories Note 11 4 NA No NA NA - (4) - NA 4 NA NA 4
Trade Receivables (Note 4, 5 and 2) Note 11 76 NA No NA NA - (76) - NA 76 NA NA 76
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 9) NA NA NA No NA NA 2,984 NA 2984 NA NA NA NA -
Bank Balances other than Cash and NA NA NA No NA NA Z NA = NA NA NA NA -
Others (Note 3) NA NA NA No NA NA 578 NA 578 NA NA NA NA -
Total 12.042 1,534 1.88.524 (13,575) 1,88,524 51,736 80 51,816
LIABILITIES
p'g;zti,:i:::: p ;° PEHIHISCHR et Note 10 22,000 NA No NA NA NA a12) 21,888 NA NA NA NA .
_agg've;gzg (Sszf:foga"'pass" charge with NA NA Yes 7,131 NA NA (7,131) = NA NA NA NA -
Other Debt NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Subordinated debt NA NA No NA NA NA NA = NA NA NA NA -
Borrowings NA not to be filled NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Bank NA NA No NA NA NA NA = NA NA NA NA -
Debt Securities NA NA No NA NA NA NA - NA NA NA NA -
Others NA NA No NA NA NA NA = NA NA NA NA -
Trade payables NA NA No NA NA 17 NA 17 NA NA NA NA -
Lease Liabilities NA NA No NA NA NA NA : NA NA NA NA -
Provisions NA NA No NA NA NA NA : NA NA NA NA -
Accrued Interest on Debt NA 526 NA No 9 NA NA 9) 526 NA NA NA NA -
Others NA NA NA No NA NA 52 NA 52 NA NA NA NA -
Total 22.526 7,140 69 (7.252) 22,483 s - .
Cover on Book Value 0.53 021
Cover on Market Value (Note 7 and 11) 2230 Note 7

Exclusive Security Cover

Ratio

Pari-Passu Security

Cover Ratio

Note 1: Ind AS adjustment amounting to Rs. 112 million is disclosed in Column I to reconcile the balance of NCDs/MLDs with financial statements.
Note 2: For the purpose of the preparation of the table above, we have considered book value of assets Secured which are in the books of REIT SPVs. We have eliminated the same through column I to reconcile with financials.
Note 3: Assets which are not identifiable at the building level but are mortgaged against the debt/borrowing has not been bifurcated and disclosed separately.

Note 4: While determining outstanding receivables as on 31 March 2023, the balances considered are net of advances, if any. Also, common area maintenance charges and other utility charges payable by the tenant with respect to the maintenance of the Mortgaged Properties are included.

Note 5: The above receivables are with respect to the mortgaged properties only. Amount of receivable considered is approximate (o its fair value

Note 6: Book value of Investment Property is written down value of the secured asset. The common cost which is not identifiable against secured asset is not allocated (including cost of Power Assets). Further, Ind AS adjustment for initial direct cost are not considered on secured assets.

Note 7: Market value of secured assets has been calculated as per the requirement of the Debenture Trust Deed.
Note 8. The market value of the security has been considered based on the valuation repors issued by an independent valuer for valuation as at 31 March 2023

Note 9. The Escrow account and all monies lying to the credit thereof as more particularly set out under the Mortgage Documents is excluded for computing Security cover in the above table
Note 10: There are other borrowings in the books of REIT SPV which are sharing the same Pari Passu secured assets and Hence amount of such other debts has been disclosed and then eliminated from column I to reconcile with financials




Mindspace Business Parks REIT

Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of Financial Covenants for the year and as at 31 March 2023
Note 11: Sumamry of all the debts, security, book value and Market value.

(Rs. In Million)

Name of Debt (NCDs/MLDs)

Security

Debt at Face
value excluding
Ind AS impact

Book Value

Ratio

Accrued Interest

Investment
Property

Investment
Property under

Finance Lease

Trade
Receivables

Inventory

Total

Market

Value Book Value

Market Value

10 year G-Sec linked secured, listed, senior, taxable,
non-cumulative, rated, principal protected — market
linked, redeemable, non-convertible debentures
(“Market Linked Debentures / MLD Series 27)

First and exclusive charge being created by way of equitable mortgage on the aggregate
leasable area of approximately 13,71,442 Sq. Ft. or thereabouts in buildings no. 12A and
Units of Building 12B of Madhapur, Hyderabad (approx. 12,69,140 sq. fi. in building no.12A
and approx. 1,02,302 sq. ft in building no. 12B) together with the proportionate undivided
right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring approximately 29.842
sq. mtrs on which the said two building no.12A and 12B, out of all those pieces and parcels of]
larger land that are situated, lying and being in Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal,
Ranga Reddy District, Hyderabad (“Mortgaged Properties™), for MLD Series 2. (Sundre
Properties Limited)

3,750

522

1,627

4

3

1633

9,744

2.28

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated,
redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 1)

First and exclusive charge registered by way of simple mortgage (including receivables
arising therefrom) on the aggrepate leasable area of approximately 414,599 Sq. Ft. or
thereabouts in buildings no. 1 and 5 of Commerzone Yerawada (approx. 43,200 sq. ft. in
building no. 1 and approx. 371,399 in building no. 5) together with the proportionate
undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring
approximately 18,264 sq. mtrs on which the said two building no. 1 and 3, out of all those
pieces and parcels of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village Yerawada,
Taluka Haveli, District Pune (“Mortgaged Properties™ of NCD Series 1. (Mindspace
Business Park Private Limited)

2,000

1,259

30

1.289

5.094

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated,
redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 2)

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage (including
receivables arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 151,460 Sq. Ft.
or thereabouts in building no. 4 of Commerzone Yerawada together with the proportionate
undivided right, title and interest in the notionally demarcated land admeasuring
approximately 9,561 sq. mtrs on which the said building, out of all those pieces and parcels
of larger land that are situated, lying and being in Village Yerawada, Taluka Haveli, District
Pune (“Mortgaged Properties™) of NCD Series 2. (Mindspace Business Park Private Limited)

750

384

387

1,803

Secured, listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated,
redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 3)
(Note 10)

a) First and exclusive charge being registered by way of simple mortgage on the carpet area
of approximately 5,52,974 Sq. Ft. ( save and except entire 2nd floor admeasuring 11,883 Sq
Ft, carpet area in building no. 2) (the building no. 2 ) situated on the Mortgage land along
with proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 2 together with all the
beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant to Building 2 and all
erections. The Building 2 is situated on a portion of the Mortgage Land admeasuring 8.04
Hectares, which portion is notified as a Special Economic Zone & first and exclusive charge

5,000

3,703

31

3,735

10,789

being registered by way of simple mortgage on the identified units with aggregating to carpet
area of approximately 4,61,527 Sq. Ft (identified units of building no. 3 ) situated on the
Mortgage land along with proportionate covered and open parking spaces, in Building 3
together with all the beneficial rights, title and interest of the Assets SPV in appurtenant to
Building 3 and all erections (“Mortgaged Properties™) of NCD Series 3 as further detailed in
transaction documents. i

A first ranking pari passu charge by way of a simple mortgage over the Mortgaged Land as
further detailed in transaction documents. (Gigaplex Estate Private Limited)

7.131

1.447

87

1.533

Note 7

Note 7

Secured. listed, senior, taxable, non-cumulative, rated,
redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCD Series 4)

a) First ranking sole and exclusive security interest by way of an equitable mortgage on carpet
area of approximately 779,466 sq fi in building 12 D (identified units in building) along with
the common areas, usage and access rights appurtenant to the units mortgaged in Building
12D as mentioned in the trust deet, situated on a notionally demarcated land admeasuring
approximately 17414 77 square metres (equivalent to 4.30 acres), forming part of a portion of]
land admeasuring 14.02 hectares equivalent to 34.64 acres or thereabout declared as *Special
Economic Zone’ land from and out of the larger piece of land bearing Survey no. 64(part),
lying, being and situated at Madhapur Village, Serilingampally Mandal, Ranga Reddy
District, Hyderabad (Sundre Properties Limited).

5.000

3.376

500

3.879

12.508

Secured, listed, rated, secured, non-cumulative, taxable,
transferable, redeemable non-convertible debentures
(“Mindspace REIT Green Bond 17)

First and exclusive charge registered by way of equitable mortgage (including receivables
arising therefrom) on the aggregate leasable area of approximately 1.067 million square feet
or thereabouts in buildings no. 5B and 9 of Mindspace Madhapur under SPV Intime
Properties Limited (approx. 245,977 sq. fi. in building no. 5B and approx. 821.717 building
no. 9) together with the proportionate undivided right. title and interest in (i) the notionally
demarcated land admeasuring approximately 7,169.90 square metres (equivalent to 1.7717
acres) on which Building 5B is situated, and (ii) the notionally demarcated land admeasuring
approximately 16,871.82 square metres (equivalent to 4.17 acres) on which Building 9 is
situated.

5,500

1,031

79

1,119

11,798

* This certificate is issued for the NCD 2 and accordingly Security cover ratio for NCD 2 is 2 41

29,131
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12,826

170

76

13,575

51,736

2.30



Mindspace Business Parks REIT

Statement of Security Cover and Compliance Status of Financial Covenants for the year and as at 31 March 2023

¢) Compliance of all the covenants of the issue in respect of listed debt securities of the Trust:

We have examined the compliances made by the listed entity in respect of the covenants of the issue of the listed debt securities
(NCD’s) and certify that the such covenants of the issue have been complied by the entity Compliance with other financial

i. Other covenants at Mindspace Business Parks REIT (the “REIT”) Consolidated level

Particulars Rs. in million

Gross Debt to Net Operating Income (NOI)

Gross Debt (A) [Refer Note 3 & 5] 55.127
Net Operating Income for the year ended ended 31 March 2023 (B) [Refer Note | & 2] 16,956
Gross Debt / Net Operating Income (A)/(B) 3.25
Maximum Gross Debt to NOI as per Debenture Trust Deed for the aforesaid debentures 5.00
Loan to Value Ratio

Gross Debt 55,127
Less: Cash & Cash Equivalents 4,062

Loan (C) 51,065
Value of asset (D) [Refer Note 6] 2,92.953

Loan to Value Ratio (C)/(D) 17%
Maximum Loan to Value ratio as per Debenture Trust Deed for the aforesaid debentures 49%
ii. Other covenants at Mindspace Business Parks Pvt. Ltd., Asset Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) level

Particulars Rs. in million

Gross Debt to Net Operating Income (NOI)

Gross Debt (A) [Refer Note 4 & 5] 16,331

Net Uperating Income for the year ended ended 31 March 2023 (B) [Reter Note 1 & 2| 4,849

Gross Debt / Net Operating Income (A)/(B) 3.37

Maximum Gross Debt to NOI as per Debenture Trust Deed for the aforesaid debentures 5.00
Loan to Value Ratio

Gross Debt 16,331

Add: Debt from Mindspace Business Parks REIT and its subsidiaries 2,540

Less: Cash & Cash Equivalents 172

Loan (C) 18,699

Value of asset (D) [Refer Note 7] 75,732

Loan to Value Ratio (C)/(D) 25%
Maximum Loan to Value ratio as per Debenture Trust Deed for the aforesaid debentures 49%

Notes:

1 Net operating income is determined on the basis of revenues from operation less: direct operating expenses which includes
maintenance services expense, property tax, insurance expense, cost of materials sold and cost of power purchased, if any

2 Net operating income is for the year ended from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023

3 Gross debt for REIT is external financial indebtedness availed including interest on the basis of its consolidated financial

statements.

4 Gross debt for Asset SPV is external financial indebtedness availed including interest on the basis of its standalone financial

statements
5 Gross Debt includes amortization charges recorded as per Ind-AS in the financial statements

6 Value of asset at consolidated level for the purpose of this calculation is fair value of invesment properties, investment

properties under construction and fair value of Camplus.

7 Value of asset at Asset SPV level for the purpose of this calculation is fair value of invesment properties and investment

properties under construction.

For and on behalf of K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP
(acting as Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)

/JM A et

Preeti Chheda
Chief Financial Officer
4 May 2023
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Mumbai-400 063
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REF: NUS[2027 -23l04H5

Independent Auditor’s Certificate on “Statement of Security Cover and Compliance
Status of Financial Covenants” (“the Statement”) in respect of Non-Convertible
Debentures Series 3 of the Trust for the year ended and as at 31 March 2023

To,

The Governing Board,

K. Raheja Corp Investment Managers LLP (The “Investment Manager”)

(Acting in capacity as the Investment Manager of Mindspace Business Parks REIT)
Plot No. C -30, Block ‘G’,

Opp. SIDBI, Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 22
July 2022, addendums to our engagement letter dated 9 January 2023 and 2 May 2023.

2. We, Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of
Mindspace Business Parks REIT (“the Trust”/ “REIT”), have been requested by the
Management of the Trust to certify the Statement in respect of Non-Convertible
Debentures Series 3 of the Trust for the year ended and as at 31 March 2023.

The Statement is prepared by the Management of Investment Manager from the audited
books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust and
its subsidiaries (REIT SPVs) as at 31 March 2023 pursuant to requirements of Circular no.
SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR/ P / 2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by
Securities and Exchange Board of India in terms of Regulation 54 read with Regulation
56(1)(d) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Regulation 15(1)(t) of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993 (hereinafter referred together as
“the SEBI Regulations”), as amended, for the purpose of submission to IDBI Trusteeship
Services Limited, Debenture Trustee of the above mentioned Non-Convertible Debentures
Series 3 (hereinafter referred to as “the Debenture Trustee”). The responsibility for
compiling the information contained in the Statement is of the Management of the
Investment Manager and the same is initialed by us for identification purposes only.

Management’s Responsibility

3. The preparation of the Statement is the responsibility of the Management of the
Investment Manager, including the preparation and maintenance of all accounting and
other relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes collecting,
collating, validating data and design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statement and applying an appropriate
basis of preparation; and making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. The
management is solely and entirely responsible for determining the fair value of the assets
included in the statement.
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The Management of the Investment Manager is also responsible for ensuring that the Trust
complies with all the relevant requirements of the SEBI Regulations and Debenture Trust
Deed for providing all relevant information to the Debenture Trustees and for complying
with all the covenants as prescribed in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Auditor’s Responsibility

5.

o
7o oKins

QETEN

Pursuant to the requirements of Circular no. SEBI / HO / MIRSD / MIRSD _ CRADT / CIR
/ P/ 2022 / 67 dated May 19, 2022 issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India, our
responsibility for the purpose of this certificate is to provide a limited assurance on
whether the details included in the Statement related to the Trust in respect of the Non-
Convertible Debentures Series 3 for the year ended and as at 31 March 2023 have been
accurately extracted from the audited books of account and other relevant records and
documents maintained by the Trust and REIT SPVs . This did not include the evaluation of
adherence by the Trust and REIT SPVs with all the applicable guidelines of the SEBI
Regulations.

The engagement involves performing procedures to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence
to provide limited assurance on the Statement as mentioned in paragraph 5 above. The
procedures performed vary in nature and timing from, and are less in extent than for, a
reasonable assurance engagement. Consequently, the level of assurance obtained in a
limited assurance engagement is substantially lower than the assurance that would have
been obtained had a reasonable assurance engagement been performed.

Accordingly, we have performed the following procedures in relation to verification of the
Statement:

a) Read the Statement received from the management of Investment manager.

b) Traced the book value of assets from the audited books of account of the Trust as at
31 March 2023 and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Trust, in
the normal course of its business.

c) Reviewed the Debenture Trust Deed to understand the nature of charge (viz. exclusive
charge or pari-passu charge) on assets.

d) Obtained Register of Charges filed by the REIT SPVs as per the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 to confirm the disclosure of the secured assets.

e) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Gigaplex Estate Private Limited
("RELIT SPV”) for the book value of assets against which Non-Convertible Debentures
Series 3 are mortgaged and other debts by Gigaplex Estate Private Limited against
which entity has Pari Passu charge for same assets and traced to the book value of
assets and securities included in the Statement of security cover.

f) Obtained a confirmation provided by management of Sundew Properties Limited,
Intime Properties Limited and Mindspace Business Parks Private Limited (*REIT SPVs")
for the book value of assets against which other Debt Securities are mortgaged and
traced to the book value of assets included in Table II - Security cover on consolidated
basis for the listed entity.
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g) Performed necessary inquiries with the management and obtained necessary
representations.

h) Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the information included in the Statement.

i) Traced the fair value of the assets from the Valuation report issued by Independent
valuers provided to us by the Management on which we have placed reliance.

j) Obtained the working prepared by the Management for compliance with the relevant
ratios related to the Trust and REIT SPVs and recomputed the ratios.

The audited financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2023, have been audited by
us, on which we have issued unmodified opinion vide our report dated 4 May 2023. Our
audit of these financial statements was conducted in accordance with the Standard on
Auditing (SAs) and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI"”). Those Standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement.

7. We conducted our examination and obtained the explanations in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI. This
Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAI.

8. We have